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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES
EEEHN

DIRECTORS

Ms. Sun Yajie, aged 50, was appointed as an Executive Director and the
Chairman of the board of directors of the Company (the “Board”), the
Chairman of the Executive Committee and Nomination Committee and
a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company in August
2022. Ms. Sun was graduated from Hebei University of Economics and
Business. Ms. Sun is a senior accountant and a Chinese Certified Public
Accountants. Ms. Sun joined Shougang Group Co., Ltd (“Shougang
Group”) in 1994 and served as the head of the accounting and finance
department of Qinhuangdao Shougang Plate Co., Ltd. (FE8®
iR 7 G BR A ), the deputy head of the accounting and finance
department of Qinhuangdao Shougin Metal Materials Co., Ltd. (“Shougin
Company”), and the deputy head of the overseas investment and finance
division of the overseas business management department of Shougang
Corporation. Ms. Sun is currently the deputy head of the international
business department and the overseas finance director of Shougang
Group. Shougang Group is a substantial shareholder of the Company.
Ms. Sun has extensive experience in the steel industry, corporate finance,
financial accounting and management.

Mr. Liang Hengyi, aged 49, was appointed as an Executive Director,
Managing Director and a member of Executive Committee of the
Company in March 2022. Mr. Liang joined the Company in March 2021
served as a General Manager. He served as a managing director, an
executive director and a member of each of the executive committee
and the nomination committee of Shoucheng Holdings. Mr. Liang also
served as a managing director of Shougang Fund, the general manager
of non-fare business unit of Beijing Infrastructure Investment Co.,
Ltd. QbR ERRMIEE AR A F]), the general manager of Beijing
Capital Investment Rail Transit Assets Management Company (1t 55
KHBZBEELEEEARAR]) and the president of Beijing Urban
Underground Space Development and Construction Co., Ltd. (At 5% %
T 2= B iR A BR A 7). He holds a master degree in Economics
and a Doctor of Philosophy degree in Management and is a senior
economist.
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Mr. Tian Gang, aged 53, was appointed as an Executive Director of
the Company in March 2021 and is a member of Executive Committee.
Mr. Tian joined the Company in July 2017 and is currently the deputy
general manager of the Company and the managing director of South
China International Leasing Co., Ltd., a non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company. He worked at China Construction Bank Beijing Branch
from August 1990 to July 2017. Mr. Tian successively served as branch
accountant, deputy director and director of the business department,
manager of the real estate credit department, director of the company
and institutional business center, assistant to the president and branch
president. He obtained a postgraduate degree (on-the-job) from the
Party School of the Central Committee of the Chinese Communist Party.
Mr. Tian has worked in the financial field for more than 30 years and has
extensive experience in the financial industry.

Mr. Huang Donglin, aged 62, was appointed as a Non-executive
Director of the Company in May 2018 and is a member of each of the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee, he was
also appointed as a member of the Audit Committee in March 2021.
Mr. Huang held positions in The People’s Bank of China, Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China and Bank of China. He has worked in the
finance industry for over thirty years and led the equity reorganization
and restructuring of a number of domestic companies. Mr. Huang holds
an executive master of business administration from Shanghai Jiao
Tong University and a doctor’s degree from United Business Institutes in
Belgium. He has extensive experience in finance, and has been engaged
in relevant enterprise management and diagnosis for a long time.

Ms. Qiao Yufei, aged 34, was appointed as a Non-executive Director
of the Company in December 2022. She holds a Master of Economics
degree in New York University and a Bachelor of Finance degree in
Peking University. She was previously the vice president of equity
investment department and director of equity investment department of
CITIC Securities Company Limited and China Minsheng Financial Holdings
Corporation Limited respectively. Ms. Qiao is currently the general
manager of investment management and service department of Beijing
Shougang Fund Co., Ltd. (the “Shougang Fund”). Ms. Qiao possessed
intensive experience in finance, securities and investment management.
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Mr. Tam King Ching, Kenny, aged 73, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in February
1996 and is the Chairman of each of the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee, as well as a member of the Nomination
Committee. Mr. Tam is a practising Certified Public Accountant in Hong
Kong. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a member of the Chartered Professional
Accountants of Ontario, Canada. Mr. Tam is a Past President of The
Society of Chinese Accountants and Auditors. He also serves as an
independent non-executive director of certain listed companies on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, namely, BeijingWest Industries
International Limited, Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited, Starlite
Holdings Limited, Hong Kong Shanghai Alliance Holdings Limited, West
China Cement Limited and Wisdom Education International Holdings
Company Limited. He was also an independent non-executive director of
two Hong Kong listed companies, namely CC Fortis Holding Limited and
GBA Holding Limited in the past three years but resigned on 8 June 2022
and 30 September 2022 respectively. Mr. Tam holds a bachelor degree in
commerce from Concordia University, Canada.

Mr. Ng Man Fung, Walter, aged 55, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in March 2021 and is the
member of each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Ng is an executive director of
Mingfa Group (International) Co., Ltd. (stock code: 846), the shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and its main
business is real estate development and investment in the People’s
Republic of China. He had served as an analyst in CEF Brokerage
Limited from July 1996 to June 1998 and a vice president of research
department in GK Goh Securities Limited from December 1998 to July
1999, responsible for the analysis of the internet, retail and traditional
manufacturing companies and their related markets. In addition, Mr. Ng
served as the head of corporate finance of Nan Hai Corporation Limited
(stock code: 680) from July 1999 to January 2015, responsible for
mergers and acquisitions and corporate financing activities. The shares of
Nan Hai Corporation Limited are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. He also served as the chief financial officer of MEML Holdings
Limited and DoDoPal Holdings Limited from March 2015 to September
2017 and from September 2017 to September 2019 respectively. Mr. Ng
holds a bachelor degree in economics from Oregon University.
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Ms. On Danita, aged 46, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in March 2021 and is the
member of each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee. Ms. On is currently the investor and
corporate communications director of Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Company
Limited (stock code: 1929). She has worked in PricewaterhouseCoopers,
Morgan Stanley, Citadel Investment Group and Ying Sheng Science
Co., Ltd. (stock code: 209). The shares of both Chow Tai Fook Jewellery
Co., Ltd. and Ying Sheng Science Co., Ltd. are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. Ms. On holds a bachelor degree in business
administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong and a master
degree in finance from the London School of Business. She is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ms. On has
more than 20 years of experience in auditing, management consultation,
securities research, asset management and investor relations.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MEBERE

TURNOVER BY PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY FOR THE YEAR 2022
TECCFRIEXERS NG

= Supply chain
management business
HEEEEER

O % Bl Assets management and
consultancy services (ceased
operation during the year)
74.4% EEERREARY

(ERFEDRIEREE)

[0 Sale and leaseback
arrangements services

24.4% =R EARFRS
I Property leasing

services

MEHEERY

1.2%

TURNOVER BY GEOGRAPHICAL LOCATION FOR THE YEAR 2022
“ECCERKREnEs Bz WE

« 99.83%

Mainland China Hong Kong
oA BB

For the purpose of this report, “Mainland China” refers to the mainland of the
People’s Republic of China and does not include Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EERESE

Dear shareholders, investors, customers, employees and associates:

I am pleased to present the Group’s 2022 Annual Report.

2022 was the first year in which the Company operated under its
current name Capital Industrial Financial Services Group Limited (referred
hereafter as “Capital Industrial Financial Services”). During the year, the
Group took solid steps towards the provision of supply chain financial
services. Thanks to the tireless efforts of our team and the strong support
of our shareholders, the Group underwent strategic transformation with
determination. We further refined our main businesses, namely supply
chain management, financial leasing, asset securitization and asset
management services and focused on the supply chain financial services
platform business and consumer leasing business. Our revenue for the
year was approximately HK$370 million. Our profit for the year was
approximately HK$32 million, representing a year-on-year decrease of
approximately 24%. The Group took practical measures to reduce costs,
with management fee amounting to HK$53 million, representing a year-
on-year decrease of approximately 9%.

2022 saw an overhaul of China’s anti-pandemic policy and the
subsequent revival of the country’s economy. The year also saw Capital
Industrial Financial Services reform its strategic businesses and reshape
its organizational structure. In this year’s report, | will elaborate on the
Group's strategic design and business philosophy in five parts:

PART ONE: STRATEGIC ADJUSTMENT AND FOCUS
ON PRINCIPAL BUSINESS

1. Committed to establishing supply chain finance (SFC)
business

After two years of continuous exploration and trials, we have
arrived at a clearer definition of the supply chain finance business.
The supply chain finance business we have established refers to
a business model based on real trade, relying on logistics and
centering around the control of capital flows. This business model
enables a win-win situation for participating entities on the steel
supply chain and industry chain (including steel enterprises, banks,
and logistics companies) through the design and management of
financial products.

Capital Industrial Financial- Services Group Limited Annual Report 2022
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Policy support

In recent years, China successively issued policies and
measures to guide the orderly development of the supply
chain finance industry, providing a guarantee for the
sustainable, healthy and compliant development of the
industry.

In early 2022, the General Office of the State-owned
Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of the
State Council issued the “Opinions on Urging State-owned
Enterprises to Expedite their Establishment of Treasury
Systems and Further Strengthen their Management of
Funds”, requiring qualified enterprises to take advantage of
being “industry chain leaders” to provide data and service
support through reasonable use of information on upstream
and downstream businesses and funds, introduce high-
quality financial resources, establish platforms for supply
chain financial services, accurately meet the financial needs
of entities on the supply chain (especially small and medium-
sized enterprises) in production, circulation and transactions
and provide high-quality and efficient supply chain financial
services.

Subsequently, the “*14th Five-Year' Construction Plan
of Modern Circulation Systems” issued by the National
Development and Reform Commission, the “*14th Five-Year’
Domestic Trade Development Plan” issued by the Ministry
of Commerce, and the “Guiding Opinions on Promoting the
Healthy Development of the Movables and Rights Financing
Business” issued by the People’s Bank of China provided clear
guidance and business support for the development of supply
chain finance.
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The necessity of developing SCF business

Under the auspices of national policies, the Group’s supply
chain finance business is supported by digital information
technology and based on real business contracts and
established debtor-creditor relationships on the entire steel
industry chain. Through the introduction of high-quality
capital resources, it provides financing and other services to
multiple entities on the industry chain.

We have been trying to improve the payment and financing
efficiency of upstream and downstream enterprises on the
entire supply chain. On the one hand, we can connect the
flows of goods, information and capital, and reduce the
overall operating cost of the industry chain by shortening
the credit period. On the other hand, we can realize the
interconnection of industry scenarios by promoting the direct
connection of systems and develop it into an infrastructure
for internal data circulation and transmission. By mining the
value of data, we can create data assets to empower the
credit evaluation of financial institutions.

Our SCF business is on the right track

The Group has built a SCF platform system for the multi-
tier transfer of creditor’s rights certificates to serve the steel
supply chain. We have created two trademarked brands,
namely “Shougang Jingpiao” and “Jingpiao E-xin”. With the
Shougang Group as its periphery and centering around core
enterprises at the upstream, midstream and downstream of
the supply chain, “Shougang Jingpiao” has been launched
successfully. Meanwhile, “Jingpiao E-xin”, which focuses on
state-owned enterprises located in Beijing and the market-
oriented industry ecosystem, is also under construction.

The entity behind the establishment of the platform is our
subsidiary Beijing Jingxi Supply Chain Management Co., Ltd.,
with the first “Shougang Jingpiao” issued on 30 November
2022. The issue marked the official launch of the Jingpiao
system and the beginning of the Jingpiao business. The
profit model is to charge platform technical service fees and
financial service fees.

Capital Industrial Financial- Services Group Limited Annual Report 2022
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Rapid development of consumer leasing business

Financial leasing is still the principal business supporting the
Group's operating profit. After several years of development, our
subsidiary South China International Leasing Co., Ltd. (referred
hereafter as “South China Leasing”) has opened up new business
areas, expanding from B-end business into C-end business, and is
looking for a breakthrough through the new business of “mobile
leasing”.

The rapid development of the mobile market has created
favorable conditions for the development of the mobile leasing
industry. A total of 300 million and 350 million smartphones
were manufactured in China in 2020 and 2021 respectively. The
competition in the 5G market has also become fiercer, thus further
driving the development of the 3C (computer, communication and
consumer electronics) leasing industry.

Mobile leasing is a well-developed business model outside China,
while it is still a growing industry in China. Driven by a soaring
demand, the domestic mobile leasing market has been booming.
According to statistics, the market size of China’s mobile leasing
industry reached RMB10 billion in 2022.

Shenzhen is an important distribution center of electronic products.
Leveraging the unique geographical advantage of Shenzhen, South
China Leasing has been cooperating with leading leasing platforms
across China. In 2022, it invested RMB520 million in the consumer
leasing business and achieved remarkable average return rates.
Meanwhile, we continue to optimize our risk management system
and strengthen our ability to identify and prevent risks in key links
and key areas of the consumer leasing business. The quality of
assets under our financial leasing business has also continued to
improve since 2017.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
IRBESE
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PART TWO:
TECHNOLOGY AND PROMOTING DIGITAL
TRANSFORMATION

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
IRBESE

EMPOWERMENT THROUGH

Sustained technological innovation ability

The Group increased its investment in technological platforms in
each of the past five years. Version 1.0 of our supply chain financial
system has already been launched as scheduled and has been
running in a stable manner. With the adjustment of the Jingpiao
business and model innovations, the Group’s technology team
will focus on the needs of business operations, product upgrades
and the injection of capital to complete technical optimization
and function upgrades, realize the introduction and integration
of the bank platform of the Jingpiao system, and complete the
construction of Jingpiao Version 2.0, in order to further support the
stable operation of the business of its expansion.

The Group has established a data security management system and
improved its data encryption protection measures. Meanwhile, it
has introduced a new generation of technology to develop financial
technology, and explored the application of cloud computing,
blockchain, big data, Al, Internet of Things and other technologies
in supply chain finance. While enhancing the technological
capabilities of the online business of our SCF platform, we have
increased the technological influence of Capital Industrial Financial
Services as a listed company.

Access to multiple or multiple types of financial
institutions

For industry platforms, “openness and sharing” has become the
general trend. Financial resources are the key resources for platform
operations, and having a financial institution system with clear
product and price levels is the key to the continuous expansion of a
platform’s influence.

Firstly, we should realize cooperation and communication with
financial institutions as a whole with the resources of the steel
industry as a whole rather than with a single business. This way, we
can greatly enhance the platform’s dominance in the establishment
of the financing ecology of the industry and enhance the platform’s
influence. Secondly, we should give full play to the synergistic
advantages created by our shareholders and all parties involved,
and find safer, more efficient and low-cost solutions to meet user
needs from both the industry side and the capital side. In this
regard, the Group has been cooperating with many banks.
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3. Improve level of collaborative services

Whether the construction of a SCF platform is based on a “top-
down urging” or a “bottom-up” pursuit, it is inseparable from
the improvement of a team’s ability to serve scenarios, the
enhancement of customer experience caused by continuous
optimization of technology, and the sufficient capital flows
brought about by the construction of an open platform, and the
advancement of the platform’s energy level through the expansion
of influence.

The Group has increased its investment in technology so that our
SCF platform can support the innovative management models
of different businesses. Through connecting with the centralized
procurement platforms of core enterprises, we will implement
digital management, provide innovative products that conform with
trading habits and meet customer needs, and realize the expansion
of the product business.

PART THREE:
RISK CONTROL

SYSTEM CONSTRUCTION AND STRICT

The Group attaches great importance to risk management and
control and has implemented several risk management measures.
We continuously optimize our risk management while expanding our
business. We also plan the construction of our risk management system,
improve the risk management framework, and focus on strengthening
our ability to identify and prevent risks in key areas and key links. The
Group firmly believes that a sound and stable risk management and
governance framework lays a solid foundation for realizing the long-
term development of the Company and protecting the interests of our
shareholders. With a sound risk management framework in place, the
Group will combine strategic objectives with risk management, utilize
different resources proactively, seize market opportunities within the
scope of controllable risks, develop various sub-segments thoroughly,
and respond to customer needs.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
IRBESE
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
IRBESE

PART FOUR: ORGANIZATIONAL REFORM AND
TALENT ATTRACTION

Since August 2022, the Group has centralized the management
and control of different basic functions, adjusted the organizational
structure and management model in a uniform manner, adopted a flat
organization, optimized our authorization and decision-making system,
and improved labor efficiency.

Over the years, we have been committed to recruiting outstanding
talents, with a view to bringing them together. The Company’s
management team consists of industry elites with a wealth of experience
in many professional fields.

PART FIVE: INCREASE MARKET VALUE AND
REWARD SHAREHOLDERS

The financial performance of the Group has improved since 2020, with
both revenue and business size maintaining a growth momentum and
profitability greatly enhanced. The Board will, based on the growth
of our performance, consider the payment of dividends from time to
time to reward our shareholders and generate income for them, thus
demonstrating the Group’s commitment to serving its shareholders.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my sincere thanks
to our customers, suppliers and shareholders for their continuous
support to the Company. | would also like to extend my gratitude and
appreciation to the management and staff for their hard work and
dedication throughout the year.

Sun Yajie
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EIEE WA E D AT

The year 2022 proved to be a window of opportunity for the business —Z - " F R EHEZEMEFSAZNETO 2
adjustment of Capital Industrial Financial Services. The Group thoroughly 4 - AEBREAERSLERERS BF
implemented its philosophy of high-quality development, as it orderly Tﬁ‘ i3 %ﬁ“ﬁﬁaﬂﬁ AR R E B A pE 5
promoted the adjustment of its business direction, the reshaping of its @@ F & CEHNESRmEEE - e
organizational structure and the establishment of its supply chain finance & i@ Hlﬁ% F:ﬁ%ﬁﬁv’fi DER - GEHE
platform. Focusing on our core businesses including financial leasing, EEEEESBEARETE  ERAPEE
supply chain management services and commercial factoring, we planned 8 ZFREZE(L - EBRARKEH - F2ER
and promoted the establishment of a comprehensive platform for supply ~ AR5 HEESEERR -

chain financial services and achieved remarkable results in internal

management systems and process optimization, business risk prevention,

and information system construction.

KEY FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

EMBREER

The key financial performance indicators are analysed as below: FEHFBEEREINET
2022 2021
—g==f -—z-—% +()
HK$°000 HK$'000 Change
BET T BT 2%
(Restated)
(&E51)
Financial performance B i3 AE
Revenue from continuing operations R B FHAEAS & %75 2 370,638 1,895,594 -80%
Gross profit margin from continuing ~ REFELEEBE 2
operations (%) FERR(%) 23% 5% 18%
Profit for the year from continuing REFEKEEB 2
operations FEHEHN 33,478 42,051 -20%
Profit attributable to owners of the PA/NEIESPEDN oy
Company 14,526 27,294 -47%
Key financial indicators FEHBER
Total cash BRS 322,904 387,095 -17%
Total assets BEE 2,006,231 2,325,595 -14%
Total liabilities waE 250,855 435,216 -42%
Bank borrowings RITIEK 13,639 290,922 -95%
Capital and reserves attributable to PAYNSIES VDN TN &
owners of the Company {1 1,417,068 1,537,657 -8%
Current ratio mENLL 615% 528% 16%
Basic earnings per share (HK cent) FRRERBTCEMW) 0.37 0.68 -46%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEWLED N

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

The Group recorded profit attributable to owners of the Company
of approximately HK$14,526,000 for the year ended 31 December
2022, as compared with profit attributable to owners of the Company
of approximately HK$27,294,000 for the year ended 31 December
2021, which was mainly due to a decrease in profit from the supply
chain management business segment, due to business transformation,
decrease in the share of profit of an associate and the decrease in fair
value of investment properties. Revenue from continuing operations of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 was approximately
HK$370,638,000, which represented a significant decrease of
approximately 80% when compared with that of approximately
HK$1,895,594,000 for the year 2021. The decrease was mainly
attributable to a decrease in revenue from the supply chain management
business segment. The Group recorded a gross profit from continuing
operations of approximately HK$86,832,000 for the year ended 31
December 2022, representing a decrease of approximately 15% when
compared with the gross profit of approximately HK$102,691,000 for
the year 2021. The Group recorded a gross profit margin from continuing
operations of approximately 23% for the year ended 31 December 2022,
representing a significant increase when compared with the gross profit
margin of approximately 5% for the year 2021. Basic earnings per share
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 was HK0.37 cent
(2021: basic earnings per share was HK0.68 cent).

Revenue from continuing operations for the year ended 31 December
2022 was approximately HK$370,638,000, representing a significant
decrease of approximately 80% when compared with that of
approximately HK$1,895,594,000 for the year 2021. The decrease
was mainly attributable to the business transformation in accordance
with market condition, the suspension of business covering full-process
services including steel product trading and logistics under the supply
chain management business segment which led to a significant decrease
in revenue by approximately HK$1.5 billion.

The Group recorded a gross profit from continuing operations of
approximately HK$86,832,000 for the year ended 31 December 2022,
representing a decrease of 15%, when compared with the gross profit of
approximately HK$102,691,000 for the year 2021. The Group recorded a
gross profit margin from continuing operation of approximately 23% for
the year ended 31 December 2022, representing a significant increase
when compared with the gross profit margin from continuing operations
of approximately 5% for the year 2021, which was mainly attributable
to the growth of the C-end business of the financial leasing services
segment, and the decrease in the scale of business covering full-process
services including steel product trading and logistics under the supply
chain management service business segment.
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FINANCIAL OVERVIEW (Continued)

Other income from continuing operations for the year ended 31
December 2022 amounted to approximately HK$9,696,000 (2021:
HK$5,831,000), representing a significant increase of approximately
66%. The increase was mainly due to the increase in interest income
from deposits.

Administrative expenses from continuing operations for the year ended
31 December 2022 amounted to approximately HK$53,480,000
(2021: HK$58,804,000), representing a decrease of approximately 9%.
The decrease was mainly due to the reduction in staff cost and the
consultancy and management services provided by Shougang Holdings
(Hong Kong) Limited (“Shougang Holdings”) has been terminated during
the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, share of profit of associates
amounted to approximately HK$523,000 (2021: HK$2,328,000), as our
associates continued to make contributions to the Group’s profit.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

Focusing specifically on its core businesses including financial leasing,
supply chain management services and commercial factoring, the Group
has established a comprehensive platform for supply chain financial
services and will give full play to the important role of financial services
in empowering real economy. Taking advantage of our industrial
advantages and competitive edges, we focus on the provision of
customized and comprehensive financial service solutions to the steel
industry and upstream and downstream customers on the industry chain
for different business scenarios including the C-end market, and strive to
meet our medium- and long-term strategic goal of continuous growth in
performance.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEWLED N
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEWLED N

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (Continued)
Sale and Lease Back Arrangements Services Segment

An indirectly owned subsidiary of the Company, South China
International Leasing Co., Ltd. (“South China Leasing”), principally
engages in the provision of financial leasing in the PRC. The principal
mode of finance lease offered by South China Leasing mainly include
direct leasing and sale and leaseback arrangements. The major source of
fund for this business is loans from banks and internal resources of the
Group.

Direct leasing: Under this arrangement, the lessee designates the supplier
of the selected equipment. Then the lessee, the equipment supplier, and
South China Leasing sign a tripartite leasing contract pursuant to which
South China Leasing will pay the equipment supplier for the equipment
after acceptance of the equipment by the lessee and the lessee will pay
South China Leasing rent for the use of the equipment based on the
agreed terms.

Sale and leaseback: Under this arrangement, the lessee sells the subject
equipment to South China Leasing and signs an equipment sale and
purchase contract with South China Leasing. Then South China Leasing
signs a sale-and-leaseback contract with the lessee. South China Leasing
will pay the lessee for the equipment and the lessee will pay South China
Leasing rent for using the equipment based on the agreed terms.

South China Leasing focuses on steel companies and domestic
conglomerates as well as their upstream and downstream customers as
its core customer groups as it would enable the Group to earn a stable
revenue stream with a considerably lower risk exposure. Most customers
of South China Leasing in the PRC are obtained through (a) referrals from
business partners of existing customers, banks or peers and (b) marketing
and sales effort from South China Leasing.

As at 31 December 2022, approximately 30% (2021: 36%) of the total
receivables under the sale and leaseback arrangement was due from the
Group's largest sale and leaseback customer which is a related party of
the Group. As at 31 December 2022, approximately 58% (2021: 96%) of
the total receivables under the sale and leaseback arrangement was due
from the Group's five largest sale and leaseback customers, of which two
such customers are related parties of the Group. Such related customers
accounted for approximately 32% of the total receivables under sale and
leaseback arrangement, and the remaining three customers accounted
for approximately 14%, 12% and 0% of the total receivables under the
sale and leaseback arrangement respectively.
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)

Customer Diversity Table

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEERILESD
EKEENREE @
EEDMEK

Receivables as
at 31 December

2022
R=-E==

+t=A=t—H

9 FE R 1R
HK$'000 %
Customers TR BT T %
Independent individual customers B EARRP 463,047 42
Tonghua Steel Co., Ltd. ** AEMBAR D BR G 329,059 30
Rugao Port Group Co., Ltd." MEABBERBRAGF" 147,593 14
Jinyuan Huaxing Financial Leasing Co., Ltd."" PREHEMEASEFRAR 132,312 12
Shougang Qian‘an Iron and Steel Co., Ltd.™ EEi NS FS: VNG 17,918 2
Hangzhou Big Box Automobile Service Co., Ltd. TN AR&EFITEREHR A A 185 0

Notes:

#

Tonghua Steel Co., Ltd.* and Shougang Qian‘an Iron and Steel Co., Ltd.* are
subsidiaries of Shougang Group Co., Ltd., Shougang Group Co., Ltd., a company
established in the PRC, which is the holding company of Wheeling Holdings
Limited, which in turn, Wheeling Holdings Limited is the controlling shareholder
of the Company. Therefore, Tonghua Steel Co., Ltd.* and Shougang Qian‘an
Iron and Steel Co., Ltd.* are connected persons of the Company.

Rugao Port Group Co., Ltd is a limited liability company established in the PRC. It
is principally engaged in coal and timber trading and the provision of port logistic
services in Rugao City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC. Jinyuan Huaxing Financial
Leasing Co., Ltd.*, is a limited liability company principally engaged in the
business of finance leases in Shangrao City, Jiangxi Province, the PRC. Therefore,
Rugao Port Group Co., Ltd. and Jinyuan Huaxing Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. are
independent of the Company and its connected persons.

*  For identification purpose only

BB (7 AR 2 71K B AR (7 2 5] 8 22 4
BT RENEBRERAFZMERA - &
it B AR AR —FRFEK T2 2 A]
#AWheeling Holdings LimitedZ A& 2\ A] » i
Wheeling Holdings Limited 8l 278 23 ] A9#5 AR AR
oo [t - B 7 AR ELR B AR 57
REJBLIE I A1 B A R A2 BEA L -

MR EHEEERA 7R —EER KA H
REMERA] - BT ERPETHFEMRTHE
HIRRAHTEZ KR IEEE O RIRE - 27
FHGEHEERA AR —HBHEREMELA
TERPETHAE FETHERGEHEEXE -
Bt - WREEEEE R AR 2 REE G
EMHEFRAAGBEIRE LA REFEA
+

* EHRE

2025 EHRE BEREXSRBRBEEEERAT

21



22

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEWLED N

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had entered into 63,714 finance
lease transactions of which 63,701 finance lease transactions were
with independent individual customers, with principal amounts ranged
from approximately RMB800 to RMB300 million. The Group’s sale
and leaseback customers are spread across diverse industries such as
manufacturing industries, property development, trading and port
logistics services provider, intelligent car wash service provider, and
individual mobile phone rental customers.

During the year, revenue from the sale and leaseback arrangements
services segment decreased by approximately 2% to approximately
HK$90,300,000 (2021: HK$91,816,000), and the segment recorded a
profit of approximately HK$77,458,000 (2021: HK$67,501,000). The
revenue from the sale and leaseback arrangements services segment is
stable and the increase in segment’s performance was mainly due to the
development of the C-end business and the recovery of receivables under
sale and leaseback arrangements previously written off.

Supply Chain Management Business Segment

During the year, revenue from the supply chain management
business segment was approximately HK$275,880,000 (2021:
HK$1,803,045,000). The supply chain management business segment
recorded a profit of approximately HK$2,795,000 (2021: HK$8,525,000).
Our supply chain management business segment considers the business
scenarios of the target companies and makes detailed analyses of the
capital flow, information flow, product flow and logistics of the industry
chain on which these companies operate, and then provides the most
accessible and diversified products to them, thereby satisfying their
capital and management needs. In this way, the segment also helps
to reduce the transaction cost incurred on the industry chain and thus
empowers the industry. In the face of macro circumstances such as the
ever-changing situation of the COVID-19 pandemic globally and the
instability lie in the momentum of economic recovery, the supply chain
management business segment adopted a prudent approach in response
to market conditions, and took initiative in making adjustments to its
scale of business. The supply chain management segment has suspended
its trading of goods business since August 2022, and has fully shifted
to and focused on the multi-tier transfer of electronic creditor’s rights
certificates and related businesses for the steel industry chain. Based
on the business application scenarios of core enterprises, this business
provides negotiable, apportionable and financeable electronic creditor’s
rights certificate to core enterprises. In November 2022, the Shougang
Jingpiao System, a multi-tier transfer system for electronic creditor’s
rights certificates created by the Group to serve the upstream and
downstream of the steel industry chain, was officially online and put into
operation. This business transformation led to a slowdown in revenue
and segment performance.
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)

Assets Management and Consultancy Services Segment

During the year, revenue from the assets management and consultancy
services segment was nil (2021: HK$2,409,000), and the segment
recorded a loss of approximately HK$1,241,000 (2021: a profit of
approximately HK$442,000). The decrease in revenue from the assets
management and consultancy services segment and the segment loss
were mainly due to the downsizing and discontinued of the consultancy
business.

Property Leasing Services Segment

During the year, revenue from the property leasing services segment
increased to approximately HK$4,458,000 (2021: HK$733,000), and the
segment recorded a HK$1,783,000 (2021: HK$796,000). The increase in
revenue and segment result from the property leasing services segment
was mainly attributable to the investment property in Shenzhen has been
leased out for the whole year.

In terms of risk management infrastructure, prudent and effective risk
management can help in untapping the commercial value of long-
term investments, as well as laying a solid foundation for the Group’s
sustainable development. We will put emphasis on strengthening our
risk control system, introducing information technology platform, and
adjusting our management and control strategies in a timely manner and
continuously improving our management by improving and optimizing
our risk control mechanism. In addition, we will also continue to promote
the development of our online risk management platform based on asset
securitization and industry supply chain business so as to provide an
effective tool for the Group’s risk management.

Looking ahead into 2023, under the policy environment and market
environment of promoting financial innovation, Capital Industrial
Financial Services will continue to focus on high-quality development,
seize new opportunities offered by the digital economy, explore new
paths for transformation and development, research and formulate
long-term plans for business development, devote itself to expanding
its services for the steel industry chain, strive to increase the Company’s
market capitalization and achieve unprecedented economic benefits. We
will strive to capitalize on the advantage of cross-border operation while
actively exploring new models of innovative financial service business and
taking advantage of Hong Kong’s excellent geographical location and
favorable financing environment as an international financial market.
Through diverse financing tools (both domestic and overseas) and
different market and currency cycles, we will bring low cost funds and
equity capital to our customers and optimize their capital structure, help
the Group to achieve sustainable growth in its business scale and create
greater business value for our customers, shareholders and society.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEWLED N

LIQUIDITY, FINANCING RESOURCES AND FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

The Group aims to maintain stable funding sources and financing is
arranged to balance between business requirements and cash flows. The
financial leverage of the Group as at 31 December 2022 as compared to
31 December 2021 is summarized below:
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Mo REBR-_FT-_—_F+=-_A=+—8"
iy T -—F+-"F=+—HNOHBERE
LEEEF T

31 December 31 December

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
+=-—A=+—H +=—RA=+—8
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BEET I
Total borrowings N ETN
Current borrowings RENME K 44,282 196,603
Non-current borrowings FETRENE K - 94,319
Sub-total NEE 44,282 290,922
Total cash B[ e
Cash and cash equivalents Re MR EMEIER 322,904 387,095
Total equity BREER 1,755,376 1,890,379
Total assets BEE 2,006,231 2,325,595
Financial Leverage MEaELE
Current ratio BN = 615% 528%

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$322,904,000 (31 December 2021: HK$387,095,000),
which were mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars, US dollars and
Renminbi. The decrease was mainly attributable to the repayment of
bank borrowings of approximately HK$342,245,000.
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCING RESOURCES AND FINANCING
ACTIVITIES (continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s borrowings amounted to
approximately HK$44,282,000 (2021: HK$290,922,000) of which
HK$44,282,000 (2021: HK$196,603,000) were repayable within
twelve months from 31 December 2022 and none of which (2021:
HK$94,319,000) was repayable after twelve months from 31 December
2022. During the year, the Group obtained new bank borrowings of
approximately HK$70,000,000 (2021: HK$148,382,000) for the financial
leasing business and working capital of the Group. All borrowings bore
interest at market rates.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The capital and reserves attributable to owners of the Company
amounted to approximately HK$1,417,068,000 as at 31 December 2022
(31 December 2021: HK$1,537,657,000). The decrease was mainly
due to the exchange differences arising on translation of approximately
HK$117,481,000 in total during the year. The Company did not issue
any new shares during the year. The issued share capital of the Company
was approximately HK$39,846,000 (represented by approximately
3,984,640,000 issued ordinary shares).

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

The English name of the Company has been changed from “Shougang
Concord Grand (Group) Limited” to “Capital Industrial Financial Services
Group Limited” and the adoption of the Chinese name "EHHEE¥ %
BhARFEEEE AR A" for identification purpose, with effect from 28
March 2022.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION, DISPOSALS AND
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

During the year, the Group had no material acquisitions, disposals and
significant investment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEWLED N

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had the following charge on assets:

(i) The Group's investment properties with an aggregate carrying value
of approximately HK$32,900,000 were pledged to banks to secure
for bank borrowings with outstanding amount of approximately
HK$2,439,000.

(i)  The Group's receivables under sale and leaseback arrangements
with a carrying value of approximately HK$73,830,000 were
pledged to banks to secure for bank borrowings with outstanding
amount of approximately HK$11,200,000.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The normal operations and investments of the Group are mainly in Hong
Kong and Mainland China, with revenue and expenditure denominated
in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. The Directors believe that the
Group does not have significant foreign exchange exposure. However, if
necessary, the Group will consider using forward exchange contracts to
hedge against foreign exchange exposures. As at 31 December 2022, the
Group had no significant foreign exchange exposure.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had no significant contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2022.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group employed 50 (31 December 2021:
47) full time employees (excluding those under the payroll of associates
of the Group). The Group remunerated its employees mainly with
reference to the prevailing market practice, individual performance and
work experience. Other benefits such as medical coverage, insurance
plan, mandatory provident fund, discretionary bonus and employees
share option scheme are also available to employees of the Group.
Remuneration packages are reviewed either annually or through special
increment.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company and its
subsidiaries have not paid or committed to pay to any individual any
amount as an inducement to join or upon joining the Company and/or its
subsidiaries.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company is committed to maintaining good corporate governance
standard and procedures to safeguard the interests of all shareholders
and to enhance accountability and transparency.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) during the financial year ended 31 December 2022.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition

The Board currently comprises a total of eight Directors, being three
Executive Directors, two Non-executive Directors and three Independent
Non-executive Directors. The list of Directors is set out in the section
headed “Report of the Directors” of this annual report. In addition, an
updated list of the Directors and their roles and functions is published on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company respectively.

The Board is characterised by significant diversity and has a balance of
skills and experience appropriate for the requirements of the business of
the Company. The Directors’ biographical information is set out in the
section headed “Directors’ Biographies” of this annual report.

The Directors give sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”). All Directors are required to
disclose to the Company at the time of their appointment and annually
the number and the nature of offices held in public companies or
organizations and other significant commitments with an indication of
the time involved.

Save for those as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ Biographies”
as set out on pages 4 to 7 of this annual report, the Board members have
no other financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationships
with each other.

The Board includes a balanced composition of Executive and
Nonexecutive Directors (including Independent Non-executive Directors)
so that there is a sufficient independent element on the Board, which
can effectively exercise independent judgement.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TEEREE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Composition (Continued)

The Non-executive Directors are of sufficient number and calibre for their
views to carry weight. The functions of Non-executive Directors include:

o bringing an independent judgement at Board meetings;

o taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise;

o serving on Board committees if invited; and

° scrutinising the Company’s performance and monitoring
performance reporting.

The Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive
Directors) have made a positive contribution to the development of the
Company'’s strategy and policies through independent, constructive and
informed comments. They give the Board and the committees on which
they serve the benefit of their skills, expertise, varied backgrounds and
qualifications through regular attendance and active participation.

Composition of the Board is disclosed, and the Independent Non-
executive Directors are identified, in all corporate communications to
shareholders.

Board diversity

The Company adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) which sets out its approach to achieve diversity on the Board
with a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development of the
Company.

The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the consideration
of a number of factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The Company will also take into
account factors based on its own business model and specific needs
from time to time. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

During the year, the board of directors consisted of three Executive
Directors, two Non-executive Directors, and four Independent
Nonexecutive Directors, of which 66.7% are male and 33.3% are
female. In addition, 44.4% of our directors aged between 30-49 years
old and 55.6% of our Directors aged 50 or above. The members of the
Board have extensive business and professional backgrounds, and have a
diverse range of business, financial services and accounting experience.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board diversity (Continued)

The composition, experience and balance of skills in the Board are
regularly reviewed and assessed to ensure that the Board retains a core
of members with longstanding knowledge of the Group alongside with
new Director(s) to be appointed from time to time who bring(s) fresh
perspectives and diverse experiences to the Board. The Nomination
Committee has the primary responsibility for identifying suitably qualified
candidates to become members of the Board and, in carrying out such
responsibility, will give adequate consideration to the Board Diversity
Policy. Following the appointment of Ms. Qiao Yufei Non-executive
Directors during the year, the Nomination Committee believes that the
current composition of the Board is based on the history and actual
conditions of the Company and demonstrates a thorough consideration
of the factors for achieving board diversity.

The Board Diversity Policy is posted on the website of the Company.
Role and function of the Board and the management

The Board is responsible for overall strategic formulation and performance
monitoring of the Group. It delegates day-to-day operations of the
Company to the Executive Committee and senior management within
the control and authority framework set by the Board. In addition, the
Board has also delegated various responsibilities to the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee. Further
details of these committees are set out in this report.

Board meetings

The Board meets regularly and holds at least four Board meetings a
year. Additional meetings will be arranged, if and when required. The
Directors can attend meetings in person or through electronic means of
communication in accordance with the bye-laws of the Company (the
“Bye-laws").
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Board meetings (Continued)

The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in drawing up the agenda
of each Board meeting. Draft agenda of each regular Board meeting
will be sent to all Directors for review before the agenda is issued and
all Directors may request for inclusion of other matters in the agenda.
The Chairman will take into account the matters proposed by the
Directors and where appropriate, approve the inclusion of such matters
in the agenda of the Board meeting. Generally, at least 14-day notice
of a regular Board meeting is given and the Company aims at giving
reasonable notice for all other Board meetings. The Company also aims
at sending the agenda and the accompanying board papers, which are
prepared in a form and quality sufficient to enable the Board to make
informed decisions on matters placed before it, to all Directors at least
3 days before the intended date of a Board meeting. Where queries are
raised by Directors, prompt and full responses will be given if possible.

There has been procedure in place to enable Directors to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’s expenses. The Board shall resolve to, upon reasonable
request, provide separate independent professional advice to Directors to
assist them in performing their duties to the Company.

The Company Secretary is responsible for taking minutes of Board
meetings and Board committee meetings, draft and final versions of
which would be sent to Directors for comments and records respectively,
within a reasonable time after each meeting. Minutes are recorded in
sufficient detail the matters considered and decisions reached, including
any concerns raised by Directors or dissenting views (if any) expressed.
Minutes of Board meetings and Board committees meetings are kept
by the Company Secretary and are open for inspection by any Director/
committee member.

If a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest in a
matter (including material transaction with connected persons) which the
Board has determined to be material, the matter will be dealt with by a
physical Board meeting, rather than a written resolution. Independent
Non-executive Directors who, and whose close associates, have no
material interest in the transaction should be present at the Board
meeting.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board meetings (Continued)

Except for those circumstances permitted by the Bye-laws and all
applicable laws, rules and regulations, a Director shall not vote on any
Board resolution approving any contract or arrangement or any other
proposal in which he or any of his close associates (or associates where
the transaction or arrangement is a connected transaction under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules) has a material interest nor shall he be counted
in the quorum present at the meeting.

Attendance records

During the financial year ended 31 December 2022, the Directors have
made active contribution to the affairs of the Group and seven physical
Board meetings were held to consider, among other things, various
projects contemplated by the Group and to review and approve the
interim results and annual results of the Group.

Details of the Directors’ attendances in 2022 are as follows:
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Number of meeting(s)
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to attend Note(s)

HEEBRE
Directors 2= CEBHESERE Htat
Executive Directors HITES
Sun Yajie (Chairman) BRENEE) 2/2 1
Xu Liang ® =2 4/4 2
Liang Hengyi REE 4/4 3
Tian Gang Ml 6/6
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Huang Donglin FHAM 6/6
Zhang Jianxun REE 6/6 4
Qiao Yufei RS 0/0 5
Independent Non-executive Directors BAFHTES
Tam King Ching, Kenny PR E 6/6
Zhang Xingyu ok B 6/6 6
Ng Man Fung, Walter hxzE 6/6
On Danita LR 6/6
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Attendance records (Continued)

Notes:

1. Ms. Sun Yajie appointed as a Director with effect from 5 August 2022.

2. Mr Xu Liang resigned as a Director with effect from 5 August 2022.

3. Mr. Liang Hengyi appointed as a Director with effect from 25 March 2022.

4. Mr. Zhang Jianxun resigned as a Director with effect from 28 December 2022.

5. Ms. Qiao Yufei appointed as a Director with effect from 28 December 2022.

6. Mr. Zhang Xingyu retired as a Director with effect from 19 March 2023.

Access to information

The Board is supplied with sufficient explanation and information by
the management to enable the Board to make an informed assessment
of financial and other information put before it for approval. The
management provides all Board members with monthly updates which
give a balanced and understandable assessment of the Company’s
performance, position and prospects in sufficient details to enable the
Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties. Where
any Director requires more information than is volunteered by the
management, each Director has the right to separately and independently
access to the Company’s senior management to make further enquiries if
necessary.

Appointment and re-election of Directors

Appointment of new Directors is a matter for consideration by the
Nomination Committee. In considering the candidates for directorship,
the Nomination Committee will provide adequate consideration to the
Board Diversity Policy, review the profiles of the candidates and take
into account the qualification, ability, working experience, leadership
and professional ethics of the candidates. The Nomination Committee
will make recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and nomination of Directors for consideration and approval.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Appointment and re-election of Directors (Continued)

According to the Bye-laws, any Director so appointed by the Board shall
hold office, in the case of filling a casual vacancy, only until the next
following general meeting of the Company or, in the case of an addition
to their number, until the next following annual general meeting of
the Company who shall then be eligible for re-election at such general
meeting. Every Director, except for the Chairman, is subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years. In order to comply with
applicable laws of Bermuda, the Bye-laws do not require the Chairman
to retire by rotation. However, they will voluntarily retire and offer
themselves for re-election at least once every three years in order to
comply with part 2 of code provision B.2.2 of the CG Code.

The Board recommended the re-appointment of the Directors standing
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company. Detailed information of the Directors standing for re-
election will be set out in the circular of the Company in relation to
the forthcoming annual general meeting to be despatched to the
shareholders.

All Directors (including all Non-executive Directors) have entered into
service agreements or engagement letters with the Company for a term
of not more than three years.

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year, pursuant to Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2) and 3.10A of the
Listing Rules, the Company has appointed four Independent Non-
executive Directors, represents not less than one-third of the Board, with
one of them has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

The Board confirms that the Company has received from each of the
Independent Non-executive Directors a confirmation of independence for
the year ended 31 December 2022 pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and considers such Directors to be independent.

Pursuant to code provision B.2.3 of the CG Code, any re-election of an
independent non-executive director who has served the board for more
than nine years, his/her further appointment should be subject to a
separate resolution to be approved by shareholders.
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Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Where an individual is proposed to be elected as an Independent Non-
executive Director at the general meeting, the circular to shareholders
and/or explanatory statement accompanying the notice of the relevant
general meeting will include:

o the process used for identifying the individual and why the Board
believes the individual should be elected and the reasons why it
considers the individual to be independent;

o if the proposed Independent Non-executive Director will be holding
their seventh (or more) listed company directorship, why the Board
believes the individual would still be able to devote sufficient time
to the Board;

o the perspectives, skills and experience that the individual can bring
to the Board; and

o how the individual contributes to diversity of the Board.

Insurance for directors’ and officers’ liability

Appropriate insurance cover on directors’ and officers’ liabilities has been
in force to protect the Directors and officers of the Group from their risk
exposure arising from the businesses of the Group.

Directors’ training and professional development

Every newly appointed Director will be given an introduction of
regulatory requirements. Directors are continually updated on the latest
development of the Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory requirements
to ensure compliance and upkeep of good corporate governance
practice. Directors are also encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. The Company Secretary facilitates induction and professional
development of Directors and the Company is responsible for arranging
and funding suitable training for the Directors.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Directors’ training and professional development
(Continued)

During the year, the Directors as at 31 December 2022 have provided to
the Company they have participated in training, and the summary is as
follow:
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BHESEER
Type (Note V) Subject Note2) Note(s)
Directors = EgeE AR @2 Mt st
Sun Yajie RENR A B 1 3
Xu Liang " 2 B 1 4
Liang Hengyi REH A 1 5
Tian Gang Ml B
Huang Donglin =AM B
Zhang Jianxun SRIEZB) B 6
Qiao Yufei F=XSSELS A 7
Tam King Ching, Kenny = A, B I,
Zhang Xingyu of B 55 A 8
Ng Man Fung, Walter hxz A B
On Danita ZE R A
Notes: et
7 A.  Attending seminars, conferences, forums, in-house briefings or in-house 1 A HEHTE B wE - ASET SR
training AEBE 3

B. Reading newspapers, journals and updates B. FERE - FIYREIEH
2. A Laws, rules and requlations 2. A SEO ~ CEH R A

1l Finance, accounting or taxation I B S

. Management Il =84

IV.  Business relating to the Group V. BEEREEGENEE

2025 EHRE BEREXSRBRBEEEERAT

35



36

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
CREARE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Directors’ training and professional development
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

3. Ms. Sun Yajie appointed as a Director with effect from 5 August 2022.

4. Mr. Xu Liang resigned as a Director with effect from 5 August 2022.

5. Mr. Liang Hengyi appointed as a Director with effect from 25 March 2022.

6. Mr. Zhang Jianxun resigned as a Director with effect from 28 December 2022.

7. Ms. Qiao Yufei appointed as a Director with effect from 28 December 2022.

8. Mr. Zhang Xingyu retired as a Director with effect from 19 March 2023.

CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

The roles of Chairman and Managing Director are separate and
exercised by different individuals to reinforce their independence and
accountability. During the year, Ms. Sun Yajie succeeded Mr. Xu Liang
as the Chairman from 5 August 2022 . Mr. Liang Hengyi serves as the
Managing Director of the Company. The Chairman provides leadership
for the Board and ensures that the Board works effectively and performs
its responsibilities. The Managing Director has overall chief executive
responsibility for the Group’s business development and day-to-day
management generally. The division of responsibilities between the
Chairman and the Managing Director is clearly established and set out in
writing.
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CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR (Continued)

The responsibilities of the Chairman include, amongst other things:

o taking primary responsibility for ensuring that good corporate

governance practices and procedures are established;

o ensuring that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at
Board meetings, and ensuring that Directors receive, in a timely
manner, adequate information which must be accurate, clear,

complete and reliable;

o encouraging all Directors to make a full and active contribution to
the Board’s affairs and taking the lead to ensure that the Board

acts in the best interest of the Company;

o encouraging Directors with different views to voice their concerns,
allowing sufficient time for discussion of issues and ensuring that

Board decisions fairly reflect Board consensus;

o ensuring that appropriate steps are taken to provide effective
communications with shareholders and that their views are

communicated to the Board as a whole; and

o promoting a culture of openness and debate by facilitating the
effective contribution of Non-executive Directors in particular
and ensuring constructive relations between Executive and

Non-executive Directors.

During the year, the Chairman met with the Independent Non-executive

Directors without the presence of the Executive Directors.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the following committees to oversee particular
aspects of the Company’s affairs and to assist in the execution of
the Board's responsibilities. All committees have their own terms of
reference. All resolutions passed by the committees will be reported to

the Board at the next Board meeting.

Executive Committee

An Executive Committee of the Board was established in September
2005 with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with its

authorities and duties.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Executive Committee (Continued)

The Executive Committee has been conferred with the general powers
of the Board (except those matters specifically reserved for the Board) to
manage and oversee the operations of the Group and has been assigned
with the responsibilities to perform the corporate governance duties as
follows:

o to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

o to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

o to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

° to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the Group’s employees
and Directors;

o to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report; and

o to conform to any requirement, direction, regulation that may
from time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained in the
constitution of the Company or imposed by legislation.

The Executive Committee comprises all Executive Directors of the
Company.

During the year, eight physical meetings of the Executive Committee
were held. Amongst those meetings, one meeting was held for the
purpose of performing the corporate governance duties. The attendances
of the members of the Executive Committee at those meetings are as
follows:
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Number of meeting(s)
attended/eligible

to attend Note(s)
HESBERE
Committee members ZEERE CEREESBRE k=3
Sun Yajie (chairman of the committee) BRENZESEFE) 4/4 1
Xu Liang w2 4/4 2
Liang Hengyi REE 7/7 3
Tian Gang |l 8/8
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Executive Committee (Continued)

Notes:

1. Ms. Sun Yajie appointed as the Chairman of the Executive Committee with effect
from 5 August 2022.

2. Mr. Xu Liang resigned as the Chairman of the Executive Committee with effect
from 5 August 2022.

3. Mr. Liang Hengyi appointed as a member of the Executive Committee with effect
from 25 March 2022.

The major work in relation to the corporate governance of the Group
performed by the Executive Committee during the year includes, among
other things, the following:

o reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2022.

Audit Committee

An Audit Committee of the Board was established with specific written
terms of reference which deal clearly with its authorities and duties. The
terms of reference of the Audit Committee are posted on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company respectively.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include, amongst other
things:

o overseeing the relationship with the Company’s auditor;

° reviewing the interim and annual financial statements of the
Group;

o reviewing the Company’s financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems; and

o reviewing the arrangements that employees of the Company can
use, in confidence, to raise concerns about possible improprieties in
financial reporting, internal control or other matters.

The Audit Committee has explicit authority to investigate any activity
within its terms of reference and the authority to obtain outside legal or
other independent professional advice, at the Company’s expense, to
perform its responsibilities if it considers necessary. It is given access to
and assistance from the employees and reasonable resources to perform
its duties properly.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Audit Committee (Continued)

The chairman of the Audit Committee is an Independent Non-executive
Director and the Audit Committee comprised all Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company. None of the members of the Audit
Committee are former partners of the auditor of the Company.

During the year, two physical meetings of the Audit Committee were
held and the attendances of the members of the Audit Committee at
those meetings are as follows:

BERZBEENEIFEH —BBYFNTESE
T BERZESHARFAEBBEYIINTE
FHK - MEEZZEENB/ARTRK
BRI RTES A -

BITMARERH  BZZR
ERZEERNHFERENT

Number of meeting(s)
attended/eligible

to attend Note(s)
HESBRRE
Committee members ZEBRE EEREESRRH HtaE
Tam King Ching, Kenny (chairman of the committee) EBHIE(ZS& T /%) 2/2
Huang Donglin =AM 11
Zhang Xingyu o B 55 1/2 1
Ng Man Fung, Walter hxzE 2/2
On Danita ZBRFR 2/2
Note: BisE -
1. Mr. Zhang Xingyu ceased to act as a member of the Audit Committee with 1. RAEFFEE - F - —F= A+ NVHETHE

effect from 19 March 2023.

The major work performed by the Audit Committee during the year
included, amongst other things, the following:

o reviewed the final results of the Group for the financial year ended
31 December 2021;

o reviewed the interim results of the Group for the six months ended
30 June 2022;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Audit Committee (Continued)

o reviewed the reports on the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group; and

o monitoring, analyzing and reviewing connected transactions
entered into by the Group during the year.

During the year, the Board had no disagreement with the Audit
Committee’s view on the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal
of the external auditor.

Nomination Committee

A Nomination Committee of the Board was established in September
2005 with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with
its authorities and duties. The terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee are posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company respectively.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include, amongst
other things:

. reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board and
making recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

o identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and selecting or making recommendations to the Board;

o making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors;

o assessing the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors; and

o reviewing the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate; and reviewing
the measurable objectives that have been set for implementing the
Board Diversity Policy, and reviewing the progress on achieving the
objectives.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

Where vacancies exist at the Board, candidates are proposed and
put forward to the Nomination Committee for consideration. The
recommendations of the Nomination Committee will then be tendered
to the Board for approval. In considering the nomination of a new
Director, the Nomination Committee will give adequate consideration to
the Board Diversity Policy and take into account the qualification, ability,
working experience, leadership and professional ethics of the candidates.
In determining the independence of Directors, the Board follows the
requirements set out in the Listing Rules.

The Nomination Committee has explicit authority to seek any necessary
information from the employees within its scope of duties and the
authority to obtain outside independent professional advice, at the
Company’s expense, to perform its responsibilities if it considers
necessary.

The chairman of the Nomination Committee is the Chairman of the
Board and the Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company
constitute the majority of the Nomination Committee.

During the year, three physical meetings of the Nomination Committee
were held and the attendances of the members of the Nomination
Committee at those meetings are as follows:
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Number of meeting(s)
attended/eligible

to attend Note(s)
HEEBRE
Committee members ZEEREB SERHESRAY Hfat
Sun Yajie (chairman of the committee) BRENZEEEE) 11 1
Xu Liang ® =2 2/2 2
Huang Donglin |mEM 3/3
Tam King Ching, Kenny PR E 3/3
Zhang Xingyu o B 3/3 3
Ng Man Fung, Walter hxE 3/3
On Danita 2 ER AR 2/3
Notes: Hfat
1. Ms. Sun Yajie appointed as the Chairman of the Nomination Committee with 1. BFERXTE—E-——F\ARHAEEZHLA
effect from 5 August 2022. REZEETFE -
2. Mr. Xu Liang resigned as the Chairman of the Nomination Committee with 2. RESEA - E_—_F/\ARAEFIIEEEL
effect from 5 August 2022. BE8FE-
3 Mr. Zhang Xingyu ceased to act as a member of Nomination Committee with 3. RAEFFEE - F - —F = A+ NVHETHE

effect from 19 March 2023.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

The major work performed by the Nomination Committee during the
year included, amongst other things, the following:

o assessing the independence of the Independent Non-executive
Directors;

o considering and making recommendations to the Board on the re-
election of Directors at the annual general meeting;

o considering and making recommendations to the Board for the
appointment of Mr. Liang Hengyi as an Executive Director and a
member of Executive Committee, the appointment of Ms. Sun
Yajie as the Chairman and an Executive Director, the Chairman
of the Executive Committee and Nomination Committee and a
member of Remuneration Committee, and the appointment of Ms.
Qiao Yufei as a Non-executive Director of the Company; and

o reviewing the structure and composition of the Board with due
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Remuneration Committee

A Remuneration Committee of the Board was established in September
2005 with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with
its authorities and duties. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company respectively.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include, amongst
other things:

o making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior
management of the Group;

o reviewing and approving the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Company’s goals and objectives;

o determining, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration
packages of individual Executive Directors and senior management
and making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of Non-executive Directors;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Remuneration Committee (Continued)

o reviewing and approving compensation payable to Executive
Directors and senior management and compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct; and

o ensuring that no Director or any of his/her associates is involved in
deciding his/her own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee may consult the Chairman of the Board
and/or the General Manager of the Company about their remuneration
proposals for other Executive Directors. It has explicit authority to seek
any necessary information from the employees within its scope of duties
and the authority to obtain outside independent professional advice,
at the Company’s expense, to perform its responsibilities if it considers
necessary.

The remuneration policies for the Company as well as the Directors are
market alignment and reward for performance. The Company reviews
the remuneration package annually taking into consideration of the
market practice, competitive market position and individual performance.

The chairman of the Remuneration Committee is an Independent Non-
executive Director and the Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Company constitute the majority of the Remuneration Committee.

During the year, three physical meetings of the Remuneration Committee
were held and the attendances of the members of the Remuneration
Committee at those meetings are as follows:
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Number of meeting(s)
attended/eligible

to attend Note(s)
HESBERE
Committee members ZEERE SEBEHESRRE Hfat
Tam King Ching, Kenny (chairman of the committee) Bt (Z 8 &+ /%) 3/3
Sun Yajie RER 1/1 1
Xu Liang w2 2/2 2
Huang Donglin =& 3/3
Zhang Xingyu ok B 55 3/3 3
Ng Man Fung, Walter hxz 3/3
On Danita LR 2/3
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

Notes:

1. Ms. Sun Yajie appointed as a member of the Remuneration Committee with
effect from 5 August 2022.

2. Mr. Xu Liang resigned as a member of the Remuneration Committee with effect
from 5 August 2022.

3. Mr. Zhang Xingyu ceased to act as @ member of Remuneration Committee with
effect from 19 March 2023.

The major work performed by the Remuneration Committee during the
year included, amongst other things, the following:

o considering, reviewing and determining the remuneration and
the terms of service agreement/engagement letters of Mr. Liang
Hengyi, Ms. Sun Yajie, Ms. Qiao Yufei and Mr. Tam King Ching,
Kenny;

o considering, reviewing and determining the bonuses for the
year 2022 and the remuneration for the year 2023 for Executive
Directors;

o considering, reviewing and determining the Director’s fee for Non-
executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Company; and

o considering, reviewing and determining the bonuses for the
year 2022 and the remuneration for the year 2023 for General
Manager.

Details of remuneration paid to Directors and senior management for
the year are set out in notes 34 and 9 to the consolidated financial
statements.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary supports the Board by ensuring good information
flow within the Board and that board policy and procedures are followed.
The Company Secretary is also responsible for advising the Board through
the Chairman and/or the General Manager of the Company on corporate
governance and the implementation of the CG Code. The Company
Secretary is an employee of the Company and has day-to-day knowledge
of the Group's affairs.
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COMPANY SECRETARY (continued)

The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman and the General
Manager. All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary to ensure that board procedures, and all applicable
laws, rules and regulations are followed. The selection, appointment and
dismissal of the Company Secretary are subject to the Board approval.

The Company Secretary has confirmed that she has taken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training during the year.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is of the opinion that an appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control system will contribute to the
operational effectiveness and efficiency of the Group and to the
safeguard of the Group’s assets as well as the shareholders’ investment.

The Board of the Group acknowledges its accountability to the risk
management and internal control system and its responsibility to review
the effectiveness of the system. The Board also clarifies that the system
is purported to manage, but not eliminate, the risk of failure to fulfill
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Our risk management and internal control system is embedded within
our business processes so that it functions as an integral part of the
overall operation of the Group. The system comprises a comprehensive
organization structure with assignment of definite accountabilities and
delegation of corresponding authorities to each post. Based on our
organization structure, a reporting system has been developed including
reporting channels from division heads of every principal business unit to
the Executive Committee.

Business plans, the responsibility statement of business objectives, and
budgets are prepared by division heads of every principal business unit
annually. In preparing them, our management identifies and evaluates
any potential risks. Measures will be put in place to ultimately manage,
control, or lessen such risks.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

These business plans and budgets are also subject to review and approval
by the Executive Committee. The Executive Committee reviews monthly
management reports on the operational and financial results of every
principal business unit and measures the actual performance of the
Group against the business plans and budgets concerned. In this course,
the Executive Committee also reviews and assesses the effectiveness
of all material controls and ensures the adequacies of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Group's accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions.
The Executive Committee holds meetings with the senior management
of every principal business unit on a regular or irregular basis to address
the issues in such controls, identify areas of improvement and put the
appropriate measures in place.

The internal control systems of the Group are documented and, if any
revision is required, such information will be submitted to the Audit
Committee for evaluation.

The Audit Committee assists the Board to fulfill its oversight role over the
Group's risk management and internal control function by reviewing and
evaluating the effectiveness of our overall risk management and internal
control system at least annually.

The Company set up an Internal Audit Department in February 2006,
and re-appointed the professional internal auditor to further strengthen
the internal control in the year, which assists the Board and the Audit
Committee to discharge its duties in risk management and internal
control aspects. The Internal Audit, independent to the operational
departments of the Group, is responsible for conducting regular audits
on the major activities of the Group and carrying out the analysis and
independent appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control system of the Group to cover all
material controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls
as well as risk management, are in place and functioning reasonably and
effectively, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss. The Internal Audit Department
and professional internal auditors report to the Board and the Audit
Committee with its findings and makes recommendations to improve the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

The framework of risk management and internal control systems

Establish
risk content

B EBRAE

Identify risk
ERlIET

Based on the risk-based approach, the Internal Audit Department and
professional internal auditor continuously review and monitor the
sufficiency of the risk control measures of every business unit of the
Group and to examine if relevant measures have been implemented.
The procedures involve assuring of the existence of related risks in the
first place, then assessing the levels to which the potential risks are
attributed based on the following two risk factors, i.e., the possibility
of occurrence and the level of significance of the risk, and carrying out
internal and external communications. After these procedures, audit
recommendations will be made and further discussed with the relevant
management.

In addition, each key business unit of the Group has put in place a
risk control mechanism specializing in risk management and internal
control in respect of project approval and subsequent follow-up works
of the business unit. The mechanism will be improved and optimized
continuously in response to the development of the Group’s business.
The Internal Audit Department and professional internal auditor will
review on a regular and irregular basis the performance of the risk control
personnel of each key business unit and will report to the management
of the Group and members of the Audit Committee any audit issues
found, the potential risks and appropriate audit recommendations in the
internal audit reports every half a year.

At the same time, it is the duty of the General Manager of the Group to
review whether or not the Group’s overall risk management and internal
control system is under appropriate and effective management, and to
provide a written statement in this regard to the Board during the year
end audit.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

Based on the said written statement as provided by the General
Manager, the advices provided by the Audit Committee and the audit
recommendations as set forth in the reports issued by the Internal Audit
Department and professional internal auditor, the Board will continue
to oversee management of the Group in supervising the relevant
departments to set up initiatives to handle various kinds of deficiencies
found in risk management and internal control. Regular reviews on
the improvement progress will be conducted by the Internal Audit
Department and professional internal auditor, and the result of which
will be reported to the Audit Committee and the Board.

The Board considers that it is an ongoing and continuous process for the
Group to review and improve its risk management and internal control
systems in order to ensure that they can deal with the dynamic and ever
changing business environment.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board has been, through
the Executive Committee and the Audit Committee with the assistance
from the Internal Audit Department and professional internal auditor,
continuously reviewing the effectiveness of the Group's risk management
and internal control systems based on the following considerations:

o the changes, since the last review, in the nature and extent of
significant risks and the Group’s ability to respond to changes in
business and the external environment;

o the scope and quality of management’s ongoing monitoring of
risks and of the internal control systems;

o the extent and frequency of communication of monitoring
results to the Audit Committee and the Board which enables
them to assess control of the Group and the effectiveness of risk
management; and

o the effectiveness of the Group’s processes for financial reporting
and Listing Rules compliance.

During the year, internal audit reports in respect of the risk management
and internal control system of the Group have been submitted by the
Internal Audit Department and professional internal auditor to the Audit
Committee and the Board for review. The Board considered that the risk
management and internal control system of the Group is adequate and
effective. The Group has adopted appropriate audit recommendations to
further improve its risk management and internal control system.
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INSIDE INFORMATION DISCLOSURE POLICY

The Company adopted an inside information disclosure policy (the “Inside
Information Disclosure Policy”) on 21 December 2015 which sets out the
procedures for the handling and dissemination of inside information with
a view to preventing uneven, inadvertent or selective dissemination of
inside information and ensuring shareholders and the public are provided
with full, accurate and timely information about the activities and the
financial condition of the Group. The Inside Information Disclosure Policy
covers the following:

o setting out the processes for identifying, assessing and escalating
potential inside information to the Board,;

o setting out the responsibilities of officers in preserving the
confidentiality of inside information, escalating upwards any
such potential information and cascading down the message and
responsibilities to relevant staff; and

o identifying who are the Company’s authorized spokespersons and
their responsibilities for communications with stakeholders of the
Company.

In addition, the Company has communicated to all relevant staff
regarding the implementation of the Inside Information Disclosure Policy.

The Board considers that the Company’s existing measures are effective
and appropriate compliance mechanisms to safeguard the Company and
its officers in discharging their disclosure obligations in respect of inside
information.

The Inside Information Disclosure Policy is posted on the website of the
Company.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") of the Listing Rules as a
code of conduct of the Company for Directors’ securities transactions.

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, they have complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code and the Company’s
code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions throughout
the year ended 31 December 2022.

Employees who are likely to possess inside information in relation to the

Company or its shares are required to prohibit from dealing in shares of
the Company during the black-out period.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year, the remuneration paid/payable to the auditors of the
Company is set out as follows:
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1,624

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing financial
statements of the Group which give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Group on a going concern basis and in presenting the
annual and interim reports and other financial disclosures required under
the Listing Rules, the Directors aim to present a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of the Group's position and prospects.

The statement of the auditor of the Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers,
about its reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report
on pages 123 to 131 of this annual report.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company endeavours to develop and maintain continuing
relationships and effective communication with its Shareholders and
investors. Since 22 March 2012, the Board adopted a Shareholders’
Communication Policy reflecting the current practices of the Company
for communication with its shareholders. Such policy aims at ensuring
the shareholders of the Company are provided with ready, equal and
timely access to balanced and understandable information about the
Company, in order to enable shareholders to exercise their rights in an
informed manner, and to allow shareholders to engage actively with the
Company.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

The Company provides comprehensive information to Shareholders and
the investors through its annual and interim reports and announcements,
all of which have been published on the Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company’s website
(www.capital-ifs.com).

The annual general meeting of the Company provides a useful forum
for shareholders to exchange views with the Board. All Directors will
make an effort to attend. External auditor is also available at the annual
general meeting to address shareholders’ queries. In case of any general
meeting to approve a connected transaction or any other transaction
that is subject to independent shareholders’ approval, members of the
independent Board committee will also make an effort to attend to
address shareholders’ queries.

The auditor of the Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers, attended the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 20 May 2022 (the
“2022 AGM") during the year. Details of the Directors’ attendances at
the 2022 AGM are as follows:
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Attendance at the

2022 AGM Note(s)

HEZB-—F
Directors BE BRREFAS M et
Executive Directors BITES
sun Yajie (Chairman) SN E D)) 1
Xu Liang ® = v 2
Liang Hengyi RS v
Tian Gang S v
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Huang Donglin B|EM v
Zhang Jianxun SRIE B v 3
Qiao Yufei BWIE 4
Independent Non-executive Directors BYEHITES
Tam King Ching, Kenny e F v
Zhang Xingyu RS v 5
Ng Man Fung, Walter ipe= v
On Danita TR v

Capital Industrial Financial- Services Group Limited Annual Report 2022



COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Notes:

1. Ms. Sun Yajie appointed as a Director with effect from 5 August 2022.

2. Mr. Xu Liang resigned as a Director with effect from 5 August 2022.

3. Mr. Zhang Jianxun resigned as a Director with effect from 28 December 2022.

4. Ms. Qiao Yufei appointed as a Director with effect from 28 December 2022.

5. Mr. Zhang Xingyu retired as a Director with effect from 19 March 2023.

During the year, all notices of general meetings despatched by the
Company to its shareholders for meetings held were sent for annual
general meeting at least 20 clear business days before the meeting and
at least 10 clear business days for all other general meetings. Separate
resolutions were proposed at general meetings on each substantially
separate issue, including the election of individual Directors, and all
resolutions put to the vote of the general meetings were taken by
way of a poll. At the general meetings, the chairman of the meetings
explained the procedures for conducting a poll and answered questions
from shareholders on voting by poll, if any. The results of the poll were
published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company
respectively.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convene a special general meeting

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company can make a requisition to convene a special general
meeting pursuant to Clause 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended). The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting,
and must be signed by the shareholder(s) concerned and deposited at
the registered office of the Company.

Put forward proposals at shareholders’ meetings

Shareholder(s) representing not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the
total voting rights of all the shareholders of the Company or of not
less than 100 shareholders of the Company may by requisition, at their
own expense unless the Company otherwise resolves, to put forward
proposals at general meetings of the Company pursuant to Clauses 79
and 80 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended). A written
notice to that effect signed by the shareholder(s) concerned together
with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the expenses in giving effect
thereto must be deposited at the registered office of the Company not
less than six weeks before the meeting for requisition(s) requiring notice
of a resolution, or not less than one week before the meeting for any
other requisition(s).

Shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders may at any time send their specific enquiries or suggestions
to the Board or the Company Secretary in writing at the Company’s
principal office in Hong Kong or by email to the Company. In addition,
shareholders may contact Tricor Tengis Limited, the Company branch
share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, if they have any
enquiries about their shareholdings and entitlement to dividend. Relevant
contact details are set out on page 3 of this annual report.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

On 21 December 2018, the Company adopted a Dividend Policy. Such
policy aims at providing stable and sustainable returns to shareholders
through paying stable dividends.

Under the Dividend Policy, the Company intends to provide Shareholders
with interim or final dividends, and to declare special dividends from time
to time. The Company intends to pay out an annual dividend payment
at a payout ratio of not less than 35% of the Group’s consolidated net
profit after tax for the then financial year after taking into consideration
of, inter alia, the following factors:

the Group’s

. current & future operations;

° earnings;

° financial position;

o cash requirements, cash expenditure & availabilities;

° investment requirements;

o future development prospects; and

other factors as it may deem relevant at such time.

The recommendation of the payment of dividend is subject to the
absolute discretion of the Board, and any declaration of final dividend for
the year will be subject to the approval of our Shareholders.

Whilst the Dividend Policy reflects the Board’s current views on the
financial and cash flow position of the Group, such Dividend Policy will
continue to be reviewed from time to time and it is subject to change.
The Board will consider the dividends, if declared, will be paid in any
particular amount for any given period. The payment of dividend is also
subject to any restrictions under the Laws of Hong Kong, the Laws of
Bermuda, and the Company’s Bye-laws.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents during
the year.
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R -HERERESE

ABOUT THE GROUP

Capital Industrial Financial Services Group Limited (”Capital Industrial
Financial Services” or the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”
or "we"), with the development philosophy of financial leasing,
commercial factoring, supply chain management services and assets
management services as core businesses, endeavored to become a
service provider of a supply chain financing platform characterised by
integrating industry and finance to support for industrial upgrading. The
business focuses on two categories of targets, namely the iron and steel
industry and large domestic conglomerates, as well as their upstream
and downstream customers. The Group is headquartered in Hong Kong
and has established operation points in Beijing and Shenzhen, PRC,
respectively. Please refer to page 9 of the Annual Report for the business
distribution and income.

This report is the 2022 Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG")
Report (the “Report”) published by the Group, which aims to disclose
the Group’s sustainable development approach, policies, measures,
performance to enhance the understanding of stakeholders on the
progress of the Group’s sustainable development. This Report has been
prepared in both Chinese and English and uploaded to the website
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
(www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company’s website (www.capital-ifs.com).

ABOUT THIS REPORT

Scope of this Report

This Report covers the operations of the Group’s core businesses
in Beijing, Shenzhen and Hong Kong, PRC, including supply chain
management, financial services, asset management and property
investment management during the period from 1 January 2022 to 31
December 2022 (the “Reporting Period” or “2022"). The disclosure in
this ESG Report are generally made at the group level, with the disclosure
of environmental performance indicators adjusted according to the actual
situation depending on different operating points. For the actual scope,
please refer to the notes in the relevant section.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ABOUT THIS REPORT (continued)

Reporting Standard

This Report is prepared in strict compliance with the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Reporting Guide”) as
set out in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules issued by the Stock Exchange,
complies with the provisions of “Mandatory Disclosure Requirements”
and “Comply or explain” provisions, and provides explanations
accordingly for those provisions which are not applicable to the Group’s
business operations or provide partial disclosure. Disclosures in this
Report are based on the four principles, namely materiality, quantitative,
balance and consistency.

Reporting Standard
HEREA

Definitions

B
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Applications
FERA

Materiality

B2

Quantitative

g1t

Consistency

— 2t

Balance

F

The report should focus on ESG issues that
have a significant impact on the Group and
its stakeholders.

REEERPEHAEBEREOEELSE
LY EHESGHE ©

The reported key performance indicators
("KPIs") and data should be measurable
and, where appropriate, provide historical
data to facilitate comparison and evaluation
on the effectiveness of ESG policies and
management systems.

WENREBREYIERLEBIEER] TA
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Disclosures and statistical methods in the
report should be consistent to allow for
meaningful comparison of relevant data in
the future.

HREN BN TERREERRE 2 UE
HEe A BIRETE R RALLE -

The report should present ESG performance
in an unbiased manner so that readers of
the report can objectively assess the overall
performance of the Group.

HBERNR AU ERESGH MM KRR
BREEERBHTRAEENERES
e

The Group conducted a materiality assessment
to determine and rank the key issues, and the
results were used as a disclosure framework for
the preparation of the ESG Report. For details,
please refer to the section headed “Materiality
Assessment”.

AEBERBEEMNNG  ETTHRIBET LB
Fr - SERIERBERERANFERESGHRE -
B R 20 22 RE &6 o

This Report discloses quantitative KPIs where
practicable, provides the standards, methodologies,
assumptions and reference data adopted for
the relevant indicators, and an independent
professional consultancy has been commissioned
to conduct a carbon assessment to provide an
accurate picture of the Group’s ESG performance.

R|EEAITIER TREECHNBREBIER

WIREHABBERARANERE - & BREZ
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Unless otherwise stated, this Report adopts a
consistent methodology for preparation and
reporting relevant data to facilitate meaningful
comparison.

BREEHRA - ARERA O ERE R ER
SIS - AEETEERNLE -

This Report presents the Group’s ESG performance
objectively and comprehensively, including
disclosure of its achievements and room for
improvement, to facilitate fair evaluation by
stakeholders.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE dHEREARE

ABOUT THIS REPORT (continued)
Reporting Standard (Continued)

This Report has concluded the environmental key performance indicators
and the performance data during the Reporting Period in the section
headed “Summary of Environmental Performance Data”. The information
and data contained in the ESG Report are derived from the Group’s
internal documents, records and estimates. The content of the Report
has been reviewed and confirmed by the Board.

Contact and Feedback

The Group attaches great importance to stakeholder opinions, and
therefore actively communicate with stakeholders through different
channels and platforms, with a view to helping us constantly improve
sustainability governance and strategies. If you have any comments or
suggestions on this Report or sustainable development of the Group,
please contact us through the following channels:

Capital Industrial Financial Services Group Limited

6/F., Bank of East Asia Harbour View Centre, 56 Gloucester Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2877 4500

E-mail: enquiry@capital-ifs.com

SUSTAINABILITY MANAGEMENT

The Group believes that sustainable development is particularly important
for stable and long-term corporate development, and is committed to
integrating the concept of sustainable development into our business
development strategies and actual operations. In view of the fact
that sound corporate governance can effectively promote sustainable
development, the Group has incorporated sustainability management
into its corporate governance structure, and continues to strengthen
the management and monitoring of various sustainability risks and
opportunities in order to enhance our competitiveness and potentials for
sound growth and create long-term value for our stakeholders.
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SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

Governance Structure
The Board

The Board is the highest governance body of the Group and is
responsible for establishing and regulating the Group’s key ESG issues,
including risks, strategies, objectives, policies, measures and performance,
and ensuring that the Group’s ESG duties and performance meet
the needs and expectations of all parties through regular stakeholder
communication. During the Reporting Period, the Board actively
performed internal reviews, stakeholder engagement, policymaking and
supervision, and led the ESG Task Force to implement its ESG work,
thus continually enhancing the effectiveness in practising sustainable
development.

ESG Task Force

Comprising senior management, functional departments of the Group
and employee representatives of the Group's subsidiaries, the ESG Task
Force helps monitor and review the ESG management of the Group
under the leadership of the Board. The ESG Task Force is responsible
for collecting ESG data, evaluating the performance of ESG measures,
follows up and reviews relevant performance, and reports to the
Board on a regular basis. To ensure that the Group’s ESG work is up-
to-date and relevant to the concerns of stakeholders, the ESG Task
Force maintains regular communication with stakeholders to identify
and manage important ESG issues to further drive our sustainable
development progress.
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SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

Risk Management

The Group understands that a sound risk management and internal
control system can help reduce uncertainties in its operations and
therefore incorporates ESG elements into the consideration of risk
management and response strategies. Through ESG risk management,
the Group identifies and evaluates potential material ESG risks in a
timely manner and ensures effective risk mitigation measures are taken.
In particular, we have established risk management procedures for
ESG areas such as environment, employment and operational practices
to ensure effective prevention, identification and response to various
ESG risks. For example, the Group has included policies on regulating
sustainability performance of suppliers in the Procurement Guidelines
to enhance the management of ESG risks in the supply chain, and has
established guidelines on risk management related to climate change
in the Environmental Policy Statement to promote adaptation and
mitigation of climate risks.

The Board is responsible for ensuring that the risk management
and internal control systems are sound and effective, while the
Audit Committee assists in regulating, reviewing and evaluating the
effectiveness of relevant systems. During the Reporting Period, the Board,
through the Audit Committee, conducted a review, concluding that
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group were
effective and adequate.

Compliance Management

The Group is well aware of the risks of fines, penalties, enforcement
actions and litigation arising from violations of laws and regulations,
which may adversely affect its business operations, finance and
reputation. In our daily operation, we adhere to compliance with laws
and regulations and have established comprehensive internal policies and
systems for compliance management. The Audit Committee is responsible
for closely supervising the compliance of the Group’s policies and
practice in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements.
At the same time, the Board conducts annual reviews to ensure that
the Group’s operation is in compliance with the latest national policies,
laws and regulations in order to enhance the effectiveness of compliance
management. During the Reporting Period, the Group did not have any
cases of violation of laws and regulations related to various aspects of
ESG, and there were no corruption litigation cases filed and concluded
against the Group and its employees.
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SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

Compliance Management (Continued)
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Material Laws and Regulations

Areas Issues The Group's Policies (including but not limited to)

Eal 7] AEBBE EREER(BRETRR)

Employees Employment Employee Handbook Employment Ordinance

8T = Recruitment Policies Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China

Anti-Discrimination
Policies
(BIFM
CHRBEEEER)
CRIER R

Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic
of China

Social Insurance Law of the People’s Republic
of China

Minimum Wage Ordinance

CER RG]

(hEARKMBELBE)

(PEARKMBLEE RE)

(PEARKEMBEHTREE)

(AR ITEAEDI

Health and Safety
[ ReEEes

Management
Measures for
Employee Physical
Examination

(BIgRERIE)

Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance

Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Treatment of Occupational
Diseases

(BEZ 2 REEED)

(EE AR HEMBB R RE)

Development and
Training
R BRI

Employee Handbook
CEIFHm

NaE

Labour Standards
85 TR

Employee Handbook
(BIFM

Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance and various
antidiscrimination ordinances

Provisions on Prohibition of Child Labour of
the People’s Republic of China

CIEAE B FLER) 15101 12 & R IS AR 1691

(PEARKEMBEZILFEREZETHRE)
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SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

Compliance Management (Continued)

NEFEEZREEE @)

EHEE @)

Material Laws and Regulations

Areas Issues The Group’s Policies (including but not limited to)
g 7] REBBE EREOER(BEETRR)
Operation Supply Chain Procurement Law of the People’s Republic of China on Bid
&8 Management Guidelines Invitation and Bidding
HpEsEE R Supplier Management (R E AR EFMBERIZRIZE)
Procedures

(REEE3D
(fEmEERE)

Product Employee Handbook
Responsibility Employment Contract

EmEFE Confidentiality
Agreement

(BITFM

(EREEX)D

(RE W)

Product Quality Law of the People’s Republic
of China

Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Protection of Consumer Rights and
Interests

Company Law of the People’s Republic of
China

Contract Law of the People’s Republic of
China

Cybersecurity Law of the People’s Republic of
China

Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance

(PEARKMBIZERE 25

(hEARKEMBEEBE RS REE)

(hEARHKMBEREDE)

(hEARHKMBEERE)

(PEARKEMBEBE L 2IE)

CEAE B (RLER) 1551

Business Ethics Anti-Corruption Employee Handbook
[EESER:S RES Employment Contract
Integrity Clause
Anti-Commercial
Bribery Agreement

(BIF)
(BIRE#)
CBRZRMGFD
(REEBRHES)

Prevention of Bribery Ordinance

Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance

Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of
China

Anti-Money Laundering Law of the People’s
Republic of China

Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the People’s
Republic of China

B LEBRER 1B

CME A E L (FLER) 5651

(R EE AR FEMBEFE)

(RZE AR FEMBEISOEEIER)

(PEARKENMBIR T EEBRFE)
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SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

Compliance Management (Continued)

RE HEREAHRS
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Material Laws and Regulations

Areas Issues The Group’s Policies (including but not limited to)

Eal 7] REBBE EREOER(BEEFTRR)

Environment Emissions Environmental Policy Environmental Protection Law of the People’s
IR PE) Statement Republic of China

CGRIEBERER)

Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Prevention and Control of Water Pollution

Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Prevention and Control of Atmospheric
Pollution

Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Prevention and Control of Ambient Noise
Pollution

Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Prevention and Control of Environmental
Pollution by Solid Waste

Environmental Protection Tax Law of the
People’s Republic of China

Energy Conservation Law of the People’s
Republic of China

Motor Vehicle Idling (Fixed Penalty) Ordinance
Greenhouse Gas Protocol

(RE AR KEAMBEIRFREE)

(REE AR EFB KIS RBEE)

(P E ARFMBIARSRBAE)

(P EE AR FEMBIRR A EPEE)

(pEE A R AT B BB RE )5 RIRIRMIRE)

(PE ARKEMBUIRRREDE)

(PEARKEMBEHLIEETRE)

CRES|EEE(ERSIF B

CRERBERTE)

Use of Resources Environmental Policy N/A
iR A Statement i
CGREBEKER)
The Environment and | Environmental Policy N/A
Natural Resources Statement T E A

RELRAER

(REBRER)
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SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

Development Targets

The Group strives to deepen its sustainability strategy by setting specific
ESG policies, targets and action plans to make adequate response to
its business development, views of internal and external stakeholders,
as well as changes in market and industry trends. To minimise the
environmental impact of our business operation, the Group’s internal
ESG Task Force is responsible for identifying, analysing and evaluating
the potential environmental impact of our daily operation, with a view
to setting appropriate environmental targets and reporting the relevant
performance to the Board for review, so as to promote the relevance and
effectiveness of our environmental policies and measures to our targets.

In order to cope with the ever-changing environment and the trend
of sustainable development, the Group will continue to review and
enhance its ESG management and improve relevant strategies, policies,
targets and action plans to ensure that ESG elements are integrated
into its decision-making process and business strategies. At the same
time, the Group will continue to improve its ESG risk management and
internal control system, and regularly review and adjust its strategies
to ensure their comprehensiveness and effectiveness. In the coming
year, we will focus on optimising its employment system, occupational
health and safety as well as staff training and development, and deploy
improvement plans and actions as appropriate to address the concerns
of stakeholders. In addition, the Group will further understand its climate
risk exposure through preliminary climate risk assessment, in order to
identify financial and non-financial impacts, and lay the foundation for
formulating corresponding risk mitigation measures.
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COMMUNICATION WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The support and participation of stakeholders is exceptionally crucial
to the Group’s sustainable development. In order to fully consider
the concerns and expectations of stakeholders in the formulation of
sustainability strategies and implementation of ESG management, the
Group actively maintains close and open communication with various
internal and external stakeholders, and regularly understands their
views and suggestions on sustainability through various communication
channels, and adjusts ESG management accordingly to enhance
sustainability performance.

Major Stakeholders

EERHE TREBEERE

Major Communication Channels

RE HEREAHRS

SDERE

FOENXHM2EHANEEN A HEER
EREZR - REHERFEREMEEESGE
BIEREDZBFHNENBIMBE - X
S E TR & RSN 0 F R = )M B R A
AR THBRBZITEBRRE - THML
P FERRNERNEZ  HRLAR
ESGER AR A FEERNKEA -

Board, senior management and

employees
EFe  aAEEERET Exgedk
IR

Investors and shareholders

Board meetings, internal meetings, training programmes, questionnaires, internal
communication, staff activities, e-mail and social media

ANEbEE - BRI - H5HE - AMEBH - B1EF BB L

Shareholders’ meeting and activities, financial reports and announcements, meetings,

questionnaires, press release, the Group’s notices, the Group’s website

RERE EREM  AEEB

wEHENRKRE BRAGREE  FERERAE - @& -

Al ANEEAE
Customers Customers’ meeting, questionnaires, interviews, phone call, e-mail and social media
®P XFo% MEHE - ik - i BHRAEER

Suppliers, contractors,
sub-contractors and
business partners

HEn - ABE - DHBER EZENE - 2% HERE

FERH
Society Social service
= *IE AR5

Assessment on Materiality issues

To understand the importance of various ESG issues to stakeholders,
the Group conducted a materiality assessment through an independent
consultant during the Reporting Period. According to the ESG Reporting
Guide and industry trends, 18 ESG issues were identified as the
most relevant to its business operations, covering four major areas:
“Environmental Protection”, “Employment and Labour Practices”,
"QOperating Practices” and “Community”. The Group invited various
internal and external stakeholders to participate in a questionnaire survey
to rate the materiality of ESG issues and received a total of 61 valid
guestionnaires. Based on the results of the materiality analysis, the Group
prioritised the issues and compiled the following materiality matrix.

Review and evaluation, meeting and questionnaires

ERBENME

RTRBHEESCGHEEHRNENEEMNE - K
SEAEREHANBEBIBERMARER ML
fly - RERCESGHREFE ) MITHEBE - #5118
REXKEERBHBMESGHESE @ BER
HERE] [BRERSTIER]  [2EBH]R
& PR - N5 BB T E BRI b
E2EREHE  HESGREBNERHETT
o KRB 1t BRAES - REEEES
R AEEHRHEZELETERHT
REUATEE B
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RE HEREAERS

COMMUNICATION WITH STAKEHOLDERS (continued) =)

Materiality Assessment (Continued)

Issues of Medium Importance

HEEEHRE

EE

3 =

TR o 5 e = i
Importance to Stakeholders

5

Other Issues

HipHE

EHBEBE @

FEA ()

Importance to the Group’s Business

HARBEEBRHEEY
_ Issues of Medium Importance Other Issues
TEEERE Hit:HE
9 Occupational Health and Safety Employee Satisfaction Waste
BEREERZE BEImEE FEEY)
17 Anti-corruption Prevention of Child and Forced Labour Climate Change
RES BUETREHST FRE
8 Employment System Product and Service Responsibility The Environment and Natural Resources
EREHE EmMREEE RERRAER
10 Training and Development Fair and Open Procurement Raw Materials
Bl R N RRFERE RATEE
Supply Chain Management
fHERER
Green Procurement
ARERE
Energy
A
Water Resources
KER

Greenhouse Gases and Air Emissions
BERENERSEY
Community Investment

HREE
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COMMUNICATION WITH STAKEHOLDERS (continued)

Assessment on Materiality issues (Continued)

In 2022, the Group identified four key ESG issues for prioritisation, with
stakeholders paying particular attention to the “Employment and Labour
Practices” area. The results were broadly consistent with the previous
year, with Occupational Health and Safety being the most important
issue during the Reporting Period, while stakeholders continued to
focus on Anti-corruption, Employment System, as well as Training and
Development. Materiality of Employee Satisfaction, Prevention of Child
and Forced Labour have increased. These issues have been reviewed and
confirmed by the Board and are highlighted in this Report. In the future,
we will continue to collect stakeholders’ views through more diversified
communication channels and work closely with them to promote ESG
governance and practice in a holistic manner.

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT PERFORMANCE FOR
THE YEAR

This Report establishes the reporting framework based on materiality
assessment and highlights the relevant issues in the following chapters.
During the Reporting Period, the Group continued to implement
the concept of sustainable development and perform corporate
environmental and social responsibilities. On the basis of ensuring
compliance and sound operation, we implemented ESG-related policies,
measures and performance, and continuously monitored and improved
ESG management in order to facilitate the sustainability progress.

People-oriented

The sustainable development of the Group depends on the support and
drive of our employees. We are committed to creating a diverse and
equal working environment with mutual respect, safety and health, and
joint development for our employees. Through a sound employment
system, we continue to optimise our employment practice to protect
and promote the rights and interests of both parties. The Group has
established an Employee Handbook and a series of human resources
policies and measures to clarify the management and arrangement for
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare.

RE HEREAHRS
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SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT PERFORMANCE FOR FENFEERXRE @
THE YEAR (Continued)

People-oriented (Continued) AR ()

Occupational Health and Safety BY¥EEHTS

The Group is committed to maintaining a safe, healthy and harmonious AREBH HEFEZ S - EELMEN TIES
working environment to safeguard the physical and mental health and SELREE TH B LEFEEEZ 2 o SEE R
safety of our employees. To create a healthy and safe working culture, BEZ2®TEXL @ BEIEHUATEZE2EE

we implement the following safety management rules and measures to B2 i - M8 TIZEH S HERE -
provide comprehensive protection to our employees:

V Providing safety protection
Rtz2hE

e Equipping employees with the necessary e Encouraging employees to participate in regular fire drills
labour protection supplies to prevent organised by the office building management company to raise
work-related injuries awareness of emergency and fire safety

e Providing first-aid kits, blood oxygen e Setting up signs in the workplace to clearly indicate the fire
meters, blood pressure meters evacuation routes and fire evacuation exit locations
and general prescription drugs for ¢ Provide appropriate assistance to employees in case of discomfort
emergency use or need for first aid until the arrival of an ambulance

s RETIRBLENSHRERAR & s XBMET2EBAETREEERRTHENNENES =5
TGS EEREh 2B

o REWMERMEE  MBEE - TRAK o MIVEGARE &R BAREHE T AR BE AR R MK AR i D
E PUETRZE (VA

s TETIHBTHAFTETESNFATEERYEESRESET|ZE
y=1ls

Protecting physical and mental health and safety
:;) RE S UEE

e Formulating the Management Measures for Employee Physical Examination and carrying out annual health
examination

e Developing mutual insurance activities for employees and completing the enrollment of all employees to help
employees enhance their risk-resistance capacities

e Promoting work-life balance and actively organising sports and fitness activities for employees, including running,
badminton and yoga

e Providing employees with fitness equipment and supplies, such as basketball, football, badminton, table tennis, rope

skipping, etc.

HIECRIRREEIEL)  FREFEEERR

s HEREIGHREES  TRNEHEIMNBRIE  UBBIRAKEZRAKLGE

s REIFEAFETY  BBRAET/HMEERSEY  BERS - PEXKREMN

s METIRHEREHEBRMMAM - WEIK - B3k - PEHK - EEIK - BE
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SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT PERFORMANCE FOR
THE YEAR (Continued)

People-oriented (Continued)
Occupational Health and Safety (Continued)

In the face of resurgence of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group
has closely monitored the latest development of the pandemic and
cooperated with local government on the prevention and control of the
pandemic to reduce the risk of virus transmission. During the Reporting
Period, the Group continued to implement various pandemic prevention
measures through the special task force to protect the health of
employees and reduce the risk of infection:

BRE HEREARRS

FENEEZRRERE @

VYN -F:N? )]
BERBEERT2(H)

HHEFERERETE  AEEEVBIR
BHRHFER  EeSHBERFORIBHZER
ERER BRERSEZERR - GEREH
N AREEREBBES TR/ AKITER
IR TE - RIEE T A6 R ROR KRR

oo -
ZoN

Improving the awareness of

‘! pandemic prevention
REBhEERE

Enhancing pandemic prevention
in office
pilI N p ey

e Spreading hygiene recommendations and updates e Regularly disinfecting and cleaning the office and

on the pandemic to staff via email and notice boards
in due course to remind them to maintain personal
hygiene

o FRBH NERRERME TEEREEEZ
RIBEHFHE - RESE TRIFEAGE

maintaining the cleanliness of frequently touched
surfaces such as door handles, furniture and shared
items

Requiring employees to conduct daily temperature
checks and wear masks in the office area

Requiring employees to report any discomfort and/or
symptoms and to stay home for appropriate medical
assistance

EHETHAZESNER  RELEEBRE
BFEEE Pt F RAREEYA

s ZRXBTHRETERRA - XNPARIBME D

Z

s REBTETHRETER LHHREBEREE

HEFRIFBAN XREFXDSKAENERED

q* Keeping social distance
REFHE T IE R

Providing materials for pandemic
preventlon
HEr R E

e Replacing face-to-face business meetings with online
meetings or phone meetings

e If physical meetings or events are required,
reminding employees to strengthen personal hygiene
and maintain appropriate social distance during
meals and meetings

s U LEZNEFEBZDREAHENELSH

MBHLFERERNEY  REETREBEAS

£ ERERSERRFEE LR

Providing alcohol-based handrubs and supplemental
masks in the workplace

Organising a special warmth campaign for pandemic
prevention and control, distributing antigen test

kits, thermometers, medical health kits and other

emergency materials, as well as offering condolences
to four workers working at foreign locations
RI(ESMiRUBRBETF R MR O SHE
,.%H,%ﬁkfl PiEREELTE - BRNRHALE - 8
B BERRASSFIVE  THILREMBT
FRAE T
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SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT PERFORMANCE FOR
THE YEAR (Continued)

People-oriented (Continued)
Occupational Health and Safety (Continued)

Given that the business operation of the Group is mainly office work,
there is no significant risk of occupational hazards. The Group has strictly
complied with relevant laws and regulations and no work-related injuries
or work-related fatalities occurred during the Reporting Period.

FENEEZRRERE @

LA B2 (13)
BEEBEET D (E)

ERNAFENEBELETER/RMAETHE
VTARBEANBELERR  AKE-H®K
EREBERESR  RBSHAREHEEM
THEHRFETIRT =M -

2022 2021 2020
—=E=-= —EC-—F —EEF
Work-related fatalities in the past  BE=F (BEFREH) &
three years (including Reporting TYEABRESE T AR
Period) 0 0 0
Lost days due to work-related TEBBRENTIERE
injuries 0 0 0
Employment Management ERERE
Recruitment, Promotion and Dismissal B - EARRE

The Group carries out the recruitment and promotion work in accordance
with the principle of “meritorious” in order to build an excellent team
of talents. The Recruitment Policies requires the implementation of an
open and equal recruitment process, with selection of talents based on
objective criteria such as work experience, education and ability. We have
established a staff appraisal and evaluation mechanism to assess the
performance and results of our staff in a comprehensive and objective
manner. At the beginning of each year, the Group discusses with our
employees on their main areas of responsibility and work objectives and
records them. At the end of the year, the Group evaluates the overall
and specific performance of our employees for the Human Resources
Department to consider promotion and salary adjustment. For employees
who commit serious violations of discipline such as misconduct, fraud or
disloyalty, providing false information, falsifying documents or frequently
neglecting their duties, the Group will terminate their employment and
settle their salaries in accordance with relevant laws and regulations and
internal regulations.
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SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT PERFORMANCE FOR
THE YEAR (Continued)

People-oriented (Continued)
Employment Management (Continued)
Compensation, Other Benefits and Welfare

The Group strives to attract, reward and retain employees by providing
them with competitive and fair remuneration packages through sound
human resources management. We regularly review and adjust the salary
of our employees based on their attendance record, performance, length
of service, qualifications, general market conditions and other factors
to enhance their work engagement and satisfaction. In addition, the
Group will provide bonuses and other development opportunities at its
discretion based on our business development, employee contributions
and attendance performance.

The Group is concerned about the well-being of its employees and
provides fair and attractive staff treatment and benefits. In addition to the
Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF") scheme for Hong Kong employees
and the "Five Insurance and One Fund” (including endowment
insurance, medical insurance, unemployment insurance, employment
injury insurance, maternity insurance and housing provident fund) for
employees in Mainland China, the Group also provides employee benefits
in the form of medical allowance, employee labour insurance and dental
care scheme. In addition, we show our care for our employees and
enhance their sense of belonging through employee recognition and
incentive programmes, such as annual service awards, wedding gifts and
child birth gifts, to build a family friendly corporate culture.

Working Hours and Rest Periods

In order to effectively protect the rights and interests of our employees,
the Group specifies the working hours of our employees in the Employee
Handbook and employment contracts. On the basis of the standard
working hours system, we reasonably arrange shifts and/or calculate
working hours in accordance with the nature of the position and
relevant laws and regulations, and provide overtime compensation or
compensatory leave for employees who work overtime to ensure that
employees get sufficient rest. In addition to statutory holidays and paid
annual leave, employees are also entitled to sick leave, marriage leave,
bereavement leave, maternity leave, paternity leave and other leave.

RE HEREAHRS
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SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT PERFORMANCE FOR
THE YEAR (Continued)

People-oriented (Continued)
Employment Management (Continued)
Equal Opportunities, Diversity and Anti-discrimination

The Group promotes equal opportunity as well as diversity and inclusion
development, and promotes equal employment opportunities and
treatment in accordance with the Anti-Discrimination Policies. The Group
ensures that all employment processes and treatment do not involve
any discrimination on the grounds of age, gender, sexual orientation,
disability, race, marital status, religion or political background in order
to create a respectful work environment. Employees can report any
suspected violation of personal rights to the management through
various communication channels, such as internal communication e-mail.

Labour Standards

The Group respects basic human rights and is committed to eliminating
child labour and any form of forced labour. To protect the legitimate
rights of our employees, we stringently abide by the relevant laws and
regulations and emphasize compliant employment in our recruitment
policy in the Employee Handbook. During the recruitment process,
the Group requires the Human Resources Department to conduct
background checks on job applicants and verify the validity of their
identification documents to confirm that the employees reach legal
working age and to prevent employment of illegal workers. We also
strictly prohibit forced labour practice and clearly state the employment
terms in the employment contracts signed with all employees to
ensure that employees are legally and voluntarily employed. The Group
welcomes employees to report to the management any situation
that may undermine their rights and interests through different
communication channels. In case of suspected violations or breaches of
labour standards, the Group will immediately stop the work of relevant
employee and conduct in-depth investigation for review and correction
to prevent the recurrence of similar incidents.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT PERFORMANCE FOR
THE YEAR (Continued)

People-oriented (Continued)
Employment Management (Continued)
As of 31 December 2022, the Group has a total of 50 employees, all of

which are full-time employees, and hires 4 other workers. Breakdown of
relevant employment data is set out in the below table:

RE HEREAHRS

FENEEZRRERE @

AN B2 ()
EEEE(E)
HE T+ -_A=+—H  K&£BH

50281 MERBET  ZER4IBEME
8 o TRIVRERBRFERERA :

Ratio of

Number of Turnover newly hired

Employees rate (%)'" employees (%)?

2022 MABTHER HABBIHLR

—E-C ET A (%)" (%)?

Total 50 26.0% 34.0%
HET

By gender Male Xl 30 23.3% 36.7%

LR85 Female oqid 20 30.0% 30.0%

By age group Below 30 305 AT 8 0% 12.5%

REWRARE 5 30 to 50 30%E507% 40 32.5% 40.0%

Over 50 50BR A 1= 2 0% 0%

By employment rank  Senior management SMERAB 4 0% 50.0%

LA 5 Middle management ~ FEREEAB 6 0% 66.7%

General staff —RET 40 32.5% 27.5%

By geographical Hong Kong BE 2 100% 100%

region Mainland China R EIAH 48 10.4% 31.3%

ZiEmE o

! Turnover rate = (Number of employees resigned in the category/total number of
employees in the category) x 100%

2 Ratio of new employees = (Number of new employees in the category/total
number of employees in the category) x 100%

! AAETHFR=(ZERIETAE ZEET
)X 100%

2 HABETHFE=(ZHTABETAE %58
BT#2)X 100%
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SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT PERFORMANCE FOR
THE YEAR (Continued)

People-oriented (Continued)
Employment Management (Continued)
Training and Development

The Group believes that continuous development and training of
employees are key to supporting the long-term development of our
business. Therefore, we are committed to promoting talent cultivation
and staff career development planning to enhance the professional
skills and performance of our employees through diversified and equal
training and development opportunities. We continue to invest resources
in providing comprehensive training for employee at different levels,
including induction training, comprehensive training, departmental
training and external training, in order to promote joint development of
employees and the Group.

In line with business development and internal needs, relevant
departments or Human Resources Department conduct professional
training courses and activities from time to time, such as inviting experts
to conduct seminars to help employees master management systems and
regulations, market trends and industry-related professional knowledge.
At the same time, the Group also collects feedback from the trainees
after the completion of training for evaluation of its effectiveness so
as to conduct targeted improvement on the future training programs.
In 2022, the Group actively organised staff training activities, which
included not only regular education and training by employment level,
but also training on digital transformation, training on financial sharing
services and application, smart electric passenger vehicles and seminars
on finance, etc.
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SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT PERFORMANCE FOR

THE YEAR (Continued)
People-oriented (Continued)
Employment Management (Continued)

Training and Development (Continued)
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FENEEZRRERE @

BLABZ (3

B 1R EE (#)

AR B R ()

Percentage of

Average
training hours

employees per employee
trained (%)? (hour)?
ZIET BB IFS
2022 BIL FZIRE
—E-= (%)3 (/NEF)e
Total
#Et 90.0% 15.59
By gender Male S 93.3% 9.27
RIERIE Female 2z 85.0% 25.08
By employment level Senior management BMERAB 100% 15.50
HETHERE S Middle management FRERAE 100% 9.70
General staff —RET 87.5% 16.49
3 Percentage of employees trained = (Number of employees trained in the RMNETEHAH=(ZEETTIIANE ZHE
category/total number of employees in the category) x 100% THZ)X 100%
4 Average training hours per employee = (Total training hours of employees in the — * Gy BT FHZINEFE=ZHEE8THETINE

category/total number of employees in the category)

BB THE)

2025 EHRE BEREXSRBRBEEEERAT

75



76

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE dHEREARE

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT PERFORMANCE FOR
THE YEAR (Continued)

Ethical Operation
Anti-corruption

The Group believes that upholding high standards of business integrity
is the cornerstone of establishing long-term business development and
it hence does not tolerate any form of bribery, extortion, fraud, money
laundering and other corruption or unethical practice. To promote
integrity building and business discipline, we strictly comply with relevant
laws and regulations and implement various corruption prevention
policies through our anti-corruption management system to prevent
the risk of corruption and malpractice in all aspects. The Group is
committed to creating an working atmosphere with integrity. In addition
to implementing the following anti-corruption policies and measures, we
also regularly review our internal disciplinary code and anti-corruption
system to ensure their effectiveness.

FENEEZRRERE @

k&S

AEBERERETERENAEAGEEETE
BREZRNEL  SBTEREMNEAN
iR BEERARBEEE SHTER
TR REERAERLARLE  RAK
REREBERERER  BBAHEEERGE
MEEBEBERE - 25 MHHBESEENE
o REBEBNEERZLERE  BRT%E
EUTHRESHERER - EBREA
MR TARRESHE - BEREERIE -

Anti-corruption Guidelines

RESES

4

and anti-commercial bribery business ethics

management review to prevent conflicts of interest

of both parties with clear guidelines for anti-corruption management

RMHES

s ZBRBTIHMABAIESRERIBEENSERNBMADKEEER  ARMNEERNEDRYA - AANEREEH

BERHEEEEN  UEHNaER

o 2RAMEBHERICRTNGRRET) - WEMHNL EERRBRELSEER -

Signing the Anti-Commercial Bribery Agreement with all Mainland China employees to promote anti-corruption

Establishing a clear code of conduct in the Employee Handbook and employee contracts, including strict prohibition
on accepting or requesting unnecessary hospitality and gifts, such as presents, accommodation or food supplies
Requiring employees to complete a written statement on conflict of interest for all relevant interests or relationships
that may involve an actual or potential conflict of interest, and report it to the Human Resources Department for

Requiring business partners to sign the Integrity Clause in their contracts to protect the rights and responsibilities

HAPEANBE THRI(IRBEBRRBERE)  RERESAREEBRNOEEBEET
PCEIFM RETAOTHIERENTRTR  BREZRILBRIVGENREMEGRME - 2% - EEk
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SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT PERFORMANCE FOR FEMFEEERE @
THE YEAR (Continued)

Ethical Operation (Continued) EEEE@
Anti-corruption (Continued) RES ()

Whistleblowing Channels
BHRE

¢ Handling all reports of corruption seriously in accordance with the report management policy

e Encouraging employees or stakeholders to report misconduct, either anonymously or in real names, by phone, e-mail
and letter

e Conducting all reporting procedures in a confidential manner to protect the personal information and legitimate
interests of the whistleblower and prevent any unfair treatment and retaliation against the whistleblower

e Appointing designated personnel or setting up special committees to verify and investigate reports upon receipt,
and take timely remedial measures when necessary

¢ Depending on the seriousness of the case, disciplinary action will be taken against the relevant personnel or the
case will be referred to the judicial authorities for further handling

o MIBRWEEHE BEREMEETER

s HBETHRMENELRXELGN IR - BRER SHRERHEREBRTETR

o LREANETHARERF  RESRENBAAGE LA EER  ILRREIDNERMAIRFFERRE

s ERERBREEZEIRTEABIKNIFIIEES  #TEBRELADLT - LER REFRRFERER

s BIRMMEBEL - HEBABELLRZE D IHBBRNBEERVEKBIEE — TR

Anti-corruption Culture
REFXE

e Conducting an integrity holiday reminder on the eve of the holidays to enhance the awareness of corruption
prevention

¢ Providing regular anti-corruption training to employees and the Board to raise awareness and understanding of
business ethics and related laws and regulations.

o BREIF Y FRFRZBEHIRE - LU EEH
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SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT PERFORMANCE FOR
THE YEAR (Continued)

Ethical Operation (Continued)
Anti-corruption (Continued)

2022
—E-CF

FENEEZRRERE @

Average hours of anti-corruption training provided
to employees

Average hours of anti-corruption training provided
to the directors
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Service Responsibility

As a professional services management enterprise, the Group believes
that providing stable and quality customer services is exceptionally
crucial to the Group’s reputation and long-term business development.
Regarding the needs and expectation of our customers as the basis, we
strive to continuously improve the quality of our services and optimise
the customer experience.

Quality Management

The Group is committed to providing efficient, professional and high
standard services to its customers. Through the quality management
system, the Group implements service quality management, project
control and monitoring mechanism, customer data management
and internal risk management control, etc., to continuously enhance
customer satisfaction through effective service quality control. Under the
systematic quality management system, the Group strives to reduce the
risk of business operation and service responsibility.

Customer Service

The Group attaches importance to customers’ opinions and actively
collects feedback from customers on service quality in order to improve
service standards and customer satisfaction. To handle customer
complaints in a timely manner, a dedicated department of the Group
will reply the complaints on the same day and take appropriate actions
immediately, including conducting analysis and assessment and
implementing remedial measures to resolve the problems, as well as
conducting investigation and review to implement preventive measures.
During the Reporting Period, the Group did not receive any complaints.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT PERFORMANCE FOR
THE YEAR (Continued)

Ethical Operation (Continued)
Service Responsibility (Continued)
Protection of Customer Privacy and Intellectual Property Rights

The Group recognises the importance of intellectual property rights and
privacy of customers and complies with relevant laws and regulations to
protect the intellectual property rights and data security involved in all of
its operations, so as to prevent the interests of the Group and relevant
stakeholders from being infringed. Our employment contracts and
Confidentiality Agreement clearly define the confidentiality obligations
and responsibilities of all employees, and confidential information is
handled on a “need-to-know” basis, only authorised personnel have
access to confidential data. Personnel who violate regulations of personal
privacy or intellectual property rights may be subject to disciplinary
action, including verbal warning, written warning and dismissal, and shall
assume relevant legal liabilities.

To further enhance data security, the Group encrypts personal
identification numbers and mobile phone numbers stored in the data
system and sets strict permissions to prevent leakage of sensitive
information. In response to cybersecurity threats, we have also
implemented a series of protection measures to enhance cybersecurity to
ensure the completeness and privacy of stable services and data.

RE HEREAHRS

FENEEZRRERE @

BEEE®
AR 75 25 F (1)
REEFILERABERE

AEERANBERLREFPLENERN
RERBMEREARERFLEP S ROM
HEEEBELZEZ  BHLEASEA S KA
FOENEZRZRIEL - RANURREA L)
FARBEWHZ) PARREME B THRERR
MEL  NIFENEINEERIERTER
REERABNESHNFRRZHE - 2R
EARLFRS A BEEREHAB LRI L
R BRARLEE ZTHEHEEMALK -
WHARBREREE -

RE—TMERBELZE  AEEHBERAR
NARFHEAFOHERRTFHRBBNEF
- ZRRARREEBNER  HEGRE
Bt - SRR L 2HE  RATER—
ZOREREENBREGE L 2 - ARRIBER
R BIRH T BB -

Enhancing network boundary Classifying different
security domains

BoTEREE

isolation protection

hO 58 48 4% R SRR RERL &

Real-time network
traffic monitoring
Wiz REBREE

Installing firewall, anti-virus wall, Classifying different functional
intrusion monitoring and other
security protection at the Internet
exit to block possible cyberattacks in
accordance with the requirements
of 3-level Graded Protection.
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cyberattacks.

modules of the system into different
security domains to prevent lateral
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Monitoring all traffic in and out of
the data system to detect and block
malicious network behaviors in a
timely manner.
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SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT PERFORMANCE FOR
THE YEAR (Continued)

Ethical Operation (Continued)
Supply Chain Management

We place emphasis on management of suppliers to maintain quality
services and sound operation, thereby enhancing their sustainability
performance. The Procurement Guidelines of the Group clearly set out
the criteria and procedures of selecting suppliers and intermediaries as
well as relevant management work, and strictly follow the following five
basic principles to develop cooperation relationships with suitable and
high quality business partners.

Classification
management
and focusing on
effectiveness
DB
FEEX

The Group implements classification management of procurement
projects and adopts reasonable procurement methods for different
projects to ensure the effectiveness and efficiency of procurement
management. The Group conducts rigorous evaluation in a sequential
manner, not only taking into account cost and quality, but also internal
management system, training qualification, equipment condition,
service quality, social reputation, after-sales service and other relevant
professional skills to select suppliers that meet the criteria. In order
to ensure the compliance of quality, stability and reliability of the
procurement products, the Group continuously monitors the suppliers,
regularly evaluates their performance and maintains close contact with
each supplier to identify the social and environmental impact of their
production or supply chain. During the Reporting Period, the Group
engaged a total of 33 suppliers from Mainland China, including suppliers
from Hebei province, Beijing, Tianjin and Anhui province, etc., which
corresponding practices have applied to suppliers of the same category.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT PERFORMANCE FOR
THE YEAR (Continued)

Ethical Operation (Continued)
Supply Chain Management (Continued)
Environmental and Social Risk Management

The Group focuses on managing operational and governance risks in
the supply chain and has formulated a series of risk response strategies
and management procedures of supply chain, such as the Management
Procedures of Credit Exposure in the Administrative Measures on Credit
Exposure of Suppliers, to conduct daily monitoring and regular analysis
on credit suppliers in order to effectively prevent, identify and respond to
related environmental and social risks. In addition, we regularly conduct
review on comprehensive supply chain management system, including
identification of potential environmental and social risks as well as
systemic loopholes, to further promote stable operation of the supply
chain.

Fair and Open Procurement

We advocate fair competition and insist on conducting fair and open
procurement. The Group selects qualified intermediaries and suppliers
by adopting price comparison, invitation to tender or open tender in
strict accordance with the Procurement Guidelines to ensure that the
process of selecting suppliers is legal and compliant and the interests
of both parties are protected. The Group has also set business ethics
standards for suppliers and encourages suppliers to develop relevant
management processes with reference to the policies of the Group to
ensure that its business partners maintain good business ethics. In case
of non-compliance by suppliers, the Group will suspend cooperation with
them until they take corrective measures to improve the situation, and
will consider terminating cooperation with suppliers who are persistently
substandard to reduce social risks in the supply chain.
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SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT PERFORMANCE FOR
THE YEAR (Continued)

Ethical Operation (Continued)
Supply Chain Management (Continued)
Green Procurement

To build a sustainable value chain, we strive to ensure maintaining
consistent sustainable development philosophy with our intermediaries
and suppliers. The Group has strengthened our supply chain
management practice to promote “green procurement” and give priority
to environmentally friendly products with lower carbon emissions. The
Procurement Guidelines require to consider the environmental protection
policies of suppliers in the selection process to ensure that the products
and services purchased are of high quality, reasonably priced and meet
the environmental requirements of the Group. Under the same price and
quality, the Group will prioritise the purchase of more environmental
friendly or less polluting products in order to minimise the impact on
the environment in our operations. In addition, we will regularly review
the environmental performance of our suppliers and encourage the
implementation of energy saving and carbon reduction measures to
jointly promote environmental protection.

Environmental Protection

The Group regards environmental protection as an important corporate
responsibility and promotes the reduction of negative environmental
impacts from its business operations. The Group has established
the Environmental Policy Statement to guide the formulation and
implementation of environmental management policies and measures
to improve energy consumption and reduce pollutant emissions through
monitoring the performance of energy consumption, enhancing
efficiency of the use of resources, encouraging recycling of resources,
creating a healthy and safe working environment, reducing the impact of
climate change and enhancing employees’ awareness of environmental
protection. The Group will continuously identify and assess potential
material risks related to the environment and regularly review the
relevance and effectiveness of environmental management in order to
promote the Group’s green and sustainable development.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT PERFORMANCE FOR
THE YEAR (Continued)

Environmental Protection (Continued)

In order to conserve the environment, the Group is currently
conducting further review and analysis of various emissions and
resource consumption data to ensure that comprehensive and accurate
guantitative data are used to formulate appropriate targets and
implementation plans for emission reduction, energy- and resource-
saving. The Group will disclose the relevant progress and results in due
course in order to improve its environmental management and relevant
performance in a systematic manner.

Use of Resources

The Group understands the importance of protecting limited natural
resources and is committed to reducing resource wastage in its daily
operations. The Group has formulated and implemented various policies
and measures to manage the use of resources in order to promote
energy saving and optimise the use of resources. During the Reporting
Period, the major resource consumption of the Group’s operation were
electricity, water, paper and petrol. Based on the principle of reasonable
use of resources, the Group has strengthened the monitoring of different
types of resource consumption and actively promoted employees’
environmental awareness to reduce unnecessary consumption of
resources in order to achieve green operation.
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SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT PERFORMANCE FOR
THE YEAR (Continued)

Environmental Protection (Continued)
Use of Resources (Continued)
Energy Efficiency

The energy consumption of the Group is mainly from electricity
consumption from offices and vehicle fuel, it therefore focuses on
improving operational process and enhancing energy efficiency.
The Group has adopted the following electricity saving measures to
encourage employees to take practical actions to promote energy saving
and reduce carbon footprint:

o Maintain indoor temperature at between 24T and 26T for
comfort and energy-saving;

. Use automated electricity management systems;

o Encourage employees to switch off office appliances and devices,
such as air conditioners, computers, personal electronic devices and
common office equipment after work or when not in use;

o Purchase office equipment and electrical appliances with higher
energy efficiency such as those with a "Grade 1 energy label" or
"China Energy Label", to reduce the use of electricity; and

o Put up “green reminders” and energy-saving signs near office
equipment, light switches and main entrance to further enhance
employees’ environmental awareness.

In order to continuously improve energy performance, the Group
maintains ongoing monitoring of energy usage and regularly reports to
the management on the progress and performance of various energy
saving and carbon reduction initiatives for monitoring, facilitating the
formulation improvement measures and adjustment of energy saving
plans in accordance with the actual situation, thereby minimising the
impact of the Group’s operations on the environment.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT PERFORMANCE FOR
THE YEAR (Continued)

Environmental Protection (Continued)
Use of Resources (Continued)
Energy Efficiency (Continued)

During the Reporting Period, the total energy consumption of the Group
was 70.10 MWh, representing a decrease of 26% as compared with
previous years. Of which, the electricity consumption of the Group was
47.44 MWh, while petrol consumption during the Reporting Period was
22.66 MWh. The overall energy intensity was 1.40 MWh per employee,
representing a decrease of 31% as compared with the previous year.
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2022 2021

—E-C T

Petrol consumption (MWh) REREE G ER) 22.66 43.04

Electricity consumption (MWh) B EEE KRR 47.44 55.34

Total energy consumption (MWh) BEREE 2 OKELE) 70.10 95.09
Energy consumption intensity BEREREEE KRR,/ §8ET)

(MWh/employee) 1.40 2.02

Water Conservation

Considering the nature of its business, the Group’s daily water
consumption is mainly water use at offices and drinking water for
employees. The Group's water is from the municipal water supply and it
did not encounter any issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose. To
enhance the efficiency of use of water resources, the Group has been
promoting water conservation among its employees, such as posting
water conservation signs in pantries and toilets to enhance awareness of
water conservation, and regularly inspecting water-consuming equipment
to avoid wasting water resources.
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SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT PERFORMANCE FOR
THE YEAR (Continued)

Environmental Protection (Continued)

Use of Resources (Continued)

Water Conservation (Continued)

During the Reporting Period, the total water consumption of the Group

was 6.00 cubic metres, with an intensity of 0.12 cubic metre per
employee. Detailed data are as follows:
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Total water consumption (m3) IKEREEFEE (LK) 6.00 13.25
Water consumption intensity (m*/employee) /K& REREBRE I H K SFLETL) 0.12 0.28

Paper Consumption

The Group has been practicing green office practice and actively
promoting digital and paperless workplace to reduce paper consumption
in the office. The Group encourages its employees to conserve paper,
including careful consideration before printing documents and using
electronic transmission as far as possible; choosing double-sided printing
and reusing single-sided printouts; and setting up waste paper recycling
bins to collect paper for recycling in order to reduce unnecessary
consumption and waste.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s total paper consumption was
1.90 tonnes, with an intensity of 0.04 tonnes per employee. Detailed
data are as follows:
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2022 2021
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Total paper consumption (tonne) HoRBIEFEE (BR) 1.90 0.83
Paper consumption intensity (tonne/employee) #R3REFEZE (B, FEZET) 0.04 0.02
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT PERFORMANCE FOR
THE YEAR (Continued)

Environmental Protection (Continued)
Emissions Management

Given that its business nature is office-based operation, the Group is not
involved in significant pollutant emissions and has limited impact on the
natural environment. Emissions generated by the Group are mainly from
office electricity consumption, vehicle fuel consumption and business
travel. To protect the environment, the Group not only continues to
implement measures to conserve energy and enhance energy efficiency,
but also encourages its employees to take public transportation, use
videoconferencing or teleconferencing to replace unnecessary business
trips, regularly maintain vehicles and inspect fuel efficiency to reduce
emissions and greenhouse gas (“GHG") emission.

GHG and Air Emissions

The Group continuously monitors GHG emission data to make accurate
assessment and formulate targeted carbon reduction measures. During
the Reporting Period, the Group’s total GHG emissions amounted to
44.34 tCOse, with an intensity of 0.89 tCO,e/employee, representing
a decrease of 25% and 29% compared with the previous year,
respectively. Detailed figures are as follows:
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GHG emissions 2022 2021
BEREHEK —=E-= —E-—fF
Scope 1 (tCO,e) HgE—(WE-_ElhzE=2 6.22 13.57
Scope 2 (tCO,e) #E—-(M_StREE) 30.22 35.32
Scope 3 (tCO,e) HE=(W_athEE 7.90 10.45
Total GHG emissions (tCO,e) RERBENNEM _ALREE) 44.34 59.34
GHG emissions intensity (tCO,e/employee) BEREHMEE

(E-—ffbixg e S88I) 0.89 1.26
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RE dHEREARE

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT PERFORMANCE FOR
THE YEAR (Continued)

Environmental Protection (Continued)
Emissions Management (Continued)
GHG and Air Emissions (Continued)

The Group recognises the negative impact brought by air pollution on
the environment and human health and continuously promotes green
travel and minimises the use of private cars, while considering increasing
the use of webconferencing or teleconferencing to reduce vehicle-related
emissions. During the Reporting Period, the Group’s air emissions were
mainly from vehicles. Detailed figures are as follows:
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Air emissions 2022 2021
BERBERK —E2-= —T-—F
Nitrogen oxides (kg) RELY(TR) 3.34 1.04
Sulphur oxides (kg) wmELY (T52) 0.03 0.082
Respiratory suspended particles (kg) BOZREN (T 52) 0.31 0.11

Waste

Waste produced by the Group during its daily operations was mainly
domestic waste and office waste produced by our employees, as well
as a small amount of hazardous waste such as toner cartridges and ink
cartridges, which were handed over to qualified recyclers for centralized
collection and disposal. To reduce the negative impact of waste on
the environment, the Group has adopted relevant waste management
measures to ensure proper disposal of waste while promoting waste
reduction at source. For example, recycling bins are placed next to
printers, in workplaces and pantries to sort and collect paper, metal and
plastic for recycling, so as to reduce the amount of waste and optimise
use of resources.

As the Group's business does not involve highly polluting activities, the
waste generated does not have material impact on the environment. In
addition, as waste is not an issue of high importance to stakeholders, it
is not materially relevant to the Group and the relevant data will not be
disclosed.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT PERFORMANCE FOR
THE YEAR (Continued)

Environmental Protection (Continued)
Climate Change

The Group is aware that climate change will affect the stable
development of its business in the long run. Committed to pay attention
to the impact of climate change in its Environmental Policy Statement,
the Group has been monitoring the updates of climate change-related
policies and regulations in different regions in order to identify and
address the potential risks and opportunities related to climate change.
To incorporate climate change into our business operations, the Group
strives to reduce the carbon footprint of our operations and promote
combating climate change through energy saving and emission reduction
measures as well as raising environmental awareness among our
employees.

As the impact of climate change has become more frequent and severe
in recent years, to avoid or minimise the damage caused by extreme
weather events to its daily operations, the Group has set out relevant
contingency measures in the Employee Handbook, including work
arrangement when typhoon and rainstorm warnings are in effect, in
order to protect the safety of employees. The Group will continue to
review its existing management policies and measures to strengthen its
response to climate-related risks in the future.

Environment and Natural Resources

Given the nature of its business, the Group’s operations will not have
material impact on the ecological environment and natural resources.
However, as a member of society, the Group continues to pay attention
to environmental protection and actively promotes environmental
awareness. The Group uses itself as a starting point to promote green
practice in its daily operations and utilise its influence to advocate
environmental awareness and actions to its employees, suppliers and the
industry. Meanwhile, the Group conducts annual review, identification
and assessment of environmental and natural resource risks related to
its operations in order to formulate appropriate countermeasures to
enhance the effectiveness of environmental management.

The Group will continue to implement the concept of green development
and make every effort to minimise the possible negative impact of its
business on the environment and natural resources to ensure that the
Group maintains a good balance of economic, environmental and social
performance while developing its business.
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SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT PERFORMANCE FOR
THE YEAR (Continued)

Contributing to the Society

The Group places great importance on fulfilling its corporate social
responsibility and promoting sustainable development of the society
through supporting community development. By paying continuous
attention to the development and needs of the communities in which we
operate, the Group contributes to the society utilising its resources and
encourages its employees to participate in community activities together,
while actively promoting the development of the industry.

In order to promote the development of environmental protection in
the communities, the Group supported the green charity activities in the
communities where it operates and organised 47 employees in Beijing
to participate in community waste sorting watchdog activities during
the Reporting Period. The Group’s volunteers stationed at the waste
sorting bins in the local community to supervise and manage the waste
classification process, including introducing the basic methods of waste
sorting, rectifying the incorrect waste classification of local residents,
and providing guidance on the correct way of waste classification and
disposal, so as to enhance the residents’ understanding of waste sorting
and recycling. In this way, the Group not only promotes the concept of
green, low-carbon and environmental protection to the local community,
but also raises employees’ environmental awareness and helps build a
green and harmonious ecological environment.

Looking ahead, the Group will continue to actively participate in work
service and charity fundraising activities to express its care for the needy
in the community, and explore more ways of community investment to
create positive impact for the community with its resources.
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APPENDIX Bf &%

1. SUMMARY OF ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE 1. BREBBERXRERFBE
DATA

Statistics 2022 2021 2020 Unit

GrEHEE —E-—fF —E-—fF —ECTF HBf

GHG emissions®

BEREERC

Scope 1° 6.22 13.57 2428 tCOe

#HE—° WS LIRE S

Scope 27 30.22 35.32 64.63 tCO.e

#HE—7 W LiREE

Scope 38 7.90 10.45 28.45 tCOe

HE=:® WS LIREE

Total GHG emissions 44.34 59.34 117.36  tCOLe

RERBELINE WS CEE

GHG emissions intensity 0.89 1.26 2.26  tCO,e/employee

BERBHNEE W —E(cREE
BHET

Air emissions’®

BER B

Nitrogen oxides 3.34 1.04 417 Kg

p=tla) T

Sulphur oxides 0.03 0.082 0.13 Kg

nE=kla) T

Respiratory suspended particles 0.31 0.11 0.31 Kg

FROF TR T

Energy consumption™

BEIFUH #E

Direct energy consumption: Petrol 22.66 43.04 86.91 Mwh"

BERERERE TR JE B

Indirect energy consumption: Electricity 47.44 55.34 74.89 MWh

FRKEERERE - 8 IR FL I

Total energy consumption 70.10 95.09 161.80 MWh

BEREHFEE IR LI

Energy consumption intensity 1.40 2.02 3.11  MWh/employee

BEREREEE KRR,/ BHET

Resource consumption

BEFHEE

Total water consumption'? 6.00 13.25 272.67 m?

IKERAEHFEE AV

Water consumption Intensity 0.12 0.28 5.24  m3employee

IKETREREE NHEKR/BRET

Total paper consumption 1.90 0.83 0.82 Tonne

MORAEERES Mg

Paper consumption intensity 0.04 0.02 0.02 Tonne/employee

MEREREE Wi/ BEET
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B

HEREREE

APPENDIX (continued)

10

11

12

SUMMARY OF ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE
DATA (Continued)

The Group’s GHG emissions are mainly from electricity consumption and vehicle
fuel, the calculation is mainly with reference to the Stock Exchange’s “How to
prepare an ESG Report Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs”,
the electricity emission factors published in Hongkong Electric's “Sustainability
Report” and the average emission factors for electricity published by the Ministry
of Ecology and Environment of the People’s Republic of China.

Scope 1 represents direct GHG emission, including mobile sources such as
vehicles in Hong Kong offices and in Mainland China.

Scope 2 represents energy indirect GHG emission, including purchased electricity
from all operating points.

Scope 3 represents other indirect GHG emissions, including business travel,
primarily involving air travel.

The calculation of emissions mainly refers to the emission factors listed in the
Stock Exchange’s “"How to prepare an ESG Report Appendix 2: Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs” and the “Technical Guidelines for the
Preparation of Air Emissions Inventory for Road Vehicles” of the Ministry of
Ecology and Environment of the People’s Republic of China.

The Group's energy use is mainly derived from petrol and electricity consumption
and its overall energy consumption is calculated mainly with reference to the
relevant conversion factors set out in the Stock Exchange’s “How to prepare an
ESG Report Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs".

The unit of petrol is restated from litres to MWh for 2021 and 2022 for
comparison purposes.

The water supply of certain offices is managed by property companies, which
raw data on the amount of water consumed cannot be provided.
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APPENDIX (Continued) Ff 5% )

2. ESG Report Index 2. ESGHREARRZRS

A1 Emissions

23587

General Disclosure

—RRIE

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land,

and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

BHBERLREREBEN  FUKR LT EEREEEEVNELS

Hy :

(@) B5R « &

(b) EBFHETABEATENEBMEZLROINER -

60, 63, 82,
87-88

The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

BE R M ARR P R BUE -

88, 91

A1.2

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions and
intensity.
BEEE) R REZ (BE)RERBHEREREE -

87, 91

A1.3

Total hazardous waste produced and intensity.

PRELAEERMBENTE -

88

Al.4

Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity.
ELBREEEDEERTE -

88

Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
FIFTET L VBEE B IR R AEDE L B IEFTERIAI P8

82

Al.6

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, and a
description of reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
BB EEREETEEYMNG L RIEAMIVHOREEERAEDEL
B iZETEREA S8 -

88
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APPENDIX (Continued) Ff 5% )

2. ESG Report Index (Continued) 2. ESGHRERNBZES| (@)

A2 Use of Resources

HR A

General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw | 63, 82-86

—MRIREE materials.

BERERER(BIEER - K REAMRMED B EBER -

A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total and intensity.#% | 85, 91
BRESNEERSEZERERERTE -

A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity. 86, 91
BEKERFEE o

A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve | 82
them.

AL PRET SZ BV BE IR B e B 1R R R IERE L B AR PREREREY 2258 -

A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for | 82, 85
purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
FUSKEGE A OR BRI B ERIERE - AR AR B R RAESE
LE B IRPTERERE) 2 BR -

A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products and with reference to per | Given its
unit produced. business
B MTAREMRNEERSEESMGE - nature, the

Group's daily
operation

do not have
material
relevance to
packaging
material.
ENEBIE
g AEEZ
HEZ2EHRG
ML EE
PN
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APPENDIX (Continued) Ff 5% )

2.

A3 The Environment and Natural Resources

BERRXRER

ESG Report Index (Continued) 2. ESGHRERAZRS| (&)

General Disclosure

—RRIE

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on the environment and | 63, 82, 89
natural resources.

BMIEBETAHRERRABERENEAZENEE -

A3.1

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and | 89
natural resources and the actions taken to manage them.
X RS HRBERRARERNEATERDKNERERTENTH -

A4 Climate Change
RIRE1{E

General Disclosure

—RRIE

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues | 82, 89
which have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer.

BRI MEE ORI EHBRITAEEXENEARBKRABEENREK -

A4

Description of the significant climate-related issues which have impacted, and | 89
those which may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.

WK RAREHBRTAELZENEARREABEE - REHTH -

B1 Employment
E®

General Disclosure

—RIE

Information on: 60-61, 67,

(a) the policies; and 70-72

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working

hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, antidiscrimination, and other

benefits and welfare.

EAZMERE  BREREA  TERHS - RE - TERe - 2ol R

BIA R B A58 B F ey

(@) B &

(b) BFHETABEAZENEMEZRLROINER -
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APPENDIX (Continued) Ff 5% )

2. ESG Report Index (Continued) 2. ESGHRERBZESI @)

—RIE

work. Description of training activities.

BRARTHE B BT TIERE M MBI BUER - fitE7ES -

B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and geographical | 73
region.
ZMR - EIEEAL - FRAER MRS SNESAR
B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region. 73
RMRI - FlAR Rt EI D HEEMKLE -
B2 Health and Safety
BEEZZ
General Disclosure Information on: 60-61, 67-70
— M E (a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees
from occupational hazards.
FHAREZE2THERBELREEEHEBELEEN
(@ B&E: &k
(b) ETHETABEATENBEERZRBROINER -
B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past three | 70
years (including the reporting year).
BEZF (BRERFE)BFRITHOHABRRIEE -
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. 70
ETHBEXTEEE -
B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, how they are | 6869
implemented and monitored.
R PTER AN R R B e 210 - ARMBRARIT RER T ©
B3 Development and Training
B RIE
General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties at | 61, 67, 74
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APPENDIX (Continued) Ff 5% )

2.

ESG Report Index (Continued) 2. ESGHRERAZRS| (&)

B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category. 75
RUERIRESRME DN IEET L
B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee | 75

category.
RURIREEFENED - BEEETHZIIN TR -

B4 Labour Standards

B TR

General Disclosure

—REE

Information on: 60-61, 67, 72

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

BRAP L E T aa % Tay -

(a) B3R &

(b) BFHETABERTZENRBEZRERANER -

B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and | 72
forced labour.
iR B EM MR ELE R ET REHST -

B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered. 72

W7 B IR E R ITNE B B BIE TR 28

B5 Supply Chain Management

HEEEE

General Disclosure

—REE

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain. 62, 80—-82

EEHERNIRE LT SRR -

B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. 80
minEE DN HEREE -
B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers | 80-81

where the practices are being implemented, how they are implemented and
monitored.

Rt BRAEBHERNEN  MERTAERBENNHEERMEE - UKEEHR
TRERTE -
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APPENDIX (continued)

2.

ESG Report Index (Continued) 2.

B $ ()

ESGHREARR RS (3

B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks along the | 81
supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored.
B BERRIHEE S ERENRE R SRBRNIESN - LARMBERTRE
BIE -
B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable products | 82
and services when selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented and
monitored.
R FEBRE R R SR (2 2 IR RE mn LRTGEVIE B - ARAEBERITRER
JIE e
B6 Product Responsibility
EmEE
General Disclosure Information on: 60, 62, 78-79
—MRIEE (a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact | Given its
on the issuer business
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating nature, the
to products and services provided and methods of redress. Group's daily
BEMREERMNRENERELE  BE  2HELMABEELRMSME | operations
1 do not have
(@) B & material

(o) BTEHETABEAZENERERLRDINER

relevance to
advertising or
labelling.
ENEBE
g AEEZ
HEZEHE
EESEE Nl
B E R -
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B $ ()

ESG Report Index (Continued) 2. ESGHRERNRZES| (@)

B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and | Given its
health reasons. business
BESDEFRERASTAZ 2 EEFIERMERKNE D nature, the

Group's daily
operations do
not involve
products that
are subject

to recalls for
safety and
health reasons.
ENEBME
B AEEZ
HEZEILT
W REREE
fEEIEHAM
WHEm o

B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received and how they are | 78
dealt with.

BREBANE DR REHIRFEE AR EHFE -

B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual | 79
property rights.

Fl R 4 o R AR PR AN ERE B A 1B B -

B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. 78
B SRTERENERBDKIEF -

B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they are | 79
implemented and monitored.
fitE B & ERHRIE RALRBUR - A RABRE N T REER X -
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APPENDIX (Continued) Ff 5% )

2. ESG Report Index (Continued) 2. ESGHRERBZESI @)

B7 Anti-corruption
RES

EEIHEMBAEIR -

General Disclosure Information on: 60, 62, 76-77

—RR IR (a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact

on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
BRI LRRE - $1R - HEF RO RE ¢
(@) B&E : &
(b) EBFHETARGEAZENHEBERZNLROIIOER -

B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against | 60
the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the outcomes of the
cases.
RERBAHBETANEESRETEBENE)THRRRTNEE RFDRE
% o

B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, how they | 76-77
are implemented and monitored.

P e R R IWRIET - ARMEBERITRERTE o

B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff. 78
Ml mEERE TRENRESH -

B8 Community Investment

HERE

General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the | 90

—RRHE communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities’ interests.

B RBERTHREEMEHERTENRREEREHSE BRI
BVEER o

B8.1 Focus areas of contribution. 90
EITERIEE -

B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area. 90
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) herein present their
report and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The activities
of its principal subsidiaries and associates are set out in notes 19 and 35
to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 and the
state of affairs of the Group at that date are set out in the consolidated
financial statements on pages 132 to 274 of this annual report.

The Board has resolved to recommend a final dividend in the total
amount of HK$11.95 million for the year ended 31 December 2022
(2021: HK$11.95 million), payable to shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company at the close of business on
Thursday, 25 May 2023. Based on 3,984,639,703 ordinary shares of the
Company in issue, such a final dividend would amount to HK0.3 cent per
ordinary share.

Subject to shareholders’ approval of the proposed final dividend at the
Company’s annual general meeting to be held on Monday, 22 May
2023, the final dividend is expected to be paid on or about Friday, 14 July
2023. For determining the entitlement to the final dividend, the register
of members of the Company will be closed from Monday, 29 May 2023
to Wednesday, 31 May 2023, inclusive, during such period no transfer of
shares will be registered. In order to be qualified for the final dividend,
all transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Tengis Limited, 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong
Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 25 May 2023.
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EXEgBEE

RESULTS (continued)

For the avoidance of doubt, the Board reserves the right in its discretion
to declare and pay dividends of any specified amount and the manner in
which dividends are paid for any specified period. In deciding whether
to recommend the payment of dividends, the Board will continue to
take into account the factors set out in the dividend policy, which
currently include the Group’s actual and future operating conditions,
profit, financial condition, liquidity requirements, cash disbursement and
liquidity adequacy, investment needs, future prospects and individual
factors that may be relevant.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022 is set out in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 10 to 16 and pages 17
to 26 of this annual report respectively.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of the

Group for the pass five financial years is set out on pages 275 to 276 of
this annual report.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the investment properties of the Group during
the year are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year are
set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

No charitable donation was made by the Group during the year (2021:
Nil).
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Sun Yajie (appointed with effect from 5 August 2022)

Xu Liang (resigned with effect from 5 August 2022)

Liang Hengyi (appointed with effect from 25 March 2022)
Tian Gang

Non-executive Directors
Huang Donglin
Qiao Yufei (appointed with effect from 28 December 2022)

Zhang Jianxun (resigned with effect from 28 December 2022)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Tam King Ching, Kenny

Zhang Xingyu (retired with effect from 19 March 2023)
Ng Man Fung, Walter

On Danita

RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

In accordance with clause 102(B) of the Bye-laws of the Company, Ms.
Sun Yajie and Ms. Qiao Yufei will retire by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company (“AGM") and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election.

In accordance with clause 99 of the Bye-laws of the Company, Mr.
Huang Donglin will retire by rotation at the forthcoming AGM and, being
eligible, offer himself for re-election.

In accordance with clause 99 of the Bye-laws of the Company and Code
Provisions B.2.2 and B.2.3 in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Tam
King Ching, Kenny will retire by rotation at the forthcoming AGM and,
being eligible, offer himself for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES AND INSURANCE

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company and subject to the provisions
of the Companies Ordinance, every Director or other officers of the
Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company against all losses or liabilities which he or she may sustain
or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his or her office or
otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has arranged appropriate
directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors and
officers of the Company during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has an unexpired service contract that is not determinable by
the Company or its subsidiaries within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management or administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company or their respective
associates in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were required to be recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, or which were required to be notified the Company and the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Security
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange (“Listing Rules”) (“Model Code") were as follows:

Long positions in the shares/underlying shares of the
Company as at 31 December 2022

Name of Director Nature of interests

underlying shares held

BEE2RBEEL

BRABETZRRAFAS LERETL
B BEEARALEEMMERRRZ
EAEARBALEEFAMBRRR —FAR
LE MBS B E CRTE BRERR SN 2 1) K i AR
BEK -

AEEARRRLERF A FEEREERK
REaARA2HAEMEIELOEBZE
#) o

EERBSTRAERKRND - HE
ROKREEEEERAR

—TE-F+-A=+—H ARQAZE
CBEITRAESIBEZTMBEA LR
AR EEMEEEE(EE L GEHFRE
= 50 (B H REEEH) ) EXVE)) 2 Bk
% HERG N EEERERE(EFRBE
&G EXVERE 7R FE8D BBRAMARNT RE
BTz kAR (BRIERE(GER R
EROD 2ZEGR  BREREEXRAEER
ZHERBEKRE)  FRB(EHFREBEET)E
3BT RRNERE 2 ERMAES RAR
FIRBEE BB RAES LR EmRAD)
e +AE 2 (LB ITAESETESFR S
ST ([GRESFAD DABMARE R
BRI AR T

e

me B X

\

R-ZE-_ZHF+-A=1+—HRAXATF
R EERAZERE

Approximate
percentage of
the total number of
issued shares

Number of shares/

BER®D WEEBRTRG
BEEnS EEME HEROEE BY 2B DL(%)
Liang Hengyi Personal 2,001,000 0.05%
REH EA
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors
or chief executives of the Company or any of their associates had any
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to Division
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions,
which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), or which were required to be entered in the register required to be
kept pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Apart from as disclosed in the sections headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures” and “Share Option Schemes” herein, at no time during
the year was the Company, any of its holding companies, or any of their
subsidiaries was a party to any arrangement to enable the Company’s
Directors or their respective spouses or children under 18 years of age to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of
the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangements and contracts that are significant in
relation to the business of the Company, any of its holding companies, or
any of their subsidiaries was a party, in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or
at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules, the following Director has
declared interests in the following business (other than those businesses
where the Directors of the Company were appointed as directors to
represent the interests of the Company and/or any member of the
Group) which is considered to compete or are likely to compete, either

EERBFEXRB 2ED

RIBEETRAUESN0MG - UTEREEEEHERN
NTEBRHEER(UTBRARREETES
EAEBUARZEEURRARARA R HAK
SEERKERBIERZER)  MEEBHH
BRRAFEANERNEERBEXEE XM

directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group during the year:

Name of entity whose
business are considered
to compete or likely

to compete with the

Description of business
of the entity which is
considered to compete
or likely to compete
with the businesses of

EHERTLBABT

Nature of interest of the

Name of Director businesses of the Group the Group Director in the entity
EBRBRRBELTEEMER EBREREEEER
BEBEATEBHEGETE2 BHEZRTEBERTE2 ESREREREZ

EEnA BREH BERzEH EmotE

Xu Liang** Shougang Holding* Property investment Director

fr 2 EEilal MEKRE =

Sun Yajie*## Shougang Holding* Property investment Director

FREB 7N EEialiy MERE =

# Such business may be carried out through the subsidiaries or associates of the — * ZYEFERBEREHERZNE LAl &

entity concerned or by way of other forms of investments.
R Mr. Xu Liang resigned as a Director with effect from 5 August 2022.

it Ms. Sun Yajie, appointed as a Director with effect from 5 August 2022.

The Board of the Company is independent from the board of
the abovementioned entity and is accountable to the Company’s
shareholders. Coupled with the diligence of its Independent Non-
executive Directors whose views carry significant weight in the
Board'’s decisions, the Group is capable of carrying on its businesses
independently of, and at arm’s length from, the businesses of this entity.

Capital Industrial Financial Services Group Limited Annual Report 2022

RAIHBMIRE T T °
“ HEEEA T —F/\ALHEFFEF -

" BRERNKLTE—E_—F\ALAEEZER
EBEF-

ARREZGBEYUNLAERZEFTE I
ARARBBRREE - AEBEZBIIERTT
EERBOB HEFTEZRRREHBRE
EZER  HANEEREHRAFRANEZ
ERTARERT 2R -



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EXEgEEE

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF BEZESFRPEFFHETFREZR
SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE SFO RERRXRE

So far as the Directors and chief executives of the Company are aware, MARAEFZLRSITBRAEMM  R_Z
as at 31 December 2022, the following companies and persons had ——F+=-A=+—H » F72Q2a&ALR
interests or short positions in the shares and/or underlying shares of the ~ RA &M NS iHEE RS F A BRI (ESH
Company that were required to be disclosed to the Company under N HIE1EH) EBEXVERE 2 M 539 SE X AR A
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or that were AFIRBE 2 XL KA @ ABRB(EHFERBE
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under &%) #3365 EBE LR AR FEFHE

Section 336 of the SFO: EMAZERIOXR -
Long positions in the shares/underlying shares of the R-FBE-—_F+-A=1+—HREAT
Company as at 31 December 2022 B HEERDZFE

Approximate
Number of percentage of the
shares/underlying total number of

Name of shareholder Capacity shares held issued shares  Note(s)
BER®G, NLERTRSG

BREREE 51 HERGHEE #BZEDH(%) HtaF

Shougang Group Interests of controlled corporations 2,425,736,972 60.88% 1

HEE SEAE 2

Wheeling Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 2,025,736,972 50.84% 1
("Wheeling") BEnEA A

Shougang Fund Interests of controlled corporations 400,000,000 10.04% 1

EE E%A RPAE 2 s

Jingxi Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 400,000,000 10.04% 1
("Jingxi Holdings") EmEEA

ROERAR AR (TREZER]D)

Yip Wang Ngai Interests of controlled corporations 213,600,000 5.36% 2

oL XY AE 2 s

HY Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 213,600,000 5.36% 2
("HY Holdings") BEnEAA

Mak Siu Hang Viola Interests of controlled corporations 254,413,000 6.38% 3

21 ZEEEE s
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE SFO
(Continued)

Long positions in the shares/underlying shares of the
Company as at 31 December 2022 (Continued)

shares/underlying

R %&Hﬂfﬂ’{{ﬂ%ﬁi%?ﬂi EZ
BREEZER AR

R-B--f+=A=+—BREAH
R4, AR 2 57 A 0

Approximate
Number of percentage of the
total number of

Name of shareholder Capacity shares held issued shares  Note(s)
BERD, YRS RITRA

BERAE g% HERAMEE #HEZEIH(%) Bt

VMS Investment Group Limited  Beneficial owner 254,413,000 6.38% 3
("VMS Investment”) BEnEA A

RWREEEFR AT
T&m&])

Notes: Hiat -

1. Shougang Group indicated in its disclosure form dated 5 September 2022 (being 1. BHiERFER —F - —F A A ANEEXRE

the latest disclosure form filed up to 31 December 2022) that as at 5 September
2022, its interest in the Company was held by Wheeling and Shougang Fund
respectively, wholly owned subsidiaries of Shougang Group. Wheeling has direct
interest of the Company, and Shougang Fund’s interest in the Company was the
Shares held by Jingxi Holdings, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shougang Fund.

2. Mr. Yip Wang Ngai indicated in his disclosure form dated 1 August 2019 (being
the latest disclosure form filed up to 31 December 2022) that as at 30 July 2019,
his interest in the Company was held by HY Holdings which in turn was held as

to 80% by Mr. Yip Wang Ngai.

3. Ms. Mak Siu Hang Viola indicated in her disclosure form dated 20 January 2021
(being the latest disclosure form filed up to 31 December 2022) that as at 20
January 2021, her interest in the Company was held by VMS Investment which

in turn was held as to 100% by Ms. Mak Siu Hang Viola.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, the Company has not
been notified of any other person (other than the Directors and chief
executives of the Company) who had an interest or short position in the
shares and/or underlying shares of the Company who was required to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or who was recorded in the register required to be

kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTEREST IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions” below,
at no time during the year had the Company or any of its subsidiaries,
and the controlling shareholder (as defined under the Listing Rules) or
any of its subsidiaries entered into any contract of significance or any
contract of significance for the provision of services to the Company
or any of its subsidiaries by the controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company, there is a
sufficiency of public float of the Company’s securities as required under
the Listing Rules as at the date of this annual report.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

On 7 June 2002, the shareholders of the Company adopted the 2002
Scheme which would be valid for a period of ten years. On 25 May 2012,
the shareholders of the Company approved the termination of the 2002
Scheme (to the effect that no further share option shall be granted by
the Company under the 2002 Scheme) and the adoption of a new share
option scheme (the “2012 Scheme”), which became effective on 29
May 2012 upon the Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange granting
its approval to the listing of, and permission to deal in, the shares of the
Company which may fall to be issued upon exercise of the options to be
granted under the 2012 Scheme.

A summary of the principal terms of the 2012 Scheme is set out below:

The purpose of the 2012 Scheme is to replace the 2002 Scheme and
to continue to enable the Company to grant share options to selected
participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution or potential
contribution to the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries and/or any
entity in which any member of the Group holds any equity interest (the
“Invested Entities”). The 2012 Scheme shall be valid and effective for
the period of ten years commencing on 25 May 2012, being the date on
which the 2012 Scheme was conditionally adopted by the shareholders
of the Company, and ending on 25 May 2022 (both dates inclusive).
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Under the 2012 Scheme, the Board may, at its discretion, offer full-
time or part-time employees, executives, officers or directors (including
executive and non-executive directors) of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries or any of the Invested Entities, and any advisors, consultants,
agents, suppliers, customers and distributors, who, in the sole opinion
of the Board, will contribute or have contributed to the Company and/or
any of its subsidiaries and/or any of the Invested Entities, share options to
subscribe for shares of the Company.

No share option has been granted under the 2012 Scheme since its
adoption. The maximum number of shares of the Company available
for issue upon exercise of all share options which may be granted under
the 2012 Scheme is 115,219,246, representing approximately 2.89%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this annual
report. The total number of shares of the Company issued and which
may fall to be issued upon the exercise of share options to be granted
under the 2012 Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the
Company (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding share options)
to each grantee in any 12-month period up to the date of grant shall not
exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of
grant. Any further grant of share options in excess of this 1% limit shall
be subject to the issue of a circular by the Company and shareholders’
approval in a general meeting. In addition, any share options granted
to a substantial shareholder or an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company, or to any of their associates, which would result in
the shares of the Company issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options already granted and to be granted (including options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding) to such person in the 12-month period up
to and including the date of the offer of such grant (a) representing
in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue on the
date of the grant; and (b) having an aggregate value of in excess of
HK$5,000,000 (based on the closing price of the Company’s shares as
stated in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date
of each grant), such further grant of options shall be subject to the issue
of a circular by the Company and shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting on a poll at which the grantee, his/her associates and all core
connected persons of the Company shall abstain from voting in favour
of the resolution concerning the grant of such options, and/or such
other requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules from time to time.
A connected person of the Company will be permitted to vote against
the grant only if his intention to do so has been stated in the circular.
Any grant of share options to a Director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, is required to
be approved by the Independent Non-executive Directors (excluding the
Independent Non-executive Director who is the grantee of the options).
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

The period during which a share option may be exercised will be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion, save that no share
option may be exercised more than 10 years after it has been granted
under the 2012 Scheme. There is no requirement that a share option
must be held for any minimum period before it can be exercised but the
Board is empowered to impose at its discretion any such minimum period
at the time of offer of any share options.

The exercise price in relation to each share option will be determined by
the Board at its absolute discretion and shall not be less than the highest
of (i) the closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the daily
guotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of offer of share
options; (ii) the average closing price of the shares of the Company as
stated in the daily quotations sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of offer of share options;
and (iii) the nominal value of a share of the Company on the date of
offer of share options. Each of the grantees is required to pay HK$1.00
as a consideration for his acceptance of the grant of share options in
accordance with the 2012 Scheme. The offer of share options must be
accepted within 30 days from the date of the offer.

Share options to be granted under the 2012 Scheme do not confer rights
on the holders to dividends or to vote at general meetings.

No share option has been granted under the 2012 Scheme since its
adoption. The expiry date of the exercise period was on 25 May 2022.
Accordingly, all outstanding options granted under the Share Option
Scheme were lapsed due to expiry of the exercise period. There were no
options outstanding as at 31 December 2022.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Share Option Schemes” herein,
no equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the Company
issuing shares or that require the Company to enter into any agreements
that will or may result in the Company issuing shares were entered into
by the Company during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities (whether on the Stock
Exchange or otherwise) during the year.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws or the
laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro rata basis to its existing shareholders.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had distributable
reserves of approximately HK$533,995,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, revenue from sales of goods and rendering
of services to the Group's five largest customers accounted for
approximately 56% of the total revenue from sales of goods and
rendering of services for the year and revenue from sales of goods and
rendering of services to the largest customer included therein amounted
to approximately 21%. Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 91% of the total cost of sales for the year
and cost of sales from the largest supplier included therein amounted
to approximately 36%. None of the Directors of the Company or any of
their close associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge
of the Directors, own more than 5% of the number of issued shares
of the Company) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest
customers and suppliers.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The following connected transactions were entered during the year and
up to the date of this annual report:

()

(i)

Formation of Joint Venture

On 26 December 2018, Eldex Investment Company Limited (“Eldex
Investment”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a joint venture agreement with Chengdu Shougang Silk Road
Equity Investment Fund Co., Ltd.* (FX#B & M4 ARER EE S
B~ 7], “Shougang Silk Road”) and Chengdu Wuhou Capital
Investment Management Group Co., Ltd.* ([R#REEARKEE
EEEAR A7, "Wuhou Capital”) to establish a joint venture,
namely Shoucheng Finance Lease (Chengdu) Co., Ltd.* (B ELE
FAE (R EB)E MR A F], “Shoucheng Finance Lease”) to engage in
the business of finance lease and related services. Shougang Silk
Road is a corporate fund 50% owned by Shougang Fund which
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shougang Group. Wuhou Capital
and its ultimate owners are independent of and not connected
with the Company and its connected persons. Shoucheng Finance
Lease would have a registered capital of RMB100,000,000, which
has been determined by the parties after arm’s length negotiations
by reference to its expected capital requirement. According to
the joint venture agreement, the amount of registered capital
to be contributed by Eldex Investment, Shougang Silk Road and
Wuhou Capital were RMB25,000,000, RMB40,000,000 and
RMB35,000,000 respectively. In view of the changes in market
environment and policies, Shoucheng Finance Lease has been
unable to carry out business, therefore, Shoucheng Finance Lease
was liguidated on 28 May 2021. For the details of the transaction,
please refer to announcement of the Company dated 26 December
2018.

Tenancy Agreement

On 27 October 2021, Long Cosmos Investment Limited (an indirect
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company), as tenant entered into
the Tenancy Agreement with Billioncorp Development Limited
(an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Shougang Holding (Hong
Kong) Limited), as landlord, in relation to the renewal of the lease
of the Premises at a monthly rent of HK$195,500, exclusive of rates
and management fees (Long Cosmos Investment Limited will enjoy
a rent-free period of one month during the thirteenth month of the
term), for a term of three years commencing on 1 November 2021
and ending on 31 October 2024. For the details of the transaction
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 27
October 2021. Upon friendly negotiations between the Company
and Billioncorp Development Limited, both parties agreed for
mutual termination of the Tenancy Agreement with effect from 30
November 2022, and each party shall be released and discharged
from its respective liabilities and obligations and neither party shall
have any claims against each other as a result of the termination.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The following continuing connected transactions were recorded during
the year and up to the date of this annual report:

()

Shougang Group — Master Facility Agreement

As the 2015 Master Facilities Agreement between the Company
and the Shougang Group in relation to the provision by the
Group of the 2015 facilities to the Shougang Group expired on
18 June 2018, the Company entered into another master facilities
agreement with Shougang Group on 8 June 2018 (the “2018
Master Facility Agreement”).

Pursuant to the 2018 Master Facility Agreement, the Company has
agreed to provide, or procure its subsidiaries to provide facilities by
way of entrusted payment, finance lease and/or credit financing
to Shougang Group and/or its subsidiaries in an amount of up to
RMB5,000,000,000 for a term of 3 years from 8 June 2018, the
date on which the condition precedent for the 2018 Master Facility
Agreement was fulfilled and the 2018 Master Facility Agreement
became effective (the “2018 Facilities”).

For the 2018 Facilities provide by way of entrusted payment,
finance lease and/or credit financing, the interest rate payable by
the borrower or the lessee shall be at a rate equal to the cost of
lending of the Company (or its subsidiaries) plus 1% to 5%, subject
to a cap of 10%.

The annual cap of the 2018 Facilities for each of the financial years
ending 31 December 2018 to 2024 shall be RMB1,500,000,000
each year, taken into account of the expected level of financing
required by Shougang Group and its subsidiaries based on
published public information on Shougang Group, and the amount
of financing that the Group is expected to be able to secure to
finance the 2018 Facilities, for each relevant year.

The entering into of the 2018 Master Facility Agreement will enable
the Group to earn a net interest income under the 2018 Master
Facility Agreement.

Capital Industrial Financial Services Group Limited Annual Report 2022

EER S @

AT BRAFEARBEARF R E B R
R HEMER S

()

HHEE - READR

HRAAREBEHEEMTLASTA R
AEEREMEBRREE_T-—AFEE
HM_T-hFREABER_FT—-N\F
NAtTNBER AR -F—/N\F
NANB > ARAREBHEEFYS
—OREERBE( - \FREEH

&) o

BIE - NFRELGZE  ~2EE
AEEBTHRELMBATBBETN
FoBMERER FEEBRERNHHSE
Bk SEMBARREEERZAA
R #5,000,000,000t 2 %5 B =&F—
NEXNANBBE—N\FRELHZ
RIGEHERER T N\FERELH
EEBCEER  BEH=F(T=ZZF—N
FEED -

R-T-NFRENZFEMNR  BEHE
ER/REERETRRHZRE &
RAIEEARN 2 F X FREREAR
A(REMBAR) 2BERAM %=
5% @ ER&A10% °

EH T - N\GFRE2EEFELR
(#HEE—_ZT—N\FE2-_T_mNF+=
A=Z+—BLEVEHFE)AARE
1,500,000,0007C ' &£ EH S B KA
MBARREERNEEAMHAREE
IR TEEEEKE UEAEERF
EHREEFEBRHIAR T - NFERER
HEOMESTE -

YT \FRELHBZEESAEE
A RAR — T — \F R E A 153 REUF A
BHA e



CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

()

Shougang Group — Master Facility Agreement
(Continued)

As at the date of the 2018 Master Facility Agreement, Shougang
Group was the holding company of Shougang Holding which
in turn was a controlling shareholder and connected person of
the Company. As such, the transactions contemplated under the
2018 Master Facility Agreement constituted continuing connected
transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios for
the transactions contemplated under the 2018 Master Facility
Agreement (including the annual caps) exceed 5%, the 2018
Master Facility Agreement constituted a non-exempt continuing
connected transaction for the Company under the Listing Rules.

The 2018 Master Facility Agreement was subject to approval by the
independent shareholders of the Company in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules.

The 2018 Master Facility Agreement and the annual caps
thereunder were approved, confirmed and ratified by the
independent shareholders of the Company on 7 December 2018.

As the 2018 Master Facilities Agreement between the Company
and the Shougang Group in relation to the provision by the
Group of the 2018 facilities to the Shougang Group expired on
18 June 2021, the Company entered into another master facilities
agreement with Shougang Group on 23 August 2021 (the “2021
Master Facilities Agreement”).

Pursuant to the 2021 Master Facilities Agreement, the Company
has agreed to provide, or procure its subsidiaries to provide facilities
by way of entrusted payment, finance lease and/or credit financing
to Shougang Group and/or its subsidiaries in an amount of up to
RMB2,000,000,000 for a term of 3 years from 23 August 2021
(the date on which the condition precedent for the 2021 Master
Facilities Agreement was fulfilled) and the 2021 Master Facilities
Agreement became effective (the “2021 Facilities”).

For the 2021 Facilities provide by way of entrusted payment,
finance lease and/or credit financing, the interest rate payable by
the borrower or the lessee shall be at a rate equal to the cost of
lending of the Company (or its subsidiaries) plus 1% to 5%, subject
to a cap of 10%.

BAE

()

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EXEgEEE

R 5 (#)

BHEE-RERAGS

RZZE-—N\EEEBHZEEH e
?ﬂ%.ﬁ’j%fﬂ? gy /N I TR
ERABRNAR ZIEBRRERBEAL -
At - RE - \EREBHEEE
TR SHEBRETHBEI4AZRT AR
RIZIFBERERS - ARIRBE=ZZ— N\
FREBHEABRET R (BEFE
FR)z—HLZHEEAE L EBA
5% ' IRI\BELEWHRA - —ZFE-N\FEE
BIBHRBRALQR —HIEREIFERE
R e

— N\ FEEEREARE TR
Zﬁmﬂ SN RIBS AR 2 B o

- N\ERELMEEEL2FEELE
RER—_ZE—N\F+_AtHELXQT
B IR E - BRREBR -

HRARREBEHEEMITLART AR
AEEREREBRRER _T-N\FEE
T \FREEAHBER_FT_—F
NATNBAER  BER-ZF—_—FN\
AZ+=B AR EEHEB L%
—ERERRE (T —FRER2W
E?ﬁj)

BE_Z-—FRE&HH  ~2818
AEATHREEMNBARBBEZTN
FoBMERER L EEBRERNHHESE
B&SEMBA Tm,w%ﬁww%)\
R ¥2,000,000,000t 215 BT =
—FNAZ+=BBE=_—FEER
BRITRGHERRER S —F R
RipFER 2 HER  AB=F(=%
——FRED -

R-E-—FREUERFENR BEHE
ER/AEERMEFARFZIRE &
RAFEEARN 2 F X FRERAR
A(REMBAR) 2BERAM %=
5% @ ER&A10% °

2025 EHRE BEEXSRBRBEEEERAF

115



116

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EXEgBEE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

()

Shougang Group — Master Facility Agreement
(Continued)

The annual cap of the 2021 Facilities for each of the financial years
ending 31 December 2021 to 2027 shall be RMB2,264,000,000
each year, taken into account of the expected level of financing
required by Shougang Group and its subsidiaries based on
published public information on Shougang Group, and the amount
of financing that the Group is expected to be able to secure to
finance the 2021 Facilities, for each relevant year.

The entering into of the 2021 Master Facilities Agreement will
enable the Group to earn a net interest income under the 2021
Master Facilities Agreement.

As at the date of the 2021 Master Facilities Agreement, Shougang
Group was the holding company of Shougang Holding which in
turn was a controlling shareholder and connected person of the
Company. As such, the transactions contemplated under the 2021
Master Facilities Agreement constituted continuing connected
transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios for
the transactions contemplated under the 2021 Master Facilities
Agreement (including the annual caps) exceed 5%, the 2021
Master Facilities Agreement constituted a non-exempt continuing
connected transaction for the Company under Listing Rules.

The 2021 Master Facilities Agreement was subject to approval by
the independent shareholders of the Company in accordance with
the requirements of the Listing Rules.

The 2021 Master Facilities Agreement and the annual caps
thereunder were approved, confirmed and ratified by the
independent shareholders of the Company on 25 January 2022.

For the details of the transaction, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 8 June 2018, 20 November
2018 and 23 August 2021 and in the circular of the Company
dated 20 November 2018 and 24 December 2021.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(i) Tenancy Agreement and Master Services Agreement

As stated in the announcement of the Company dated 31 October
2018, the Company entered into the following transactions on 31
October 2018:

(A)

Long Cosmos Investment Limited (an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company), as tenant, entered into a tenancy
agreement with Billioncorp Development Limited (an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of Shougang Holding) as landlord,
in relation to the lease of office premise at a monthly rent
of HK$195,500, exclusive of rates and management fees,
for the three years ending 31 October 2021 (the “Tenancy
Agreement”). The payment under the Tenancy Agreement
should be made in advance on the first day of each and
every calendar month without deduction. The annual cap
of the tenancy agreement for each of the years ending 31
October 2019, 31 October 2020, and 31 October 2021
is HK$2,541,500, HK$2,346,000 and HK$2,346,000
respectively, taken into account of the payment commitment
of monthly rent under the tenancy agreement. The Tenancy
Agreement was expired on 31 October 2021.

the Company entered into a master services agreement with
Shougang Holding for a term of three years commencing
from 31 October 2018 to 31 October 2021 (the “Master
Services Agreement”). Under which, Shougang Holding
would provide to the Company advisory services covering
areas in business and operational, investment management
and financial management disciplines, treasury and risk
management, key managerial recruitment and retention as
well as other operating practices and procedures, accounting,
corporate advisory, legal, company secretarial and other
services. The Company agreed to reimburse the actual costs
of the services incurred by Shougang Holding by reference
to a specified percentage of the remuneration of members
of the staff providing the Services to the Company, with
annual payment capped at HK$2,880,000 each of the three
years ending 31 October 2019, 31 October 2020, and 31
October 2021. The annual caps were determined after taken
the maximum payment obligation under the Master Services
Agreement.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(i) Tenancy Agreement and Master Services Agreement
(Continued)

On 27 October 2021, the Company entered into the Master
Services Agreement with Shougang Holding, pursuant to which
Shougang Holding has agreed to provide to the Company with
business and operational advisory, investment management and
financial management disciplines, treasury and risk management,
key managerial recruitment and retention as well as other
operating practices and procedures, accounting, corporate advisory,
legal, company secretarial and other services (the “Services”).
The Company has agreed to reimburse the actual costs of the
Services incurred by Shougang Holding by reference to a specified
percentage of the remuneration of the Shougang Holding staff
who provides the Services to the Company. Such percentage would
be determined by reference to the percentage of the time currently
estimated to be devoted by the individual staff members to the
affairs of the Company against the amount of time they would
otherwise devote to the affairs of Shougang Holding as full time
employees of Shougang Holding. The annual cap of the Master
Services Agreement for each of the year ending 31 October 2022,
31 October 2023 and 31 October 2024 is HK$2.88 million. The
master service agreement was terminated on 6 September 2022.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios as defined
under the Listing Rules in respect of the Master Services Agreement
is more than 0.1% but are all less than 5%, the Master Services
Agreement is subject to the reporting, annual review and
announcement requirements, but is exempt from the circular
and the Independent Shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 31 October 2018, 27 October 2021 and 6 September 2022.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(iii) Master Purchase Agreement

On 23 August 2021, Beijing Jingxi Supple Chain, an indirect
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the Master
Purchase Agreement with Beijing Shougang under which Beijing
Jingxi Supply Chain agreed to purchase steel products from Beijing
Shougang for a term of three financial years ending 31 December
2023 (the “Master Purchase Agreement”).

The annual cap of the Master Purchase Agreement for each
of the financial year ending 31 December 2021 to 2023 is
RMB1,000,000,000.

Beijing Shougang is a non-wholly owned subsidiary of Shougang
Group, which is in turn the holding company of Shougang Holding,
the controlling Shareholder of the Company. Beijing Shougang is
hence a connected person of the Company and the transactions
contemplated under the Master Purchase Agreement constituted
continuing connected transactions for the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

As the applicable percentage ratios in respect of the annual
transaction amount under the Master Purchase Agreement are
expected to be more than 5%, the transactions contemplated
under the Master Purchase Agreement are subject to the
announcement, reporting and independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Master Purchase Agreement and the annual caps thereunder
were approved, confirmed and ratified by the Independent
Shareholders of the Company on 25 January 2022.

For the details of the transaction, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 23 August 2021 and the circular dated 24
December 2021.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-
executive directors of the Company must review the continuing
connected transactions carried out under the 2021 Master Facilities
Agreement, the Master Services Agreement and the Master Purchase
Agreement during the year and confirm whether the transactions
thereunder had been entered into:

(i) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(i) according to the agreements governing them on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the Company’s shareholders
as a whole.

The auditors of the Company have provided a letter to (the Board of
Directors of the Company) confirming the matters stated in Rule 14A.56
of the Listing Rules in respect of the continuing connected transactions
under the 2021 Master Facilities Agreement, the Master Services
Agreement and the Master Purchase Agreement took place during the
year.

The transactions regarding revenue under sale and leaseback
arrangements set out in note 33(b) to the consolidated financial
statements and the outstanding balance arising from sale and leaseback
business set out in note 33(c) to the consolidated financial statements
were connected transactions which had been approved by the
independent shareholders of the Company.

The transactions regarding consultancy services expenses, management
fee expenses and lease payments set out in note 33(b) to the
consolidated financial statements were connected transactions which
were exempt from circular and shareholders’ approval requirements
under the Listing Rules.

The transactions set out in notes 33(e) and 33(f) to the consolidated
financial statements under the heading of “Related Party Transactions”
did not constitute connected transactions under the Listing Rules.

As far as the transactions set out in note 33(a) to the consolidated
financial statements are concerned, the remuneration of the Directors
as determined pursuant to the service contracts entered into between
the Directors and the Group were connected transactions which were
exempt from any disclosure and shareholders’ approval requirements
under the Listing Rules.

Capital Industrial Financial Services Group Limited Annual Report 2022

EER S @

g FHHBIF14A 5516 RAT 2B 3E

%ﬁiimﬁﬁ$¢rﬁﬁ_7_ FRE
B REEHENEELHEETZE
BRERS  THERZERS

() EREBHNBFEBEPIL

(i B REBERRBEETET &

(i) REABEIZOHBHET  HKRAIFA
2 WEMEARBRRAERHE -

i)

RARIZEMERAFEAR ST —FK
St REERELABERBZRETZ
RHEBEER %mK RIEESHRER LM
B 14A 5615 T H 18 -

B R A B SR E M RE33(b) & 33() T B
%é@ﬂamﬁTzw Zx%&ﬁé@ﬁ
EBEENREELHREE
SHEERRA T%ih%ﬁﬁ

CRER

@W'J va_jé-\ ﬁﬁsz-&i[;ﬁuf33( )Tﬁ?ﬂ uﬁu@ﬂ&
BRx ERERXKEENRZXSZTH
BERG WZEXFHEHRRRE TR

iR N R R 2 B -

RiIEETRY - HIRNGEEFBREME
33(e) M33(NAEALRZI—HETZRH
BITEKEER S

BN RERA M I RMEM TSR T ZRS
mE  REEFEAKEITLNRBEE QM
BRIWESTME IRERS  EZXERHE
R RIE EMARR T ARE MERRALE -



DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE 13.18 OF THE LISTING
RULES

Pursuant to the facility letter entered into between SCG Finance
Corporation Limited (“SCG Finance”) and Chong Hing Bank Limited
(“CHB") on 23 December 2020 in relation to a revolving term loan
facility of HK$70,000,000 (the “Facility”), Shougang Group and
Shougang Holding shall remain as the largest shareholder (directly
or indirectly) of the Company during the term of the Facility. Breach
of such condition will constitute an event of default upon which
CHB may cancel the Facility or terminate the Facility and demand
all outstanding amount under the Facility be immediately due and
payable. The availability of the Facility is subject to CHB's periodic
review and overriding right of repayment on demand. The Facility
was terminated on 23 December 2021, and the Facility was repaid
in full on that day.

Pursuant to the facility letter (the “Facility Letter”) entered into
between the Company and Chong Hing Bank Limited on 28
December 2021 in relation to a one-year revolving term loan facility
in the amount of HK$80,000,000 (the “RTL Facility”), the Company
has undertaken to, throughout the term of the RTL Facility, procure
that Shougang Group and Shougang Holding shall remain as the
largest single shareholder (directly or indirectly) of the Company
and maintain control over the management of the Company. It
shall be an event of default under the Facility Letter if the Company
breaches such undertakings and upon the occurrence of which, the
Bank shall be entitled to (i) cancel the RTL Facility or terminate the
RTL Facility; and (ii) demand all outstanding amount under the RTL
Facility be immediately due and payable. The RTL facility was repaid
in full on 15 November 2022.

Pursuant to the facility letter (the “2022 Facility Letter”) entered
into between the Company and Chong Hing Bank Limited on
22 March 2022 in relation to a revolving term loan facility in the
amount of HK70,000,000 (the “2022 RTL Facility”) which will
expire on 23 December 2022, the Company has undertaken
to, throughout the term of the 2022 RTL Facility, procure that
Shougang Group and Shougang Holding shall remain as the largest
single shareholder (directly or indirectly) of the Company and
maintain control over the management of the Company. It shall be
an event of default under the 2022 Facility Letter if the Company
breaches such undertakings and upon the occurrence of which, the
Bank shall be entitled to (i) cancel the 2022 RTL Facility or terminate
the 2022 RTL Facility; and (ii) demand all outstanding amount
under the 2022 RTL Facility be immediately due and payable. The
2022 RTL facility was repaid on 29 July 2022.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 22 to 54 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL MATTERS

The Company’s compliance with the relevant provisions set out in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide in Appendix 27
of the Listing Rules for the financial year ended 31 December 2022 are
set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report on pages 56
to 100 of this annual report.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
The Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December
2022 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire

at the forthcoming AGM, and being eligible, offer themselves for
reappointment.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

There is no significant events occurring after the reporting period.

By Order of the Board
Sun Yajie
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

i
pwec

To the Shareholders of Capital Industrial Financial Services Group
Limited

(Formerly known as Shougang Concord Grand (Group) Limited)
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Capital Industrial Financial
Services Group Limited (formerly known as Shougang Concord Grand
(Group) Limited) (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”),
which are set out on pages 132 to 274, comprise:

the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2022;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;
and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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BASIS FOR OPINION (continued)

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

o Provision for expected credit losses of receivables under sale and
leaseback arrangements

o Impairment assessments of goodwill

Key Audit Matter
HRETER

ERMNE®R @

AR
BEESSHMASEMN(ELemEeE
AN A TEBIFR) - ROBIN BE
B YERBRATHPHEMEEEEET -

FAEETSR
MRENEARBRERMNELAE  RA
UABMES R BREANEHBRABEENS
H e BURERERMNEERESHBR
RERHABAKETRREMN - RATEHE
LERRHEBOBR -

BAMESTR AR BEEFFEMR RN
T

o EREBELIRTZEUREZERE
BEERE

o BEEREE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RITHETT NN EERREETSE

Provision for expected credit losses of receivables under
sale and leaseback arrangements

EREHLHE T 2 BRHIB BHE EE R R

Refer to Note 3.1 (b), Note 4(a) and Note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.
FHLHEG AP ERENE3.1(0b) « BisE4@) RHIEE20 -

Our procedures performed in relation to the expected credit
loss allowance of receivables under sale and leaseback
arrangements included:

AT EREAL YR T 2 BERIBZ BHEEEBRRER

As at 31 December 2022, the balance of the receivables
under sale and leaseback arrangements amounted to

MEiZFF %

approximately HK$1,090,114,000, net of provision for
expected credit loss (“ECL") of HK$21,648,000, which
represented approximately 54.3% of the total assets of
the Group. For the year ended 31 December 2022, a net
provision for expected credit losses of receivables under
sale and leaseback arrangements of HK$16,959,000
has been recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

RZZEZZF+ZA=1+—0 EREHELHEBETZE
W R IB 45 8R40 /275 %1,090,114,0007T GNRR TR BR(E B &5
B(BHREEBEE#EEE21,648,0007T) - 1§ &S
EREELS43% BE-_T-_—_F+=-A=+—AH1
FE  EROEZEETRKFIAZ AHEEHEESE
JFREE%16,959,000TT B RiR S 2 E I R AR ©
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Understood, evaluated and validated on a sample
basis the key controls over the expected credit loss
assessment of the receivables under sale and leaseback
arrangements, including the reversal of brought forward
provisions, and assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors;
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
FINBETNAEEBERENSIE

Provision for expected credit losses of receivables under
sale and leaseback arrangements (Continued)

EROHZHER T2 BN HIR 2 FRRE EERR ()

The Group assesses whether the credit risk of receivables
under sale and leaseback arrangements have increased
significantly since their initial recognition and applies a
three-stage impairment model to calculate the ECL. The
Group measured expected credit losses based on an
individual assessment of each borrower, after considering
their credit profile with reference to credit ratings assigned
by independent credit rating agencies.

EEENGEROMMEALTHIET 2 BUFENEER RS
NI ER AR R D RIRIE N - W ERA =& BRORERE 5
HHEHEEERE - ESELEZRRERANEGEELS
B ERZERANERIR G - 2RBLEETREE
Wit EEX KRG ERAEERHE -

The measurement model of expected credit losses involves
significant management judgement and assumptions,
primarily including the following:
BHEEBENTERAS NE RN E IR H B R REK
FEBELNTIA :

(1)  Criteria for determining whether or not there was
a significant increase in credit risk, or a default or
impairment loss was incurred;

(1) HEEERKRETPREEINTGELSRAEBENZ

pi-

(2) Economic indicators for forward-looking

measurements;
(2) RAIEEFTEREEZE

(3)  The estimated future cash flows for credit impaired
receivables in stage 3.
(3) FoREBREFHEEERAENERFENGET AR

e
@/ALE ©

In addition, the receivables under sale and leaseback
arrangements and provisions are significant to the
consolidated financial statements and the estimates of ECL
involved a significant level of judgement and assumptions
made by management and all these are subject to certain
level of estimation uncertainty and inherent risk of
subjectivity. In view of these reasons, we identified this as
a key audit matter.

tEoh - R B LB T 2 EUWGRIA & B s HH4R & B 7%
HEMSBEXR > MEBEBEMGATABEEHEREAEE
HEARE N FIE RRER - EFAERRREX—ER
EHHE T REMREEFTHEARATE - ENZER
B - AITRUL AR A IRRRERT FE -

o Evaluated the outcome of prior period assessment of
expected credit loss allowance of receivables under sale
and leaseback arrangements to assess the effectiveness
of management'’s estimation process;

o  FHMEBEHEEREBELZHET ZERKKIEZEHE
EEBEREIENER  EMFEEREEMATIZFS
B

o Evaluated the significant judgements and assumptions
involved in the expected credit losses measurement
model, including management’s assessment of
credit risk of each borrower, considering their credit
profiles, historical repayment patterns, publicly
available information of these borrowers, reports from
independent credit rating agencies and forward looking
factors such as market conditions and economic growth,
and assessed the reasonableness of the judgements and
assumptions adopted, including the reversal made;

s KRERXEBRANEELE BATEXER  ZFHE
RANDFAGEER  BUGETRBENRE UK
SRR MG BEERERRIERRE - FFREHEE
BREABEISRNERAGRRE  BREEEEY
BERRAGE R - RV H TSR A2 B R RR
BWaRM  BEMERD

. Performed recalculation of the ECL model to assess the
mathematical accuracy.

s REERZEHAMARESRAEEREENE MR
EMEERZ  FHEEERCRENHE=RENE
BEMZHIET 2B EEEERERKFIENTERE
BEEE Rk

Based on our procedures performed, the significant
judgements and assumptions adopted by management in the
ECL assessment were supportable by available evidence.
BERTARROET - BEEETGEEREEEERTE
MEVE AR A R BRROEIRABE SR -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
ARFTER

R EITEIE @

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
FINBETNAEEBERENSIE

Impairment assessments of goodwill

BB E AT

Refer to Note 2.11 and Note 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.
F2HERAVBRENE2. 11 RHIFE18 -

The Group’s goodwill was allocated to three subsidiaries,
being the lowest level within the Group at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purpose.
ERECEEIEE=RMNBEARIE] EX£EHNAE
EEENmMEE AR EETEENARKERER -

The Group tests goodwill for impairment at least annually.
In carrying out the goodwill impairment assessments,
management determines the recoverable amount of each
CGU by using value in use calculation (“VIU") or fair
value less cost of disposal (“FVLCOD"). These assessments
involved significant management judgement and estimates
in the discounted cash flow calculation and the application
of assumptions in the models, including interest rate
spread and gross profit margin for the coming five years,
terminal growth rates and discount rates used in the
projection periods.

EXEEELEFARA-REERE RETHERE
A EREERAERERBE(EREENEESA
MIREeELBMI AR BEREEXARN (R ER L EK
AN KO EHE - ZEFFESRURRSREAED
EIREE ARG R RAEREPRARE - BERK
AERFEZRENE - BABBMAKRIEERE KA
HE o

Our procedures performed in relation to management’s
goodwill impairment assessment include:

AITREREREREMNGRRNERF BT

o Obtained an understanding of the management’s
internal control and assessment process of goodwill
impairment assessment and assessed the inherent risk
of material misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent risk
factors;

e EREBEHEHBRMENGETHANIDEERTMERE
P WERERMGATHEENEREE REMBRE RR
FEHKFHEERRERRAEEE AR

o Evaluated the outcome of prior period assessment of
goodwill impairment to assess the effectiveness of
management’s estimation process;

o  FHMEBEHEMEBRENENER  KEmTEERE
A2

. Evaluated and tested, on a sample basis, the key
controls over the goodwill impairment assessment;

o HEFHEMREHEEREMNENERETER

o Evaluated the composition of the Group’s future cash
flow forecasts in developing the VIU calculations of each
group of CGUs, and the process by which they were
drawn up, including comparing the forecasts to the
latest budgets approved by management;

o M EEEHMRERNBRESELBNZEREBERE
MEFT 2 BR(BREEEE BRI ERERTEA
B 2 KRB REFAASE

o Involved our internal valuation experts to assess the
discount rates applied by management in the valuation;

s AHHEERSEFEEEEEMGETAERANRER
S%z o

=
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
FINBETNAEEBERENSIE

Impairment assessments of goodwill (Continued)

BE B ERF I ()

As a result of the impairment assessment, the Group
recognised impairment loss for the goodwill over “Assets
management and consultancy services” CGU amounted to
HK$945,000 for the year ended 31 December 2022.
BERENGEER  AEERBE T -_—_F+-A=
T—BIEFERIEEETE LHARKIRCEEELE
REEREREEE % 945,0007T

After the impairment loss recognised during the year, the
Group had goodwill HK$55,543,000 as at 31 December
2022. Management concluded that no further impairment
would be necessary.

REEHRREBERR  AEER _T_—_F+_-_A=
+— BHEA R EBES5,543,0007 - BEEELER
BLEE—TRE -

We focused on this area due to the size of goodwill
balance and the impairment assessment involved
significant judgement and estimates made by
management.

HREEER AR BREMEIREEBELNE
AHEr R AEE - B AT SR RIS -

o Challenged management’s key assumptions in the
assessment including the interest rate spread and gross
profit margin for the coming five years in the forecasts,
the terminal growth rates, by making reference to the
historical performance and future business plans of each
group of CGUs and benchmarking the assumptions
used with our market analysis;

s RBEREFRCELEBMNBERE RARKEB
EIARARITTIS DA ARRHELER  BRERE
BHEAEERR  BREAARKEFHNEER
ENER - RIPERE

o Evaluated the sensitivity analysis performed by
management around the interest rate spread and gross
profit margin for the coming five years, terminal growth
rates and discount rates to ascertain that the extent
and likelihood of such changes have been appropriately
considered;

e FMEEEEHARARAFHOMEEZRENE  KIHER
ERMMEBETZHBRESN - UREZSE DB
BEEZBZIEERATREN : &

o Checked the mathematical accuracy of management’s
value-in-use calculations; and

s RUEEEGCREEHENRBERKE -

Based on the procedures performed, we found the
judgements and estimates made by management in relation
to the impairment assessment were supportable by available
evidence.

RIEPTEREREVAZ P~ AT 3R B 1R B sLRUE R 2 2 B
STEEBE S -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group'’s financial reporting process.

Capital Industrial Financial Services Group Limited Annual Report 2022
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lee Chun Wah, Ryan.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 24 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEEEWER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HiZE — T - —F+=-A=+—HILFE

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—%F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 BT T EEET I
(Restated)
(& E5)
Continuing operations BEREER ‘
Revenue under sale and leaseback EREBELTHERETLER
arrangements and entrusted loan Lk W
arrangements 5| 90,300 91,104
Revenue from supply chain management REHEREEEER 2 W
business 5 275,880 1,803,045
Property leasing income MERERA 5 4,458 1,445
Total revenue UL = 370,638 1,895,594
Cost of revenue under sale and leaseback E1& BT HER K A
arrangements 8 (20,684) (12,373)
Cost of revenue from supply chain KEHERERRB KA
management business DN 8 (263,122) (1,780,530)
Gross profit EF 86,832 102,691
Other income HAm U A 6 9,696 5,831
Other gains, net HA e F58 7 36,310 77
Provision for impairment of receivables, net & Y 5k I8 5 & 7 5 % 58 10 (17,150) (2,927)
Selling expenses HEMZ 8 (3,317) (2,780)
Administrative expenses TEAX ) 8 (53,480) (58,804)
Changes in fair value of investment REMEZ AR EED
properties 17 (2,471) 5,244
Changes in fair value of financial assets FHRBEREREEANBERE L
at fair value through profit or loss TRMEEZARBEE 23 (1,530) 1,492
Impairment loss on goodwill R E 18 18 (945) =
Operating profit KRR 53,945 50,824
Finance costs BB RN 11 (4,812) (3,530)
Share of profit of an associate JE{h — B2 R a)aE 19 523 2,328
Profit before income tax B AT 15 % A0 % R 49,656 49,622
Income tax expense TSR X 12 (16,178) (7,571)
Profit from continuing operations BEKSEELRR 33,478 42,051
(Loss)/profit from discontinued operation (KRR EEE AEMN)
(attributable to equity holders of the BRI EER
Company) (E518), 3 F 29 (1,241) 442
Profit for the year FEERF 32,237 42,493
Profit is attributable to: AT A TSR
Owners of the Company ZAN/NSIES PN 14,526 27,294
Non-controlling interests JEFERE R = 17,711 15,199
32,237 42,493
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FEZEREX
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T __F+_A=+—HILFE

2022 2021
—E-— —E-—%F
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
B EE BT BT T
(Restated)
(& E5)
Profit for the year FERA 32,237 42,493
Other comprehensive (loss)/income HIEEREEBELEN
arising from continuing operations Htg2m (558), W
Items that have been/may be reclassified to ~ E 48 FIEEEBFH »IEZE
profit or loss: BmsHE -
Changes in fair value of debt instruments FREM P E KRR
at fair value through other AREREEZEBIA
comprehensive income /NI =L £ - (373)
Transfer to profit or loss on disposal of & E B E A 2 E WA IR
debt instrument at fair value through AREREZEELE
other comprehensive income Fred it =18 550K - (12)
Items that will not be reclassified to T EEF TR R
profit or loss: HH -
Currency translation differences EHRE ERE (144,009) 39,027
Share of currency translation difference of A AR EDE— M
an associate for using equity method BN m BEHmE 5 (7,573) 2,236
Revaluation of buildings upon transfer BE - WEREENR
from property, plant and equipment ERAREEEERE
and right- of-use assets to investment RENHEREHETF
properties - 56,353
Income tax relating to the revaluation of FHAESHEFZMEN
buildings - (14,079)
(151,582) 83,152
Other comprehensive (loss)/income HEALKREXEREEN
arising from discontinued operation Hit2E(E8) W
Items that will not be reclassified to B TEEF S EEEm
profit or loss: EA -
Currency translation differences EEmE T (3,704) 1,042
Total comprehensive (loss)/income FERE(EE)WEEHE
for the year (123,049) 126,687
Total comprehensive (loss)/income UTALTEERE(BR),
attributable to: Wras 458
Owners of the Company Zl»"&ﬂﬁﬁ}\ (108,635) 92,680
Non-controlling interests SRR HE = (14,414) 34,007
(123,049) 126,687
Total comprehensive (loss)/income BARFEAEMELE
attributable to owners of the BUATEAEZZMHE
Company arising from: (B518) W48 % -
Continuing operations o 425 4 MK 2 (103,690) 91,196
Discontinued operation BRI ET (4,945) 1,484
(108,635) 92,680
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FezERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HiZE — T - —F+=-A=+—HILFE

2022 2021
—E-— —E-—%F
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
B aE BT BT
(Restated)
€<=
Earnings per share for profit from ERAREBERSEAERGRE
continuing operations attributable BEREXBRRTNEBRE
to the ordinary equity holders of the F
Company:
Basic and diluted (HK cents) BN R (B AL) 14 0.40 0.67
Earnings per share for profit attributable Z&2 FEERITE AEEE
to the ordinary equity holders of the FHEREF :
Company:
Basic and diluted (HK cents) BN B (Bl 14 0.37 0.68

Lt AR & 2 K R R PR B BE P P o — 5 B
The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be 5 -

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BB AR RR

At 31 December 2022 R—ZE—-—F+_-H=+—H

2022 2021
—E-C T
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5T BT T ST T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment I E A 15 954 1,516
Right-of-use assets EREEE 16 8,213 16,807
Investment properties REYHE 17 133,202 144,498
Intangible assets mEE 18 65,025 67,107
Interests in an associate Il NI 19 83,951 92,930
Receivables under sale and leaseback EREHELTHET
arrangements FEM R IA 20 333,229 319,749
Financial assets at fair value through FERBERRIEZANEEE
profit or loss ZEMEE 23 2,809 4,339
Prepayments TEfS IR 21 3,814 4,226
Deferred tax assets BLEFIREE 28 2,384 2,661
Total non-current assets ERBEEHE 633,581 653,833
Current assets REEE
Receivables under sale and leaseback EREHELHET 2
arrangements FEM R IE 20 756,885 1,030,623
Receivable under credit financing EEREZBIET 2B
arrangement FKIE 33 168,453 =
Inventories FE 22 - 3,542
Trade and bill receivables JEWE SRR R EWEE 21 15,033 31,489
Prepayments, deposits and other TBRFRIE - e REM
receivables FEM IR 21 33,558 219,013
Restricted bank deposits ZRRHIRITER 24 75,817 =
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEeEEIER 24 322,904 387,095
Total current assets B EEMLEE 1,372,650 1,671,762
Total assets EEMALE 2,006,231 2,325,595
EQUITY =
Share capital [N 30 39,846 39,846
Reserves & 1,377,222 1,497,811
Capital and reserves attributable to ERARRFEABRERER
owners of the Company e 1,417,068 1,537,657
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR = 338,308 352,722
Total equity B 1,755,376 1,890,379
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e M BMRRE

At 31 December 2022 R—ZE -~ +_-HA=+—H

2022 2021
—E-= T —%F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B aE BT T BET I
LIABILITIES 8E&
Non-current liabilities FkRBEME
Secured bank borrowings EIRIRERTTIE 5K 27 - 94,319
Lease liabilities HEBE 16 6,876 13,686
Deferred tax liabilities BELHIER R 28 20,619 10,850
Total non-current liabilities Fnpafes 27495 118,855
Current liabilities REBEE
Bills payables JER R’ 25 84,974 -
Other payables and accruals HEMENRERETER 25 68,641 68,502
Secured bank borrowings BIRIRERITIE X 27 13,639 196,603
Loan from a related party —HEEATHER 33 30,643 =
Security deposits received ERFRS 20 1,399 6,098
Contract liabilities AHEE 16 10,115
Lease liabilities HEAE 16 2,315 3,618
Current tax liabilities BB B E 21,733 31,425
Total current liabilities rBefes 0 223360 . 316,361
Total liabilities =Rt 250,855 435,216
Total equity and liabilities HREZNEE 2,006,231 2,325,595

The consolidated financial statements on pages 132 to 274 were ESZE@WR T -_=F=-A_-+MHA#EF132

approved by the Board of Directors on 24 March 2023 and were signed  Z274
on its behalf. BRE o
Sun Yajie
BEAR
Director
EE

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T __F+_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

LN PN
Property  Investment  Contributed Non-
Share Share  revaluation  revaluation surplus— Translation Other ~ Retained controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reseve  eamings  Sub-fotal interests Total
Br ROEE NEEREE REERER SARREE AHEE  ApHE  RERY N HBRER &
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BETn BETr B%Tn BETn B¥Tn BT BT Rt BB
(Note (a) (Note (c))
(3 (a) (W)
Balance at 1 January 2021 “3C-5-f-REH% 39846 766,818 7392 385 115,576 (7147) 51,838 464529 1,445,637 31835 1,763,989
Comprehensive income 2EHE
Profit for the year FER - - - = = = S 0% 9% 15199 4493
Other comprehensive income/(loss) H2Eks/ (58
Currency translation difference ERREES - - = = -3 = - 7690 40,069
Share of currency translation difference of FREAER AR
an associate by using equity method BELREEAEEE - = = = = 1677 = = 1677 559 2,236
Changes in fair value of debt instrument at FRAMIERGRALE
fair value through other comprehensive income REZBERIAZNAE
23 - - - (313) - - - - (373) - (373)
Transfer to profit or loss on disposal of debt HERBEMEANER
instrument at fair value through other MEREERIER
comprehensive income EHERGE - - - (12 - - - - (12 - (12
Revaluation of buildings upon transfer from BE  HERRENR
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use FRELEBRERENE
assets to investment properties REfET = = D274 = = = = L 14,079 56,353
Income tax relating to the revaluation of budings ~ BEEEEF 2SR - - (10,559) = = = = - (10559) (3520 (14,079
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year ERRRENE/ (BR) - = 31715 (385) - 3405 - - 653% 18808 84194
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year ~ £E2E R/ (FB)4E = = 31,715 (385) = 34,056 = 27,094 92,680 34,007 126,687
Transaction with owners in their capacity REEAGIEBEASR)
as owners EHRS
Capital injection in a subsidiary —ANBARRE - = = = = = (660) = (660) 363 (297)
Subtoa gt - - - - - - SV R B
Balance at 31 December 2021 Z§--F+ZB=+-H
&5 39846 7663818 39,107 - 115,576 33309 51,178 491823 1,537,657 352,722 1890379
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

RERRREX

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HiZE — T - —F+=-A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ERFREARE
Property  Investment  Contributed Non-
Share Share  revaluation  revaluation surplus  Translation Other  Retained controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve  eamings  Sub-total interests Total
Ba  ROEE NEERRE REBHEE HRABBRE AHEEE  HeRE  REEV Nt FBRER by
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
BT EBTR AT EBTR EBTR BMTn BMTRn ERTn BMTR ERTn EMTn
(Note (a) (Note (¢))
(& (a)) ()
Balance at 1 January 2022 “S2E-A-REH _ 39846 766818 39,107 - 115,576 33309 51,178 491,823 1,537,657 352,722 1,890,379
Comprehensive income 2EHE
Profit for the year FER - - - - - - - 14526 14,526 17,111 0,237
Other comprehensive loss 2 EER
Currengy translation difference ERpEZE - - - - - (1748) - - (M7481)  (30232)  (147.713)
Share of currency translation difference of FREAER AR
an associate by using equity method BENFERREEE - - - - - (5,680) - - (5,680) (1,893) (1573)
Other comprehensive loss for the year EEEMEAGE - - - - - (13761) - - (I3061) (32125 (155,286)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year ~ £E 2 (1) /WM E - - - - - (13161 - 14526 (108,635  (14414)  (123,049)
Transaction with owners in their capacity BEBAEREASH)
as owners ETHRE
Dividends paid (Note 13) BARE (H13) - - - - - - - (1195) (11954 - (1195
Subtotal At - - - - - - -y (195 (K
Balance at 31 December 2022 k- Smbed 5 el
33 39846 766,318 39,107 - 115,576 (89.852) 51,178 494395 1,417,068 338308 1755376
The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in & ¥l 4% & # &5 B &) 7% /i B2 B Bt Y = — 6F B3

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Notes:

(b)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

RAERBEFR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T __F+_A=+—HILFE

The contributed surplus reserve represents the difference between the
nominal value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group
reorganisation in 1991 over the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange, and the transfer and utilisation as mentioned in Note (b) below.

A special resolution was passed by shareholders of the Company at the special
general meeting of the Company held on 6 June 2008 and completed thereafter
that an amount of approximately HK$425,259,000 standing to the credit of the
share premium account of the Company as at 31 December 2007 be reduced,
with the credit arising there being transferred to the contributed surplus reserve
of the Company. Upon the said transfer becoming effective, an amount of
approximately HK$311,818,000 standing to the credit of the contributed surplus
reserve of the Company has been applied to eliminate the accumulated losses
of the Company as at 31 December 2007. The Company has complied with
the requirements of section 46(2) of The Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended). Details of which were set out in the circular of the Company dated 9
May 2008

The other reserve mainly represents a deemed capital contribution in relation
to the disposal of 40.78% equity interest in Global Digital Creations Holdings
Limited on 8 January 2019.

GEX

(a

BABRBRBRBERE-NANAL-—FZEEEA -
ARBAREHBELR 2RO EELEESKRE
METZARBBRMDEEMRE 2 Z8 R T XMW
Fo)Frit  BRRBA -

RZFZNFERNANABRITZARFREEF
AL ARRAREBAB—BREIRZRILR
HEXBRRZEAD  R-ZTTLFE+-A=
T—BARARNEERZERSBLHELE
425,259,000 T # B R + FTE £ 2 B R AGE#
EARRZHABHBEHEE - R EBER
% ARABABRKBBEZERSBOEE
311,818,0007tE AEEARTR =TT LF
TZA=T—HZZRFAEB - ARRBEETH
RE-NN—FRRNEURIER]) FE46(2)1& 21
T ABFHBHIRARRBHA-TENE
HANE 2K -

HMHEBEIER - RAEBER_ZT—hF—AN

B EIRERES Bl Z 12 ARG IR A §]40.78% IR 42
ZREIEEE -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HiZE — T - —F+=-A=+—HILFE

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
Note HK$’'000 HK$'000
B 5T BET T BT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHRERE
Cash generated from operations KEFISIR® 32 303,360 73,585
Interest paid EAFE (9,407) (12,747)
Income tax paid BTFREH (12,607) (11,881)
Net cash generated from operating RETBBRSFE
activities 281,346 48,957
Cash flows from investing activities RETEBRESRE
Dividends received from an associate B —EBEARIZERE 19 1,929 2,996
Interest received BEFE 6 9,591 3,821
Payments for acquisition of shares of Wi — R B A R IR,
a subsidiary (NE: - (297)
Proceeds on disposal of debt instruments HEFBHEMEmMKEE
at fair value through other AREREZEBIA
comprehensive income FriS#k18 - 15,957
Purchase of property, plant and equipment B E¥% - BE L& E 15 (69) (1,179)
Payments for intangible assets M EE IR 18 (6,133) (34)
Net cash generated from investing RETHMBREFHE
activities 5,318 21,264

Capital Industrial Financial Services Group Limited Annual Report 2022



For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z =%

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

SEeRERER
SoEtCAST-ALAE

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
Note HK$’'000 HK$'000
B 5T BT T BT T
Cash flow from financing activities RMETBHRERE
Repayment to secured bank borrowings EERDIEMIETER (342,245) (141,674)
Proceeds from secured bank borrowings BIRERITE RIS RIE 70,000 148,382
Proceed from loan from a related party —HBEBALTERE
FRIA 29,724 -
Repayments of lease liabilities BEHEAR (3.329) (2,567)
Payments to non-controlling interests ) JE 428 I 2 A< 3K - (4,162)
Dividends paid to shareholders R ESENEIEN (11,954) -
Change in restricted bank deposit SR HISRITIF R E &) (78,579) =
Net cash used in financing activities RETEFARESFHE (336,383) 1)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and BHERRELEEEH
cash equivalents (Ri2),/#hnE4E (49,719) 70,200
Cash and cash equivalents at RETNzREREEE
beginning of the year EH 387,095 318,818
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EREB) 5 (14,472) (1,923)
Cash and cash equivalents at RELKZRERBESEE
end of the year HAH 322,904 387,095

For cash flows of discontinued operation, please refer to Note 29 of the

consolidated financial statements.

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.

FRERIEKLEEBNRS
B TR EHIFE29 -
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Capital Industrial Financial Services Group Limited (formerly known
as Shougang Concord Grand (Group) Limited) (the “Company”)
is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited
liability and its shares are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its controlling shareholder,
which is defined under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange as a person which is entitled to exercise or
control the exercise of 30% or more of the voting power at general
meetings of an issuer, is Shougang Holding (Hong Kong) Limited
(“Shougang Holding”), a company incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability, and the ultimate holding company of Shougang
Holding is Shougang Group Co., Ltd., a company established in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the Company
are disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section to the annual
report.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its significant subsidiaries are provision of sale and
leaseback arrangements services, property leasing services, supply
chain management business, assets management and consultancy
services.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi (“RMB")
while the presentation currency is Hong Kong dollars (“HK$").
The primary economic environment in which the Company’s
subsidiaries operate is the Mainland China (for the purpose of
this report, “Mainland China” refers to the mainland of the PRC
and does not include Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan). Exchange
differences relating to the translation of the assets and liabilities
of the subsidiaries with the same functional currency with the
Company (i.e. RMB) to the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. HK$) are recognised directly in other comprehensive income
and accumulated translation reserve. Such exchange differences
accumulated in the translation reserve are not reclassified to profit
or loss subsequently. The consolidated financial statements are
presented in thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (“HK$'000"),
unless otherwise stated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these financial statements. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRS") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss and investment properties
which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group'’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in Note 4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRENE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a)

Amendments and interpretations adopted by the

Group

The following amendments to standards and
interpretations apply for the first time to financial
reporting period commencing on or after 1 January

2022:

Annual Improvements Project

FEBEEE

Amendment to HKFRS 3, HKAS 16 and HKAS 37

BBV BMEENFEIG HAEG
BT ERIFEI7H 2185

Amendment to HKFRS 16

BB MEERF 169 2157]

Accounting Guideline 5 (Revised)

RRIERT @ RTHEEIE55%

The amendments listed above did not have any material
impact on the amounts recognised in prior period and
are not expected to significantly affect the current or

future periods.

Capital Industrial Financial Services Group Limited Annual Report 2022

SHERIE 165N E

2 EBEASTTHEHME@

2.1 wBEZE @)
(a) AEERMBBITRRE

NTEARREBZETNZ
T _F—-HA—HB%HZER
e MBS SEE XE
A :

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020
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Narrow-scope amendments

RS ERENER]

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 2021
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2

POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New standards, amendments and interpretations (b)

not yet adopted

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRENE

BEREFTHEREEm)

2.1 RBEZE @)

o RERAR BV FTZE R - BRT R
2e

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on

or after
RTIBEHHER
sz Et MEEXR

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2

BEGHERE VR REAMBERE
LRIEZE LR E25% 2 18F]

Amendments to HKAS 8

ARG ERES 21BE]

Amendments to HKAS 12

BAGTEAF125 2 18F]

HKFRS 17

AR BWEERE 175
Amendments to HKFRS 17

BB EMELERE 1792185
HKFRS 17

BBV BREENE 7%
Amendments to HKAS 1

BB ETHERE 1R 21BE]
Amendments to HKAS 1
BEGTEAFE 1R 2185
Amendments to HKFRS 16
BBV B REERF 1698 21E5]
HK Interpretation 5 (Revised)

BERERSREZERT

Disclosure of Accounting Policies 1 January 2023

BEHEE L RHE —E-=£-5—§

Definition of Accounting Estimates

Btz R

Deferred Tax Related to Assets and
Liabilities Arising from a Single
Transaction

HE - HEFLNEERBERBARRIT
A

Insurance Contracts (New Standard)

TRER S 4 G481 —E-=F—H—H

Insurance Contracts 1 January 2023

RExa % —E-=%—H—H

Initial Application of HKFRS 17 and HKFRS 1 January 2023
9 — Comparative Information

BREREBMBRELERENTHRENREE
B ISR E LRI 95 — AILLEE KL

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current

1 January 2023
—ZE=%—H—H
1 January 2023
—E2-=F—H—H

1 January 2023

—E-_=%—H—H

1 January 2024

BESBARBIIERD —T-_WF—A—H
Non-current Liabilities with Covenants 1 January 2024
M2 IERE B E —T_WFE—A—H
Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback 1 January 2024
EREOMNEERE —ZT-WF—-A—H

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (Revised)
Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a
Term Loan that Contains a Repayment
on Demand Clause (HK Int 5 (Revised))

1 January 2024

HERBESIR ZEF] i it
FIBRRAZD) - BERAHEHIREK —H—H

BERERCEMERZ DR (FERE
FE55RZEFT)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRENE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New standards, amendments and interpretations
not yet adopted (Continued)

ERSTHEREMEm@m
2.1 wREEE®E

(b) EARFRMBFER - ETK

2B

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on

or after
RTIBEHHER
Mz at MEEXR

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an

To be determined

28 Investor and its Associate or Joint

Venture

BV BHRESEAF 10X REEG REFZHEBER
EHEIRA

AR 2857 2 185]

Certain new accounting standards, amendments to
accounting standards and interpretations have been
published that are not mandatory for 31 December
2022 reporting period and have not been early adopt
by the Group. The Group is still assessing what the
impact of the new standards, interpretations and
amendments will be in the period of initial application.
It is not yet in a position to state whether these new
standards, interpretations and amendments will have a
significant impact on the Group's results of operations
and financial position.

2.2 Restatements due to discontinued operation
Certain comparative information for the year ended 31
December 2021 has been restated in order to disclose the
discontinued operation separately from the continuing
operations.

As the restatements do not affect the consolidated
statement of financial position, it is not necessary to disclose

comparative information as at 1 January 2021.

Please refer to Note 29 for the details of the discontinued
operation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting

(a)

(b)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity where the Group
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power to direct the activities
of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group (refer
to Note 2.4).

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between Group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the transferred asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries
have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of financial position respectively.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control or joint
control. This is generally the case where the Group
holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting, after initially being
recognised at cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRENE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)

(0

Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition profits or losses of the investee in profit
or loss, and the Group’s share of movements in
other comprehensive income of the investee in other
comprehensive income. Dividends received or receivable
from associates are recognised as a reduction in the
carrying amount of the investment.

Where the Group’s share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest in
the entity, including any other unsecured long-term
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of equity-accounted investees have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments
is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
described in Note 2.11.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)

(d)

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. A
change in ownership interest results in an adjustment
between the carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount of the adjustment to non-controlling interests
and any consideration paid or received is recognised in
a separate reserve within equity attributable to owners
of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of control
or significant influence, any retained interest in the
entity is remeasured to its fair value with the change
in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. This
fair value becomes the initial carrying amount for
the purposes of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to
another category of equity as specified or permitted by
applicable HKFRSs.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRENE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.4 Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for all business combinations, regardless of whether equity
instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

. fair values of the assets transferred;

o liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired
business;

o equity interests issued by the Group;

o fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangements; and

o fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with limited
exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net identifiable
assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
The excess of the:
o consideration transferred;

o amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired
entity; and

o acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquired entity.

Over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair
value of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired,
the difference is recognised directly in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

24

2.5

2.6

Business combinations (Continued)

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is
deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted
to their present value as at the date of exchange. The
discount rate used is the Group’s incremental borrowing
rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be
obtained from an independent financier under comparable
terms and conditions. Contingent consideration is classified
either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as
a financial liability are subsequently remeasured to fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value
at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising from such
remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The chief operating decision-maker,
who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the Managing Director of the Company that makes
strategic decisions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRENE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.7 Foreign currency translation

0]

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in HK$. The
functional currency of the Company is RMB.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in
profit or loss. They are deferred in equity if they relate
to qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net
investment hedges or are attributable to part of the net
investment in a foreign operation.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings are presented in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income within finance costs. All other
foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a
net basis within administrative expenses.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined.
Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried
at fair value are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss. For example, translation differences on
non-monetary assets and liabilities such as equity
instruments held at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain
or loss and translation differences on non-monetary
assets such as equity instruments classified as fair value
through other comprehensive income are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Capital Industrial Financial Services Group Limited Annual Report 2022

2

BEREFTHEREEm)

2.7 HzE

(i)

(i)

ERZEIE

AREBERETEERBNITE
EAMEHIAR - HIRLESR
REFRENNEREHERE
mEE(ThEE®TE -
HAaPBREANEEZT -
ARAFAHNNEEER/RAR

il %T"JF

k

R 5 KRR

SNERZ BERAR 5 B B E
RMERYEER - BEEUL
ERXGEER AR K INES
BENEBEERABRAFR
PE R (B 37 H AT E A AV EE IR
mREE-RNIBERER -
WA ERBEEREH R
FEFRELH Bk R
BINEBEREFENE D HE
A& RN IR -

B85 5K A R O I e es K S
BEAEEEKERARE
BRI - A HADE
AEMERERE2ER
|mRARTTEF X P IRFR
EAEDIR -

BRARBERENINEIFER
HIHE  REAAEETEA
MERME - IMRAAEFE
MEEMABEREEZERER
REBARAEWEIEIE -
pln - EERMHEERARE
(PIanFris B R BRERIE AR
ERERETR MRS
EREREANERR/AAE
W s BRH — 80 MR
BHEEEDIDBABEBE
EE KRR AL EREN
TR MGEEZENEM
2HEKEAER



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRENE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 ST BERELE @)
POLICIES (continued)
2.7 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

2.7 INEBRE )

(iii) Group companies (iii) %I’\ﬁ
The results and financial position of foreign operations e EEBRIRENEMEH
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary FIBEBNEB(ZEEBH
economy) that have a functional currency different EREBREREWIREER
from the presentation currency are translated into the B E ) B EE R AR -

presentation currency as follows:

o assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

o income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are translated at the
dates of the transactions); and

o all resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of any net investment in foreign entities,
and of borrowings and other financial instruments
designated as hedges of such investments, are
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a
foreign operation is sold or any borrowings forming
part of the net investment are repaid, the associated
exchange differences are reclassified to profit or loss, as
part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at
the closing rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRENE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
2.7 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iv) Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal
On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over
a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of significant influence over an
associate that includes a foreign operation), all of the
currency translation differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to the owners
of the company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result
in the Group losing control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, the proportionate share
of accumulated currency translation differences are
re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are
not recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial
disposals (that is, reductions in the Group’s ownership
interest in associate that do not result in the Group
losing significant influence), the proportionate share of
the accumulated exchange difference is reclassified to
profit or loss.

2.8 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8

2.9

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their cost or revalued amounts, net of their
residual values, over their estimated useful lives or, in the
case of leasehold improvements and certain leased plant and
eguipment, the shorter lease term as follows:

Over the shorter of terms of the
lease of the land or 50 years
Over the shorter of terms of the

lease or 5 years
4 years
3 to 10 years

Buildings
Leasehold improvements

Motor vehicles
Furniture, fitting and
equipments

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.11).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Investment properties

Investment properties, principally the residential property
units, are held for long-term rental yields and are not
occupied by the Group. Investment property is initially
measured at cost, including related transaction costs and
where applicable borrowing costs. Subsequently, they are
carried at fair value. Changes in fair values are presented
in profit or loss as part of consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRENE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.10 Intangible assets

0]

(i)

Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as described in Note 2.3.
Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that it might be impaired, and
is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include
the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity
sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for
the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is
made to those cash-generating units or groups of
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the business combination in which the goodwill
arose. The units or groups of units are identified at the
lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes, which is not larger than an
operating segment.

Software platform

The acquired software platform is stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment loss. Costs
associated with maintaining software platform are
recognised as an expense as incurred. Development
costs that are directly attributable to the design and
testing of identifiable and unique software platform
controlled by the group are recognised as intangible
assets where the following criteria are met:

o it is technically feasible to complete the software
so that it will be available for use;
o management intends to complete the software

and use or sell it;

. there is an ability to use or sell the software;
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRENE

ST BERELE @)

2.10 B EE (#)

2.10 Intangible assets (Continued)

(i) Software platform (Continued)
o it can be demonstrated how the software will
generate probable future economic benefits;

. adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development and to use or sell
the software are available; and

o the expenditure attributable to the software
during its development can be reliably measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of
the software include employee costs and an appropriate
portion of relevant overheads. Capitalised development
costs are recorded as intangible assets and amortised
from the point at which the asset is ready for use.

Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate the cost over their estimated lives of
5 years.

2.11 Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill that has an indefinite useful life is not subject to
amortisation and is tested annually for impairment, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs of disposal and value-in-use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which
are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets
or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of
each reporting period.

(i) iM’-‘rSF“( %)
o  BREmEBEBTMEMBMA
HEET BE B AR R AL

Gl

o BEERMOEIM - B
REMERTRFAEL
AEARmERT &

s HUHHBEHREGNF
X RERI SEHET & o

ERRBYAER AR
HHENKAS  BRESKRA
CEBERNEERD - B
AERFHEXANGT AR E
= WHEE AR
JREESH -

BN R ERERE G
ERFRRFIERMAA

21N FEEMEENRE

BEHETE R A F RN EEHA R
i BEASFEREND WA
EHIBRE SR AL B I RE
B - RPETTRESARARERIR - B
W EERFHHRKIBREBERR
BRI E AJ B A W3 B A 1T R (BB
& o BEBEREENREAERLY
H ] o] & FEE) ZRRFERR o AT Ul
SHNEENDAER D ERALA
REREEME ZBRESERE
é”ﬁﬁfﬁﬂ% : ﬁ??ﬁﬁi‘f%ﬂ?i
é?i‘ﬂ/\mfﬁi//wk)mﬁi{ﬁ’://\
(ReELEBE)HHE - HERER
FemEEGEHEINNESREH
Rigmad Al B B LKA -

2025 EHRE BEREXSRBRBEEEERATF

157



158

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRENE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.12 Investments and other financial assets

0]

(i)

Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

° those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income
("OClI") or through profit or loss), and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held
for trading, this will depend on whether the Group
has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment at fair
value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets
changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership.
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2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.12 Investments and other financial assets

(Continued)
(iii) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL"),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or
loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are
three measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

o Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest rate
method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
is recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in other gains, net together with
foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment
losses are presented as separate line item in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRENE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.12 Investments and other financial assets

(Continued)
(iii) Measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest, are
measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying
amount are taken through OCI, except for
the recognition of impairment gains or losses,
interest income and foreign exchange gains and
losses which are recognised in profit or loss.
When the financial asset is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
in OCl is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss and recognised in other gains, net. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest rate
method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in other gains, net and impairment
expenses are presented as separate line item in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL.
A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at FVPL is recognised
in profit or loss and presented net within other
gains, net in the period in which it arises.
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2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Measurement (Continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value gains
and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no
subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses
to profit or loss following the derecognition of the
investment. Dividends from such investments continue
to be recognised in profit or loss as other income when
the Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL
are recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as applicable. Impairment
losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity
investments measured at FVOCI are not reported
separately from other changes in fair value.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments at amortised cost and at FVOCI. The
impairment methodology applied depends on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRENE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.13 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the consolidated statement of financial position
where the Group currently has a legally enforceable right
to offset the recognised amounts, and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously. The Group has also entered into
arrangements that do not meet the criteria for offsetting
but still allow for the related amounts to be set off in certain
circumstances, such as bankruptcy or the termination of a
contract.

2.14 Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods
sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business.
They are generally due for settlement within 30 to 90 days
and therefore all classified as current.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain
significant financing components, when they are recognised
at fair value. The group holds the trade receivables with
the objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and
therefore measures them subsequently at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

2.15 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost, calculated on the first-in-first-out basis, comprises
costs of purchases including the purchase price and other
directly attributable costs. It excludes borrowing costs. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable estimated variable selling
expenses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREME

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EBEAEFBERBE@

POLICIES (Continued)

2.16 Cash and cash equivalents 216 BEeRBELEEEH
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement FERERERZEZNNF  Rek
of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on REZEEEREFERE SR
hand and deposits held at call with financial institutions. T 3B AT 3 o

2.17 Share capital 217 B
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. TRRkoBERER -
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new BITHR O BRI E K AR
shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from W 2= MBI VE AT 1S 3B 2 HUR (BN Bk
the proceeds. HiIE) o
Where any Group company purchases the Company’s WA EEARBEARRRKREL
equity instruments, for example as the result of a share buy- B(WAERGOEETEmMES) 2
back plan, the consideration paid, including any directly HRERBEMEEEGIESSEMX
attributable incremental costs (net of income taxes) is R(HBRAAEN)) BAREIFE A
deducted from equity attributable to the owners of the EIEEREREFROMAEZR
Company as treasury shares until the shares are cancelled or T I E BT o
reissued.

2.18 Other payables 2.18 HAtt BT RIA
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services ZEFEARBFEELERAIAA
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year SEREE 2 ERERBHOREZNE
which are unpaid. Other payables are presented as current & o BRIFEH M BN RIBW IER RS
liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after HMe12@ A AR EER - TRIZ
the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair FIRREBEE - AthENFKIBF
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the BARERER  BEREAERRX
effective interest method. SEIRBE ARG & o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRENE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.19 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid
on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this
case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the
extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or
all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised
as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the
period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated statement
of financial position when the obligation specified in the
contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has
been extinguished or transferred to another party and the
consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred
or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as finance
costs.

Where the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated and
the entity issues equity instruments to a creditor to extinguish
all or part of the liability (debt for equity swap), a gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss, which is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability and the fair value of the equity instruments issued.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRENE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EARETHE#EME@
POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Borrowing cost 2.20 R A

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of
time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

Borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.

2.21 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period in the countries where the Company and
its subsidiaries and associate operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRENE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and
are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

The deferred tax liability in relation to investment property
that is measured at fair value is determined assuming the

property will be recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable that
future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those

temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount and
tax bases of investments in foreign operations where the
Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the differences

will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is
a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and where the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities
are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to
offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise

the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case,
the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or

directly in equity, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.22 Employee benefits

(i)

(i)

Short-term obligations

Short-term employee benefits are recognition at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid as and when employees rendered the services.
All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an
expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits the
inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employee (such as wages and salaries, annual leave and
sick leaves) after deducting any amount already paid.

Pension obligation

The Group operates a defined contribution plans for
its employees in Hong Kong and Mainland China.
A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under
which the Group pays fixed contributions to publicly
or privately administrated pension insurance plans
on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The
Group has no legal or constructive obligation to
pay further contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating
to employee services in the current and prior periods.
The contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future
payments is available.

In addition, pursuant to the relevant regulations of the
PRC government, the subsidiaries in Mainland China
participate in local municipal government retirement
benefits schemes (the “Schemes”), whereby the
subsidiaries in the PRC are required to contribute a
certain percentage of the basic salaries of its employees
to the Schemes to fund their retirement benefits. The
local municipal governments undertake to assume the
retirement benefits obligations of those employees of
the subsidiaries in the PRC. Contributions under the
Schemes are charged to the consolidation statement of
comprehensive income as incurred.

There were no forfeited contributions (by employers
on behalf of employees who leave the scheme prior
to vesting fully in such contributions) to offset existing
contributions under the defined contribution schemes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRENE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
2.22 Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii) Profit-sharing and bonus plans
The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses and profit-sharing based on a formula that
takes into consideration the profit attributable to the
Company’s shareholders after certain adjustments.
The group recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created a constructive obligation.

(iv) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the group before the normal retirement
date, or when an employee accepts voluntary
redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits at the earlier of the
following dates: (a) when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits; and (b) when
the entity recognises costs for a restructuring that is
within the scope of HKAS 37 and involves the payment
of terminations benefits. In the case of an offer made
to encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination
benefits are measured based on the number of
employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits
falling due more than 12 months after the end of the
reporting period are discounted to present value.

2.23 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events,
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.23 Provisions (Continued)

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period. The discount rate used to determine the present value
is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.
The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.

2.24 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the transaction price which is the
amount of consideration to which the Group is entitled to in
exchange for transferring promised services or goods to the
customer. The Group allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligation based on the relative standalone
selling prices. Revenue for each performance obligation is
then recognised when the Group satisfies the performance
obligation by transferring the promised goods or services to
the customer.

(a) Revenue under sale and leaseback arrangements
The Group enters into sale and leaseback arrangements
with individual customers, in which, the Group acts
as buyer-lessor and the customers act as seller-lessee.
As the transfer of the asset does not qualify as a
sale in accordance with HKFRS 15, the transaction
is in substance a collateral financing and the Group
recognises a receivable from sale and leaseback
arrangements and related interest revenue is recognised
over the lease period using the effective interest rate
method.

(b) Property leasing income
Property leasing income from investment properties is
recognised on a straight line basis over the terms of the
respective leases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRENE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.24 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(0

(d)

(e)

Consultancy service income

Consultancy service income is generated from advisory
services to the customers in relation to the financing
activities. The revenue is recognised either on a straight
line basis or at the point of performance obligation
have been satisfied base on the contract terms.

Supply chain management service income

Supply chain management service income is generated
from the provision of steel buying agency services in
the PRC. The revenue is recognised at the point of
performance obligation have been satisfied.

Revenue from trading of goods

The Group engages in trading of steel materials in the
PRC. Revenue is recognised at the point in time when
control of the products has transferred, being when the
products are delivered to the customers and there is no
unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’s
acceptance of the products.

2.25 Dividend income

Dividends are received from financial assets measured at FVPL
and FVOCI. Dividends are recognised as other income in profit
or loss when the right to receive payment is established. This
applies even if they are paid out of pre-acquisition profits,
unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the
cost of an investment. In this case, the dividend is recognised
in OCI if it relates to an investment measured at FVOCI.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.26 Earning per share

()

(i)

Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

the profit attributable to owners of the company,
excluding any costs of servicing equity other than
ordinary shares, and

the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for
bonus elements in ordinary shares issued during
the year and excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in
the determination of basic earnings per share to take
into account:

the after-income tax effect of interest and other
financing costs associated with dilutive potential
ordinary shares, and

the weighted average number of additional
ordinary shares that would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRENE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.27 Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is
available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components.
The Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
the lease and non-lease components based on their relative
stand-alone prices. However, for leases of real estate for
which the Group is a lessee, it has elected not to separate
lease and non-lease components and instead accounts for
these as a single lease component.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other
than the security interests in the leased assets that are held
by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured
on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net
present value of the following lease payments:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments),
less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payment that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the group under
residual value guarantees; and

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the group
is reasonably certain to exercise that option, and
payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement of
the liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRENE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EARETHE#EME@
POLICIES (continued)

2.27 Leases (Continued) 2.27 A& (@)

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
which is generally the case for leases in the group, the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate
that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the
right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with
similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group

o where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions since
third party financing was received; and

o makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term,
country, currency and security.

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available to the
individual lessee (through recent financing or market data)
which has a similar payment profile to the lease, then the
group entities use that rate as a starting point to determine
the incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the
lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each

period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

. the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;
o any lease payments made at or before the

commencement date less any lease incentives received;
. any initial direct costs; and

LJ restoration costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRENE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.27 Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter
of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-
line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain to exercise a
purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over
the underlying asset’s useful life. While the Group revalues its
land and buildings that are presented within property, plant
and equipment, it has chosen not to do so for the right-of-
use buildings held by the Group.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and
all leases of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-
line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases
are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less without a
purchase option.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a
lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
underlying asset and recognised as expense over the lease
term on the same basis as lease income. The respective leased
assets are included in the statement of financial position
based on their nature. The Group did not need to make any
adjustments to the accounting for assets held as lessor as a
result of adopting the new leasing standard.

2.28 Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared,
being appropriately authorised and no longer at the
discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting
period but not distributed at the end of the reporting period.

2.29 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary
to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRENE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EARETHE#EME@
POLICIES (continued)

2.30 Interest income 2.30 R B U A

Interest income from financial assets at FVPL is included in
the change in fair value of FVPL.

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost (other
than sale and leaseback arrangements) and financial assets
at FVOCI calculated using the effective interest method is
recognised in profit or loss as part of other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except
for financial assets that subsequently become credit-impaired.
For credit-impaired financial assets the effective interest rate
is applied to the net carrying amount of the financial asset
(after deduction of the loss allowance).

FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT
3.1 Finance risk factors

The Group’s financial instruments include debt instruments at
FVOCI, receivables under sale and leaseback arrangements,
receivable under credit financing arrangement, trade and
bill receivables, other receivables and deposits, restricted
bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents, bills payables,
secured bank borrowings, loan from a related party, other
payables and security deposits received. The risks associated
with these financial instruments include market risk (i.e.
foreign exchange risk, cash flow and fair value interest rate
risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRENE

3

FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Finance risk factors (Continued)
Market risk

(a)

()

(ii)

Foreign exchange risk

The normal operations and investments of
the Group are mainly in Hong Kong and
Mainland China, with revenue and expenditure
denominated in HK$ and RMB which are primarily
transacted using functional currencies of the
respective group entities. The Group is exposed
to the Dollar (“US$"”) denominated cash and cash
equivalents and the debt instrument at fair value
through other comprehensive income.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company
(the “Directors”), HK$ are pegged against with
US$ under the Linked Exchange Rate System,
and therefore, the Group does not have any
significant foreign exchange risk in respect of
transactions or balances denominated in US$.
Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis is performed.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk due to the fluctuation of market interest
rate on variable-rate receivables under sale and
leaseback arrangements, cash in banks, and
secured bank borrowings as disclosed. It is the
Group's policy to keep majority of its receivables
under sale and leaseback arrangements and
secured bank borrowings at floating rates of
interest so as to minimise the fair value interest
rate risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Finance risk factors (Continued)
(@) Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
(Continued)

The Group is also exposed to fair value interest
rate risk in relation to variable rate receivables
under sale and leaseback arrangements and
secured bank borrowings.

The Group currently does not use any derivative
contracts to hedge its exposure to interest rate
risk. However, the management will consider
hedging significant interest rate exposure should
the need arise.

At 31 December 2022, if interest rates had been
50 basis points (2021: 50 basis points) higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s pre-tax profit for the year ended
31 December 2022 would increase/decrease by
approximately HK$1,189,000 (2021: pre-tax
profit would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$1,784,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRENE

3

FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Finance risk factors (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(a)

(iii)

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
through its investments in listed bonds and
equity securities. The management manages
this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risks. The Group’s
equity price risk is mainly concentrated on equity
instruments of entities operating in Hong Kong
which are quoted in stock exchanges in Hong
Kong. The Group currently does not use any
derivative contracts to hedge its exposure to other
price risk. Management closely monitors the price
risk and will consider hedging the risk exposure
should that needs arise.

At 31 December 2022, if the prices of the
respective equity instruments at fair value through
profit or loss had been 10% (2021: 10%)
higher/lower, pre-tax profit for the year ended
31 December 2022 would increase/decrease
by HK$281,000 (2021: pre-tax profit would
increase/decrease by HK$434,000) as a result of
the changes in fair value of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Finance risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the cash at banks, restricted bank
deposits, receivable under credit financing arrangement,
trade and bill receivables, deposits and other receivables
as well as credit exposure to receivables under sale and
leaseback arrangements.

(i) Risk management
In order to minimise the credit risk, management has
delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts.

Before accepting any new customers, the Group
would assess the credit quality of each potential
customer and define limits for each customer.
The Group also demands certain customers to
place security deposits and/or pledge assets with
the Group at the time the sale and leaseback
arrangements, entrusted loan arrangement or
receivable under credit financing arrangement is
entered into. The Group would also review the
repayment history of customers payments for
each customer with reference to the repayment
schedule from the date of sale and leaseback,
entrusted loan and credit financing were initially
granted up to the reporting date to determine
the recoverability of receivables under sale and
leaseback arrangements, receivable under credit
financing arrangement and entrusted loan
payment receivable. Furthermore, the Group
would assess and review the fair value of the
pledged assets continuously to ensure the value
of the relevant collateral could well cover the
borrowings granted to the customers and any
outstanding receivables under sale and leaseback
arrangements, receivable under credit financing
arrangement and entrusted loan arrangement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRENTE

3 FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Finance risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

()

Risk management (Continued)

The credit quality of the deposits and other
receivables has been assessed with reference to
historical information about the counterparties
default rates and financial position of the
counterparties. The Group considers that credit
risk associated with deposits and other receivables
is low with reference to historical information
about the counterparties default rates.

The Group applies expected credit loss ("ECL")
model for impairment assessment. The Group
considers the probability of default upon initial
recognition of asset and whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk on an
ongoing basis. Certain receivable with significant
credit risk have been credit impaired as at 31
December 2022 and 2021. To assess whether
there is a significant increase in credit risk, the
Group compares the risk of a default occurring
on the asset as at the year ended date with the
risk of default as at the date of initial recognition.
It considers available reasonable and supportive
forward-looking information, especially the
following indicators are incorporated:

o internal credit rating.
o external credit rating.

o actual or expected significant adverse
changes in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause a
significant change to the counter party’s
ability to meet its obligation.

o actual or expected significant changes in
the operating results of the same counter
party.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Finance risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Risk management (Continued)

significant changes in the value of the
collateral supporting the obligation or in
the quality of third-part guarantees or credit
enhancements.

significant changes in the expected
performance and behaviour of the counter
party, including changes in the payment
status of customers in the Group and
changes in the operating results of the
counter party.

ECL model for the receivables under sale and
leaseback arrangements, as summarised below:

The receivables under sale and leaseback
arrangements that is not credit-impaired
on initial recognition is classified in “Stage
1" and has its credit risk continuously
monitored by the Group. The expected
credit loss is measured on a 12-month basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRENE

3

FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Finance risk factors (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

(b)

()

Risk management (Continued)

ECL model for the receivables under sale and
leaseback arrangements, as summarised below:
(Continued)

If a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition is identified, the financial
instrument is moved to “Stage 2" but is
not yet deemed to be credit-impaired. The
expected credit loss is measured on lifetime
basis.

If the financial instrument is credit-impaired,
the financial instrument is then moved
to “Stage 3”. The expected credit loss is
measured on lifetime basis.

In Stages 1 and 2, interest income is
calculated on the gross carrying amount
(without deducting the loss allowance). If a
financial asset subsequently becomes credit-
impaired (Stage 3), the Group is required
to calculate the interest income by applying
the effective interest method in subsequent
reporting periods to the amortised cost
of the financial asset (the gross carrying
amount net of loss allowance) rather than
the gross carrying amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BEMBEREME
3 FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BEEEREE@m
3.1 Finance risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BiiEE bR EE @)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERKE)
(i) Risk management (Continued) (i) EREEGE)

HEBEEXGETZ
R R IENFRREEE

ECL model for the receivables under supply chain
management business, as summarised below:

The receivables under supply chain
management business includes the
trade and bill receivables and the other
receivables in relation to the purchase cost
paid on behalf of the customers.

The receivables that is not credit-impaired
on initial recognition is classified in “Stage
1" and has its credit risk continuously
monitored by the Group. The expected
credit loss is measured on a 12-month basis.

If a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition is identified, the financial
instrument is moved to “Stage 2" but is
not yet deemed to be credit-impaired. The
expected credit loss is measured on lifetime
basis.

If the financial instrument is credit-impaired,
the financial instrument is then moved
to “Stage 3”. The expected credit loss is
measured on lifetime basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRENE

3

FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Finance risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Risk management (Continued)

The impairment of the receivables under sale
and leaseback arrangements and supply chain
management business was provided based on the
“three-stages” model by referring to the changes
in credit quality since initial recognition.

(i)

The key judgements and assumptions adopted by
the Group in addressing the requirements of the
standard are discussed below:

(M

Significant increase in credit risk (“SICR")

The Group considers the receivables to have
experienced a significant increase in credit
risk when backstop criteria have been met.
A backstop is applied and the receivables
considered to have experienced a significant
increase in credit risk if the borrower or
customer is past due on its contractual
payments.

Definition of default and credit-impaired
assets

The Group defines a financial instrument as
in default, when the borrower or customers
is more than 90 days past due on its
contractual payments or the counterparty is
in the process of liquidation or insolvency.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Finance risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Risk management (Continued)

The key judgements and assumptions adopted by
the Group in addressing the requirements of the
standard are discussed below: (Continued)

(3) Measuring ECL — Explanation of inputs,
assumptions and estimation techniques

The ECL is measured on either a 12-month
or lifetime basis depending on whether
a significant increase in credit risk has
occurred since initial recognition or whether
an asset is considered to be credit-impaired.
The ECL are the discounted product of the
Probability of Default (“PD"), Exposure at
Default (“EAD") and Loss Given Default
("LGD").

(4)  Forward-looking information incorporated
in the ECL models

The calculation of ECL incorporates forward-
looking information. The forward-looking
factor included the market conditions
and economic growth. The Group has
performed historical analysis and identified
the key economic variables impacting credit
risk and ECL for the receivable portfolio.
Judgement has been applied in this process
of determining the key economic variables
and their associated impact in the loss rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRENTE

3

FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Finance risk factors (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

(b)

()

Risk management (Continued)

For other financial assets at amortised cost,
including receivable under credit financing
arrangement and deposits and other receivables,
management considers that its credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition
with reference to the counterparty historical
default rate and current financial position. The
Group measures credit risk using Probability of
Default (“PD"), Exposure at Default (“EAD") and
Loss Given Default (“LGD"). The Group’s deposits
and other receivables are not credit-impaired and
are classified in “Stage 1”. The expected credit
loss rates for receivable under credit financing
arrangement and deposits and other receivables
are considered as immaterial and loss allowance
provision recognised for these balances for the
year is less than 1%.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by
geographical locations is mainly in Mainland
China, which accounted for 100% (2021: 100%)
of the receivables under sale and leaseback
arrangements, trade and bill receivable as well as
deposits and other receivables as at 31 December
2022.

The Group's concentration of credit risk by
related parties accounted for 25% (2021: 44%)
of the receivables under sale and leaseback
arrangements as at 31 December 2022.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Finance risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(

(ii)

Risk management (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022 as 30% (2021: 36%)
and 95% (2021: 96%) of the total receivables
under sale and leaseback arrangements was
due from the Group's largest sale and leaseback
customer and the five largest sale and leaseback
customers. The Group’s five largest sale and
leaseback customers are spread across diverse
industries such as manufacturing industries and
property development. Over 99% (2021: 99%) of
balance of the sale and leaseback customers have
good repayment history with no record of late
payment. For those sale and leaseback customers
with late payment, the management of the Group
has delegated a team to monitor the level of
exposure to ensure that follow up actions and/or
corrective actions and/or legal actions are taken
promptly to lower the risk exposure or to recover
the overdue balances. Furthermore, the Group
would negotiate with certain customers with
late payment by means of debt restructuring, to
recover the overdue debts by instalments.

Security

For some receivables under sale and leaseback
arrangements the Group may obtain security in
the form of guarantees, term deposits, deeds of
undertaking, pledged of land and building as well
as secured over the leased asset which can be
called upon if the counterparty is in default under
the terms of the agreement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HREMBREK T
3 FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HBKREREE @
3.1 Finance risk factors (Continued) 3.1 M#EKREZE @
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERKE)
(iii) Impairment of financial assets (i) EWMEERE
The Group has four types of financial assets that AEEFFUATOERE

are subject to the expected credit loss model:

. receivables under sale and leaseback
arrangements;

° trade and bill receivables;

o receivable under credit financing arrangement;
and

o deposits and other receivables.

While cash and cash equivalents are also subject
to the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the
identified impairment loss was immaterial.

Receivables under sale and leaseback
arrangements

As part of the Group’s credit risk management,
the Group regularly monitors the credit risks
based on available information at each reporting
date for its receivables under sale and leaseback
arrangements and entrusted loan payment
receivables. Below provides information about
the exposure to credit risk and ECL for receivables
under sale and leaseback arrangements and
entrusted loan payment receivables as at 31
December 2022 and 2021.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3

3.1 Finance risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(iii)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Receivables under sale and leaseback
arrangements (Continued)

The Group writes off a receivable under sale
and leaseback arrangements when there is
information indicating that the sale and leaseback
borrower is in severe financial difficulty and there
is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the
sale and leaseback borrower has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, whichever occurs earlier.

As at 31 December 2022
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HK$’000 HK$'000

BETR BETT

A3 to Aaa 12-month ECL Stage 1 0.2% 17,954 (36)
A3%Aaa REAEHEERR F—&

B3 to Baal 12-month ECL Stage 1 1.10% 887,397 (8,570)
B3%Baal REARBEERE F—

C3to Caal 12-month ECL Stage 1 3.01% 206,411 (13,042)
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Credit impaired Stage 3 - -
EERE E=/

1,111,762 (21,648)

2025 EHRE BEREXSRBRBEEEERATF

189



190

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRENE

3.1 Finance risk factors (Continued)

(iii)

3 FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 UBEREEm
3.1 B EE bR E E (@)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) =EERRK(E)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) (i) = EVEEREGE)
Receivables under sale and leaseback EREALHET &
arrangements (Continued) WK IR (48)
As at 31 December 2021 RZEZ—F+=ZA=
+—H
Gross Impairment
carrying loss
12-month or Average amount allowance
Internal credit rating lifetime ECL Stage loss rate 2021 2021
12EA%EH k- St it S
NEEETR EHEEER A FHBEEAX FHEE EEERE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
A3 to Aaa 12-month ECL Stage 1 0.04% 568,500 (249)
A3ZAaa REAEREEES F—&
B3 to Baal 12-month ECL Stage 1 0.62% 772,413 (4,765)
B3ZBaal REAEREEEE F-R
(3 to Caal 12-month ECL Stage 1 5.35% 15,291 (818)
(3Z(Caal 2EREREEEE -
1,356,204 (5,832)
Credit impaired Stage 3 19,925 (19,925)
FERE E=H
1,376,129 (25,757)

During the year ended 31 December 2022 and
2021, there is no movement between stage 1,

stage 2 and stage 3.

During the year, there was a provision for
impairment of receivables under sale and
leaseback arrangements of HK$16,959,000
(2021: a provision for impairment of receivables
under sale and leaseback arrangements of
HK$2,751,000) recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Finance risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(iii)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Trade and bills receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for
all trade and bills receivables.

Given the track record of regular repayment of
trade and bills receivables and good credit profiles
of customers, the directors are of the opinion
that the risk of default by these customers is
not significant, taking into account forward-
looking information on macroeconomic factors.
Therefore, expected credit loss rate of trade and
bills receivables amounted to HK$28,000 (2021:
HK$22,000) was recognised as at 31 December
2022. During the year, impairment provision on
trade and bills receivables of HK$7,000 (2021:
HK$22,000) were recognised in profit or loss.

Receivable under credit financing arrangement

The expected credit loss rates for receivable under
credit financing arrangement are considered
as immaterial and loss allowance provision
recognised for these balances for the year is less
than 1%.

REMBEENE

Bt 7 [ Be i 2 ()

3.1 M#EKREE @
EERE (&)

(iii) EMEEREE)

B E 5 BRI B R
e
AEBEEREBYBR
SERFIRMIL T E
FAEEMEEESE 3
PR IEUE 5 BR 5K &
W E A2 BREHE
B -

ERNTEHEEREKE
SERREREED
FEEHEREPHRL
EEREE KEEFH
MER  EERBEZS
EPRMENRRILTE
NPl A =
F+-A=+—HCc%
EWE SRR R ENE
BRERBHEEEES
28,000t (ZEF = —
£ . B #22,0007T) °
FA-EREKRES
ERNEREER B
RET IR EREEE
7,000 (ZFE = —4F :
7 #22,0007T) °

EEBELZHETZE
WsKIR
EERELHATZE
WHRIETRREEREX
BRB/TEKX » BHF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRENE

3

FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Finance risk factors (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

(b)

(9]

(iii)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Deposit and other receivables

Deposit and other receivables mainly include
purchase cost paid on behalf of customers
under supply chain management services in
which the Group was acting as an agent and
other receivables. Given the track record of
regular repayment and good credit profiles of
customers and counterparties, the directors are
of the opinion that the risk of default by these
customers and counterparties is not significant,
taking into account forward looking information
on macroeconomic factors. Therefore, expected
credit loss of deposit and other receivables
amounted to HK$336,000 (2021: HK$174,000)
was recognised as at 31 December 2022. During
the year, impairment provision on deposit
and other receivables of HK$184,000 (2021:
HK$172,000) were recognised in profit or loss.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents and credit facilities deemed adequate by
the management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.
The management monitors the utilisation of secured
bank borrowings and ensures compliance with loan
covenants.

Capital Industrial Financial Services Group Limited Annual Report 2022

3

B 7% B B 2 ()
3.1 BiREKREZE®

(b)

(0

EER B (&)

(i) S@MEEREE)
e I H Ath fE W FOE
Re kHEAMBWRIEE
DREREEEENRRE
2SS EIRIRISTE
REBF I THREK
AR E MY GRIE - 2
REFPRRSHF—M
LEEZ M EEELR
Rif - WE R RELE
EEREMREEER
EERBZERFPRR
SHFHEHER I T
EXA RZEZ
—F#+=-A=+—8F
PR S K H A FE W R IE
EREHEEEBEE
336,000 (=& = —
& JB#174,0007T) °
TR BERREREM
FEW BN B RATIR
BB S 5 184,000
TT(ZEZ—F B
172,0007T) °

REBETRERE
EERRBECERE - K
SEERMEREEERR
fEzAE MR EEEER
REEREKF  RE/R
SEEBREES - WRE
RanERBHzEE - F
BEEREERRTERZ
PRBREERETERR
# o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREME
3 FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 U¥EEREERE@®
3.1 Finance risk factors (Continued) 3.1 B RE bR E E (&
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (9] umibﬁﬁﬂfﬁ%(
The following table discloses the Group’s remaining Ti‘%?ﬂiﬁ%ﬁ%l?ﬁﬁié’é%ﬂ
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial BEZHTEHEEA - It
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the KB BEAREER A HEK
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on BEemBEIRFERHY
the earliest dates on which the Group can be required %EEfﬁfﬁimifﬁ% o B§S
to pay. Specifically, secured bank borrowings with Mg ' TRRITES A A 8
a repayment on demand clause are included in the BETHREREN  AEARK
earliest time band regardless of the probability of the ERERBER 2 EEBRT
banks choosing to exercise their rights. The maturity BRAFAKERHEGE -
dates for other non-derivative financial liabilities are HMETESmBE DS
based on the agreed repayment dates. The table HRAIAZTERBHE - &
includes both interest and principal cash flows. To PREANEREAESHESTRE °
the extent that interest flows are floating rates, the WA EmERZENE - A
undiscounted amount is derived from weighted average RAGIR 2 T;z%it&iﬁﬁ & R I
interest rate at the end of reporting period. Z TR R E
Weighted On demand Total
average orlessthan 3 months 1-5 undiscounted  Carrying
interestrate 3months  to 1year years  cash flows amount
mE  REREZ =fiR - AERERSE
TH5% FZ=M@A E-F L fRESE REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
BT  B¥TR  BETn  BETr %I
Non-derivative finance FTECRAR
liabilities
Bills payables e - 84,974 - - 84,974 84,974
Other payables AR 508 - 3 47,557 - 47,580 47,580
Security deposits received BYRREES 5.00 - 1,399 - 1,399 1,399
Lease liabilities HEAR 5.48 845 2,352 7,856 11,053 9,191
Loan from a related party —RBEATEN 440 31,204 - - 31,204 30,643
Secured bank borrowings BEARITER 3.05 140 1,009 10,463 11,612 11,200
As at 31 December 2022 R-B-ZF
+ZRA=t-H 117,249 52,254 18,319 187,822 184,987
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GAMBREWS
3 FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HBKREREE @
3.1 Finance risk factors (Continued) 3.1 M#EKREZE @
() Liquidity risk (Continued) () #RBELER(E)
Weighted ~ On demand Total
average  or less than 3 months 1=5 undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months to 1 year years  cash flows amount
M BERER =faR -5 REEF2
THNE A=A FF FRE  RELE REE
% HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT  BETT  BETn  A%TT BBt
Non-derivative finance FTESREE
liabilities
Other payables EhErR A = 560 40,189 = 40,749 40,749
Security deposits received BlRERS 5.00 = 6,098 = 6,098 6,098
Lease liabilities HEaR 4.09 921 3,348 14,907 19,176 17,304
Secured bank borrowings BEARTER 429 112,416 91,710 98,365 302,491 290,922
As at 31 December 2021 R=B=-F
+ZR=t-H 113,897 141,345 113,272 368,514 355,073

Secured bank borrowings with a repayment on demand
clause are included in the “on demand or less than
3 months” time band in the above maturity analysis.
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the aggregate
principal amounts of these bank borrowings amounted
to HK$2,439,000 and HK$85,315,000 respectively.
Taking into account the Group's financial position,
the Directors believe that it is probable that the banks
will not exercise their discretionary rights to demand
immediate repayment. The Directors believe that these
secured bank borrowings will be repaid in accordance
with the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRENE

3 FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Finance risk factors (Continued)

3 BXERER@®
3.1 BiREKREZE®

() Liquidity risk (Continued) () #RBELER(E)
The following table details the Group’s aggregate TR AEBHBERE
principal and interest cash outflows for secured bank REEXR(ARERERK
borrowings (with a repayment on demand clause) )2 BEEBRITEREE K
based on scheduled repayments. To the extent that FIBIR & 4B RE o 4 F =
interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted REFEFE - BIRANIB S FE
amount is derived from weighted average interest rate BHEBBERE 2 IETEY
at the end of reporting period. MEEHE o
Weighted
average Total
interest  Lessthan 3 months 1-5 Over contractual  Carrying
ratt 3months  to1year years 5years  cash flows amount
g R =f@A -& Er bk
TR =faA E-f ERf nESE BHE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT Akt A%Tr  B%Tr BETr BETx
Secured bank borrowings WEAREREE
with repayment on REZEER
demand dlause RTER
As at 31 December 2022 RZBZZE
+=B=t-8 1.19 2,49 - - - 249 2439
As at 31 December 2021 S
+-A=t-H 2.57 81,793 2,242 3,055 - 87,090 85,315

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders, to support the
Group's stability and growth, and to strengthen the Group'’s
financial management capability. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

3.2 EXEKRER
AEEEBEEAUBRAERRN
RERBEAREERLEEEY
& AR AKREFIREAERE - A
BERNEECIBERER  YMRE
AEEZHEEERES - BIRER
FEEALE  AEEHSRABR

T ARAOBSER -

REE AR TR

R BITHRD M EEEAEIR

B -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRENE

3 FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Capital risk management (Continued)

The Directors review the capital structure regularly and
manage its capital structure to ensure an optimal capital
structure and shareholders’ returns, taking into consideration
the future capital requirements of the Group, projected
operating cash flows, projected capital expenditures and
projected strategic investment opportunities. The directors
monitor capital mainly using net debt to total equity ratio and
current ratio. These ratios as at 31 December 2022 and 2021
were as follows:

3

B 7% B B 2 ()

3.2

B b B 2 ()

EELIRASERREST X -
EHEERSNE  EHELRRH
S RTEEIRES IR B E - FEIRET
BEAREREIBHERERE - UE
RGEF BB ZERERERBRRED
o EEXEEBESFEMABARE
mERRRELRETES - R
T FRE—FF+ZA=F
—B - ZELERIOT

2022 2021
—E-= T

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BETIT

Total borrowings BEX 44,282 290,922
Total equity (Note (i) warE sy (FEEG)) 1,755,376 1,890,379
Gearing ratio (%) (Note (ii)) & B A & & (%) (i) 3 15
Current assets MENEE 1,372,650 1,671,762
Current liabilities nEaE 223,360 316,361
Current ratio (%) MENEL R (%) 615 528

The Directors considered that the Group maintained healthy
capital as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 as the Group has
excess of current assets over current liabilities.

Notes:

(i) Total equity equals to all capital and reserves of the Group
including non-controlling interests.

(ii) Gearing ratio equals total interest-bearing borrowings divided by
total equity and multiplied by 100%.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRENE

3 FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation
(a) Financial assets and liabilities

0

3 BXERER@®
3.3 AAEMRE
(a) EWMEERERE

Fair value hierarchy () 2ARERE
This section explains the judgements and RN EEHFEE
estimates made in determining the fair values THIRER IR A R EER
of the financial instruments that are recognised REtEmemI ANA
and measured at fair value in the consolidated S ERFTVER) FI BT K (i
financial statements. To provide an indication P RERBARREER
about the reliability of the inputs used in A EE AEEK A E
determining fair value, the Group has classified M AEEEKES/R
its financial instruments into the three levels ITESEREEAT
prescribed under the accounting standards. An REN=ERR - F&K
explanation of each level follows underneath the RIF BB TRAR o
table.
The Group's financial assets that are measured at RZBE-_—_F+=-A=
fair values at 31 December 2022: +T—BARKENLRRE
AEZEREBE -
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F-& et F=R #st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BETR BETR BETR BETR
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at FVPL BRERRRARN
BEREZE/
BE 2,809 - - 2,809
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRENE

3 FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3 Rk f“i‘i(@s)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AAREMEE
(a) Financial assets and liabilities (Continued) (a) ﬁmﬂﬁf‘&ﬁﬁ(
(i)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (i) 2DREZEBEG )
The Group’s financial assets that are measured at RZZEZ—F+=A=
fair values at 31 December 2021: T—HREEURARE
FrECEREBE -
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—H FH F=R FE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETIT BETT BETT BT
Financial assets SRMEE
Financial assets at FVPL FERBREEEZERN

ERBEZeR

BE 4,339 - - 4,339

There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3
during the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021:
nil).

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into
and out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end
of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (cContinued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
(a) Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(i) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Level 1:

Level 2:

The fair value of financial instruments
traded in active markets (such as
publicly traded debt, and equity
securities) is based on quoted market
prices at the end of the reporting
period. The quoted market price
used for financial assets held by the
Group is the current bid price. These
instruments are included in level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments
that are not traded in an active
market is determined using valuation
techniques which maximise the use
of observable market data and rely
as little as possible on entity-specific
estimates. If all significant inputs
required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included
in level 2.

REMBEENE

3 BXERBRERE@®
3.3 AAEME®@
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRENE

3

FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(a)

0]

(ii)

(iii)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs
is not based on observable market
data, the instrument is included in level
3. This is the case for unlisted equity
instruments.

Valuation techniques used to determine fair
values

In relation with financial assets at FVPL, the fair
values are determined by using quoted market
prices.

Valuation inputs and relationship to fair
value

Some of the Group's financial assets are
measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. The following table gives
information about how the fair values of these
financial assets are determined (in particular, the
valuation technique and inputs used), as well as
the level of the fair value hierarchy into which the
fair value measurements are categorised (levels 1
to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to
the fair value measurements is observable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREM T
3 FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 UBEREEm
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AREM[E®E
(a) Financial assets and liabilities (Continued) (a) SREEREEGE
(iii) Valuation inputs and relationship to fair (i) HEBABBEREAR
value (Continued) B2 (E)
Relationship of
Fairvalue  Valuation technique  unobservable inputs
Financial assets Fair value as at hierarchy ~ and key inputs to fair value
HERTR BLEZGABE
SHEE DMRE DAERE IEGARE BAREZERE
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
RZE-Z% RZB=—%
TZA=t+-8 +ZA=+-H
Financial assets at FVPL Listed equity Listed equity ~ Level 1 Quoted bid pricesin ~ N/A
BRERREANBRE securities: securities.  SE—1% an active market TR
EBEE - in Hong Kong: - in Hong Kong: RRMSAEZEAR
HK$2,809,000 HK$4,339,000
EhRAES IIRAES -
-REA ! -REE
#B#2,809,000T  78%4,339,0007T
(b) Non-financial assets and liabilities (b) FEWMEERER
See Note 17 for disclosure of the investment properties EBIEARBFENKREYD
that are measured of fair value. EMEE - RKE17 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRENE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires the
use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal
the actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement
in applying the Group'’s accounting policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that may have a financial impact on the Group and
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

(a) Expected credit loss allowance of receivables

under sale and leaseback arrangements

The provision for expected credit losses of receivables under
sale and leaseback arrangements is based on assumptions
about risk of default and expected loss rates. The impairment
loss recognised or reversed is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows with the consideration
of expected future credit loss of the respective financial
instrument.

The Group applies a three-stage impairment model to
calculate the expected credit losses and the impairment
model that involved significant judgement and assumption
from the management. In determining the credit risk stage
of each borrower, the Group takes into consideration
the credit profiles, historical repayment patterns, publicly
available information of these borrowers, reports from
international credit rating agencies and forward looking
factors such as market conditions and economic growth.
The Group measures expected credit losses based on
individual assessment of each borrower, after considering
their credit profile with reference to credit ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies. Judgement is required
to determine whether a borrower experienced significant
increase in credit risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

(9)

(d)

Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment on an annual basis. For the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021, the recoverable amount of cash-
generating units (CGUs) was determined based on value-in-
use calculations which require the use of assumptions. The
calculations use cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a five-year
period.

Details of impairment charge, key assumptions and impact of
possible changes in key assumptions are disclosed in Note 18.

Income taxes and deferred income tax

Significant judgements are required in determining the
provision for income tax. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such difference will impact the income
tax and deferred income tax provision in the period in which
such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when management
considers to be probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences or tax
losses can be utilised. The outcome of their actual utilisation
may be different.

Estimation of the fair values of investment
properties

Information about the valuation of land and buildings and
investment properties is provided in Note 17.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRENE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(e) Principal versus agent consideration in revenue

recognition

Under supply chain management business segment, the
Group is engaged in provision of supply chain management
services and trading of goods by entering into (i) agency
contracts and (ii) sales contracts with customers, respectively.
In determining whether the Group is acting as a principal
or as an agent under supply chain management business
segment requires judgement and consideration of all relevant
facts and circumstances. The Group is acting as a principal
if it controls a promised good or service before transferring
that good or service to the customer and reports revenue on
the gross inflows of economic benefits. In evaluation of the
Group acting as a principal, the Group considers whether the
Group (i) is primarily responsible for fulfilling the promise to
provide the specified good or service; (ii) has inventory risk
before the specified good or service has been transferred to
a customer or after the transfer of control to the customer;
and (iii) has discretion in establishing the price for the
specified good or service. Conversely, the Group is an agent
when it does not control a promised good or service before
transferring that good or service to the customer and reports
revenue on the net inflows of economic benefits (that is, net
of the amounts collected on behalf of the principal).

Having considered the relevant facts and circumstances, the
Directors have determined that the Group is an agent for the
supply chain management services under agency contracts
and accordingly, the related revenue is reported on a net
basis.

The Directors have also determined that the Group is the
principal for the sales contract in which the Group are
the primary obligator to provide the promised goods to
customers, are subject to inventory risks before transferring
promised goods to customers and the Group has discretion
in in establishing the price for the promised goods. And
accordingly, the related revenue is presented on a gross basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Managing Director, being the chief
operating decision maker (“CODM"), for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses on
types of services provided. No operating segments identified by the
chief operating decision maker have been aggregated in arriving at
the reportable segments of the Group.

The Group is currently organised into four operating divisions: sale
and leaseback arrangements services, property leasing services,
assets management and consultancy services and supply chain
management business.

Sale and leaseback arrangements service is engaging in collateral
financing activities. Property leasing service is engaging in rental of
properties. Assets management and consultancy service is engaging
in provision of referral and corporate financial advisory services.
Supply chain management business is engaged in supply chain
management services and trading of goods.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group ceased
the business of assets management and consultancy service and
reclassified the relevant business as discontinued operation (refer to
Note 29 for the details of discontinued operation).

Segment results represent the profit or loss of each segment
without allocation of central administration costs, loss/gain on
disposal of debt instruments at FVOCI, change in fair value of
debt instruments at FVOCI, changes in fair value of financial
assets at FVPL, impairment loss on goodwill, finance costs, and
share of profit of an associate. This is the measure reported to the
CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRENE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 2EER @
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by ToAREBIZRKEE DB RAZHRD
operating and reportable segments. Segment revenue reported oz WEREENN - LE2EHR 2D
above represents revenue generated from external customers. HWmHRBINARRE - RAFERB
There were no inter-segment sales in the current and prior years. FEELES B2 ERHEE
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
HELSEER BRILEEEE
Assets
Sale and management
leaseback Property  Supply chain and
arrangements leasing  management consultancy
services services business Sub-total services Total
EkER 0¥ e EEEER
R RS ERER gt AR h
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$000
BRI BRI BRI BRI BRI BRI
During the year ended 31 December ~ HZ-F=-F+2§
222 St-BLEE
Revenue under sale and leaseback EREELHET s
arrangements 90,147 - - 90,147 - 90,147
Entrusted loan payment interest income ~~~ ZFEEFHERIEMA 153 - - 153 - 153
Revenue from supply chain management  RE R EEEE R 2 W&
services - - 12317 12317 - 12317
Revenue from trading of goods BnEsha - - 263,563 263,563 - 263,563
Property leasing income mEREWA - 4,458 - 4,458 - 4,458
Segment revenue ks 90,300 4,458 275,880 370,638 - 370,638
Segment results ARRE 77,458 1783 2,795 82,036 (1,241) 80,795
Unallocated AR
Central administration costs REFTRAR AR (29,541)
Changes in fair value of financial assets ~ BBBERRALEREZ
at L SHEEL AR ERY (1,530
Other income (Note) Hthl A (3) 2440
Impairment loss on goodwill HEREER (945)
Finance costs BERK (3327)
Share of profit of an associate b —RBEAmEH 523
Profit before tax B AR 48,415
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BEMBEREME
SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 23ER @
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
BEOSER B HEEEE
Assets
Sale and management
leaseback Property  Supply chain and
arrangements leasing ~ management consultancy
services services business Sub-total services Total
ERER nE fhEsE EEEER
ZHRE HERK FRER NG R &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
(Restated) (Restated)
(@31) (m31)
During the year ended 31 December ~ HE-F--£+-F=t-
2021 ALEE
Revenue under sale and leaseback ERDRZHET 2 ME
arrangements 91,104 - - 91,104 - 91,104
Revenue from supply chain management  RELEREERE 2 Sz
Services - - 14,772 14,772 - 14,772
Revenue from trading of goods AREAlEG = = 1,788,273 1,788,273 = 1,788,273
Property leasing income mEREWA m 733 - 1,445 = 1,445
Consultancy senvice income FHREMA = = = = 2,409 2,409
Segment revenue Elen 91,816 733 1,803,045 1,895,594 2,409 1,898,003
Seqment results PHEE 67,501 79 8525 76,822 44 71,264
Unallocated FAE
Central administration costs REFTRAR AR (30,130)
Changes in fair value of financial assets at ~ BRERBRELNEREL S
FUPL HAE DA EEY 1492
Loss on disposal of debt instruments at HEEBEMRANREAL
RVl EREzERIAZER (12)
Other income (Note) =0 ON(i ) 1,055
Reversal for impairment losses in debt ERAMZENERALER
instruments at FVOC| BrBRIEZHERE
fiE 18
Finance costs BERA (1,951)
Share of profit of an associate fElh— R E N A ER 238
Profit before tax BHAEN 50,064
Note: Unallocated other income represents interest income from bank deposits Mk ROBEEMUIABIREZER D RARFER

held by investment holding companies and government grant received
from the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
under the Employment Support Scheme.

TTERAF SN RARIR MR Z IS
B &8 55 51T B R B WER 2 B 4

Bk o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHREWE
5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 2EER @
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by T ARKESERAZRHEE S 2
operating and reportable segments: AEBEBEERBEDT
Continuing  Discontinued Continuing  Discontinued
operations operation Total operations operation Total
&E BALE BE B
Bexy BeLy @t BE% BE4s @5
2022 2022 2021 2021
g CBCCE “E--F —Z--&
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BETT BETT BETT
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(@ =30) (@ =30) (@ =30)
Segment assets PHEE
Sale and leaseback arrangements ERBRZHERY
services 1,367,626 - 1,367,626 1,699,823 - 1,699,823
Supply chain management business HEEEREY 158,276 - 158,276 325913 = 325913
Property leasing services nERERY 136,348 - 136,348 38,784 = 38,784
Assets management and consultancy  BEEERFARE
services - 42,647 42,647 - 58,696 58,696
Total segment assets PHEELET 1,662,250 42,647 1,704,897 2,064,520 58,696 2,123,216
Interest in an associate R-ERERAZER 83,951 - 83,951 92,930 - 92,930
Financial assets at FVPL BRERREANEREL
SREE 2,809 - 2,809 4,339 - 4,339
Other unallocated assets A RHRAE 214,574 - 214,574 105,110 = 105,110
Consolidated assets GREE 1,963,584 42,647 2,006,231 2,266,899 58,696 2,325,595
Segment liabilities THEE
Sale and leaseback arrangements ERmATHERS
Services 111,092 - 111,092 292,669 - 292,669
Supply chain management business HEEEREY 96,567 - 96,567 42,003 - 42,003
Property leasing services NERERS 95 - 95 169 = 169
Assets management and consultancy  BEEE BRI
services - 50 50 - 673 673
Total seqment liabilities PHERER 207,754 50 207,804 334,841 673 335,514
Unallocated secured bank borrowings ~ AAE AR S 33,082 - 33,082 85,315 = 85,315
Other unallocated liabilties EfAARAR 9,969 - 9,969 14,387 = 14,387
Consolidated liabilities FaAfk 250,805 50 250,855 434,583 673 435,216

Capital Industrial Financial Services Group Limited Annual Report 2022



SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBEENE

7 2 E #E)

For the purpose of monitoring segment performances and BERDPBRAERSB2ELEE
allocating resources between segments: IR
- all assets are allocated to reportable segments other than - MAEEREASETEERSEH T
interests in an associate, financial assets at FVPL and other BREN—EBE QAR ERD BB
unallocated assets (including primarily unallocated property, BalREA AR ERECEREER
plant and equipment, cash and cash equivalents and HMAROREE(FZRERSE
prepayments). W - BERSE BRekRes
BIE B A RFERKIB) o
- all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other - HFMEAEABASETAEERSEH T
than unallocated secured bank borrowings not for sale and BRTBEROELHRE 2RSS
leaseback arrangements services and other unallocated R ERRITERREMRSES
liabilities. f& o
Other segment information H {th 2 &R & Rl
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE-ZB--_HS+-A=+—-HLFE
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
BALE
BECEER megy
Assets
Sale and management
leaseback Property  Supply chain and
arrangements leasing  management consultancy
services services business ~ Unallocated ~ Sub-total services Total
NERE s EEEER
RELSEER BB EEER AE Mt RARE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS'000
EgTn  E¥Tn B¥Tn B¥TR BETR BMTR BEIR
(Restated)  (Restated)
(BE5)  (&E5)
Adaitions to non-current assets (Note) ~ JEREIEE ZEM (M) 16 7 14 2 69 - 69
Depreciation of property, plant and % BERRENE
equipment 235 38 n 204 543 - 543
Amortisation charge on intangible asset ~ EF/EEBER - - 1,351 - 1351 - 1351
Provision for impairment loss of ERERZHE TRWGEL
receivables under sale and leaseback REEEEESS
arrangements, net 16,959 - - - 16,959 - 16,959
Provision for impairment loss of trade ~ [EMNE SEHRE fEWFUE
receivables and other receivables REBEERE - - 194 - 194 - 194
Impairment loss on goodwil HERERE - - - 945 945 - 945
20225 EHE EEEEXSREBREEEERAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRENE

5

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Other segment information (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

5 S2EHER@E
Hibh o3 E R (@)
BHE-_E-_—4F+-A=1+—HIEE

Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
B
BEOEEE BEZH
Assets
Sale and management
leaseback Property  Supply chain and
arrangements leasing  management consultancy
services services business  Unallocated Sub-total services Total
EL fifesE BEEER
BELEER k% BEEH Al N BBRE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
AETT  AETn A%t BEBTr  BETrn A%Tn AT
(Restated) ~ (Restated)
(mE3))  (&E5)
Additions to non-current assets (Note) 7 /24 & 2 & N (5) 114 3 = 34 1,179 = 1,179
Depreciation of property, plantand ~ ¥1% * BEREENE
equipment 294 289 102 455 1,140 175 1,315
Amortisation charge on intangible asset EF/ZEZHER = = 2927 = 2927 = 2,927
Interest income from bank deposits, /777~ IAERBE=(E
term deposits with initial termover  AMTESEFRAREMZ
three months and debt instruments ~ ANERA AL BREZER
atFvoc| TAZMERA 1,884 - 893 867 3,644 177 3821
Provision for impairment loss of EREBZHE TENTEZ
receivables under sale and leaseback  IEEEREZH
arrangements, net 2,751 - - - 2,751 - 2,751
Provision for impairment loss of trade B4 E BB FREMENFE
receivables and other receivables HERRLE = = 191 = 191 = 191
Reversal of provision impairment loss of EBE M2 EMNERAAER
debt instruments at FVOC| B EEIE REHEE
RO - - - 18 18 - 18
Note: Non-current assets exclude goodwill, interests in an associate, financial Mzt : FRBDEETBRERSE  R—HEBRER

assets, deferred tax assets and right-of-use assets.

Capital Industrial Financial Services Group Limited Annual Report 2022

A2 SRAE BEEMBAEEN
REREEE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREME
SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 ZEPER @
Geographical information &R
The Group’s revenue from external customers by location of the AEBZBANB AR ZE&E B E S
relevant subsidiary’s operations and information about its non- REINAEP 2K - RIREEMER
current assets by location of assets are detailed below: BEDEERBEEZERFMRINT -

Revenue from external customers

RENREF W&
Continuing Discontinued Continuing  Discontinued
operations  operation operations  operation
2022 2022 Total 2021 2021 Total
BR BAL RE BRI
BEx®  RERR REZl KEEK

“B-CF ZB-CR @y —T--% —T--f st
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT  BETR BETr  BETT AT BETR
(Restated) ~ (Restated)  (Restated)
(mE5) (mE5) (mE5)

Mainland China hE Al 369,992 - 369,99 1894294 2409 1,896,703
Hong Kong Bk 646 - 646 1,300 - 1,300
370,638 - 370,638 1895594 2409 1,898,003

Non-current assets

FRBEE
2022 2021
—E=-= T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BETT

Non-current assets RBEE

Mainland China FR B A it 114,515 117,318
Hong Kong BE 32,937 38,532
147,452 155,850
Note: Non-current assets of the Group is arising from continuing operations, it o - ZK%EI Fne A E EE R %%%E
which exclude goodwill, interests in an associate, financial assets, iﬂﬁﬂiﬂ%?&'ﬁ% Eéfflﬂﬂﬁgﬁaz
deferred tax assets and right-of-use assets. i SRBE  BERBEENARE

REEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRENE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of the total
revenue of the Group under reportable segments for the
corresponding years are as follows:

7 2B E B @)
EBRFEREF2EHR
UTAREEEEREASRD Y - Y
AEBBURSEEI10% U FZ B -

2022 2021
—E-= T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T

Supply chain management business: HEREIRER
Customer A ZEA 77,909 668,488
Customer B =FB 53,221 291,429
Customer C EFC 38,252 266,857
Customer D ZFED (Note) 256,015

Note: The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total
revenue of the Group.

There is no single external customer contributed more than 10%
to the Group revenue other than the supply chain management
business for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: same).

Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities
The Group has recognised the following liabilities from continuing

s ERRESEEAEEBKRETR10%
VAL e

HE-_ZTZ-_-—F+-_A=+—HI&
E - BREEETEERIN  WESE I
AEFHAEERSZTE10%ALECCE
——%F : AR °

BAETEENAEGEZKRE
AEBECDHEABATREFELEEG AR

operations related to contracts with customers: EFEEHBERzAaE
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
B¥TT BT T
Contract liabilities aHaE 16 10,115

Revenue from continuing operations recognised during the
year ended 31 December 2022 that was included in the contact
liabilities balance at the beginning of the year amounted to
approximately HK$10,115,000 (2021 nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBREWE
6 OTHER INCOME 6 HMWA
2022 2021
—ZE_— —E-—%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T BETIT
(Restated)
C=yl)
Continuing operations BEKSEER
Interest income FIE WA
- bank deposits - R1TFER 8,963 3,023
— debt instruments at FVOCI - EREMEEWERANE
BRIEZ BB ITA - 637
8,963 3,660
Government grant (Note) B 78 B (BT &) 275 1,883
Others Eh 458 288
9,696 5,831
Note: During the year, government grant of HK$264,000 was received from Mzt : R REBEMRBEEIFEEBFEER

the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region under
the Employment Support Scheme and HK$11,000 was received from PRC
Government for employment support. There are no unfulfilled conditions

or other contingencies attaching to these grants.

77 B BT U ER BT # B B 6 264,000
JC R B R BEBATUEUERE 11,0007T1E
BETE - ZEWMBAEMERERD

R E A EIR -

7 OTHER GAINS, NET 7 HittWzmEE
2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Continuing operations BEREER
Loss on disposal of debt instruments at FVOCl HE&FBHEME2HEKFIEALE
BRI EB TR ZER - (12)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME - BE RBEARER
equipment and intangible asset, net BEZEEBRTE (51) (1
Gain on early termination of lease arrangement 2 F 4% [ &2 HE 2 Wes 135 =
Recovery of receivables under sale and 1k 2] 42 BT 88 &9 & 1% B AH 2 HE 18
leaseback arrangements previously T2 FEYGRIA
written-off 36,226 90
36,310 77

2022 EHE

BEREXSRBRBERERAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREWE
8 EXPENSES BY NATURE 8 RUEEZIZAX
2022 2021
—ZE_— —E-—4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
(Restated)
(EE75))
Continuing operations BEKSEER
Cost of revenue from goods sold SHE P U AR 262,579 1,778,325
Cost of revenue under sales and leaseback E& LA B A

arrangements 20,684 12,373
Auditor’s remuneration 1% S B 457 B

— Audit services - BT RS 1,094 1,200

- Non-audit services - FEEET RS 530 940
Employee benefit expenses (Note 9) & B & (F3E9) 35,374 36,998
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #1% - R L& @ E (FizE15)

(Note 15) 548 1,315
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 16)  {# F#EEETE (HizE16) 4,006 3,799
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 18) B E#E(HE18) 1,351 2,927
Legal and professional fees FEREEER 3,030 3,337
Consultancy and management fees charged by &= BN AR L ERE

Shougang Holding (Note 33) (F$3E33) 1,687 2,880
Short-term leases expenses HHHEER 415 602
Insurance Rz 595 465
Annual listing fees FELWER 583 579
Building and management fees BFRERE 450 475
Printing and stationery ENI B2 XX A 402 173
Exchange loss/(gain), net bE H &8, (es) F 5 172 (1,214)
Office expenses MAERL 1,415 2,870
Others HAitb 5,688 6,443
Total cost of sales and administrative expenses  $4& B ZK & 7718 i 2 4258 340,603 1,854,487
Note: During the year, cost of revenue under sale and leaseback arrangement Mz A SREEARFRERAEEER

included HK$5,163,000 (2021: HK$9,441,000) interest on secured bank RIRITERM B EH5,163,000T(=F
borrowings (Note 11). ——4%F : B%9,441,0007T) (BHEE11) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREM T
9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 9 EERIFX(BEESHM)
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENT)
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
HKS$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
(Restated)
(& &E7))
Continuing operations BERSEER
Wages, salaries and other benefits TE  FelkEMmEF 26,064 32,249
Termination benefits AR F 3,819 -
Directors’ fee B0 1,278 1,190
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIRBFFT B R 4,213 3,559
Total employee benefit expenses EERAIMZ BT 35,374 36,998
Five highest paid individuals EEEEHFAL
The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year FRN - - FAEEBLEGEEFEERE=4
included three directors (2021: two directors), details of whose EECEZ—F  MRBEE) BEK
remuneration are set out in Note 34. Details of the remuneration LS FBERKIFE34F I E - NAF
for the year of the remaining two (2021: three) highest paid ERN - Z=HEETFHNBRTREAT(Z
employees who are neither a director nor chief executive of the B —F: ZR)WkARFESFSED
Company are as follows: THRAE - BEMESFBOT :
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEET T BT T
Continuing operations HEREER
Wages, salaries and other benefits (Note) TE - HFekEMEHE T 6,069 3,596
Retirement benefit schemes contributions RIRAEFIET B 30 50
6,099 3,646
Note: During the year ended 31 December 2022, the amount includes the Mz : BEZT-_—_F+-A=+—HLF

payments or benefits in respect of termination of employee’s services
were paid directly of approximately HK$2,444,000 (2021: nil).

B 2o EeEERKRIEEERBFIE
SR E S H A 2,444,0007T (=
B_—F )
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHREWE
9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 9 EEEMNFAX(BEESEHM)
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENT) (Continued) (##)
Five highest paid individuals (Continued) EEZEEHA L@
The number of the highest paid employees who are not the MENFUTHERNBLIEST 2 HES
Directors and whose remuneration fell within the following bands FEEAZBLT
is as follows:
2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
Continuing operations BEKSEER
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 78 #1,000,001 7T E %% 1,500,0007T - 2
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 75 #82,000,001 T =% 2,500,000 -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 72,500,001 7T 2 /8% 3,000,000 1 -
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 753,000,001 T 2 /8% 3,500,000 1 -
During the year, no remuneration was paid by the Group to the FA AEETENEAMES TAR
Directors of the Company or the five highest paid employees as an RESEdhEEaFEEERMAZR
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation MARE B % 2 RE S IERBERAEE -

for loss of office.

10 PROVISION FOR IMPAIRMENT OF RECEIVABLES, 10 FEWFEIERE(BE) BER

NET [ 7% 88
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Continuing operations HEREER
Impairment loss (provided)/reversed: MEEE &R, BE
— Receivables under sale and leaseback - E1& LI HEIE T EIGRIE
arrangements (16,959) (2,751)
— Trade and bill receivables -BWE SERREWEE (7) (22)
~ Prepayments, deposits and other - TR - Re R E A B
receivables ] (184) (172)
— Debt instruments at FVOC| - EREMEEWERARER
BEHBITA - 18
(17,150) (2,927)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BEMBEREME
11 FINANCE COSTS 11 BERAER
2022 2021
—E=-= T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEET T BT
Continuing operations BHEREER
Interest on secured bank borrowings BHEFIRITERZFE 9,231 12,747
Less: amounts included in cost of sale and & : BT ASEEHEZ KA 2
leaseback arrangements FKIE (5,163) (9,441)
4,068 3,306
Interest on loan from a related party —HZRBATERF B (H5E33)
(Note 33) 164 -
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 16) HEaEf B FEE16) 580 224
4,812 3,530
12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12 FREBIEAX
2022 2021
—E=-= T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BEET I
(Restated)
(& &E7))
Current tax: BIEATRIA -
- Hong Kong -BE - 2
- PRC - B 27,330 11,117
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 27330 11,119
Deferred income tax (Note 28) BLPrSH(Wa2e) (11152) (3549
Income tax expense from continuing RERBECEEBMEHRX
operations 16,178 7,571
Income tax expense from discontinued RE BRI EEBR TSRS
operation - _
16,178 7,571

2022 EHE

BEREXSRBRBERERAA

217



218

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRENE

12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Notes:

(@) On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed The Inland
Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill”) which introduces
the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on
28 March 2018 and was gazetted on the following day. Under the two-
tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of profits of the
qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2
million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profit of group entities not qualifying
for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a

flat rate of 16.5%.

(b) Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law")
and Implementation. Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC

subsidiaries is 25% for 2022 (2021: 25%).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 12
The taxation for the year is reconciled to profit before income

tax per the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
follows:

REMBEENE

Fri8H B8 X (@)
FEMERKESASEUEE 2B
EBRARAIEENT

2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
HKS$’'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
(Restated)
(E5)
Profit from continuing operations before 2R B 3 B 4L & 15 M B BT 15 8 F 2 A1
income tax expense i 49,656 49,622
(Loss)/profit from discontinued operation KB B 4% [F 4 & ¥ HIBR TSR X
before income tax expense Al (&5 1) 7 (1,241) 442
48,415 50,064
Tax calculated at PRC statutory income tax %A BUAE AT 1S R 25%
rate of 25% FTE IR 12,104 12,516
Tax effect of amount which are not Rt E R AR T HR,
deductible/(taxable) in calculating (TRERRT) @R S £
taxable income:
Share of result of an associate i il NGO (131) (582)
Expenses not deductible for taxation TRINFF X
purposes 1,434 1,032
Income not subject to taxation BABFUWA (398) (1,555)
Tax losses for which no deferred income — REERIELEFTS AT IBEE
tax was recognised 155 307
Recognition of tax loss (Note) R IEE 18 (T 5T) - (2,630)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax  f 8 4 il 7k #3210 4 18 65 18
loss (57) (2,100)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries 7 £t 7] 3K HE [R 48 & 575 2 I B
operating in other jurisdiction NETRME 728 2,523 343
Withholding tax on dividends of the PRC  #F BRI} & A AR 8. 2 FE$0HL
subsidiaries 548 240
Income tax expense for the year FEASHES 16,178 7,571

Note:

Following a significant improvement in financial performance in supply chain
management business segment in 2022, the Group reviewed previously
unrecognised tax losses and determined that it was now probable that taxable
profits will be available against which the tax losses can be utilised. As a
consequence, a deferred tax asset of HK$2,630,000 was recognised for these B

losses in 2022.

BaE

FHEE -

HRAMEEEREB AN T - FOMB
RAANERE - NREEERN T EATREROH
W R BIRAIBE S A 8L BB R B 1R 1K 3

N —=

RIELEFR B E EB%2,630,0007T ©

2025 EHRE BEREXSRBRBEEEERATF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHREWE
13 DIVIDENDS 13 RE
2022 2021
—EC-CF T
Final dividend of 2021, declared and paid —ZT = —FRHKE - 2R LT
of HKO0.3 cents (2020: nil) per ordinary BT @ARE0.310
share (ZF=FF: %) 11,954 -
Final dividend of 2022, proposed of HK0.3 —Z = —FRHIIL A » B RE TR
cent (2021: HKO.3 cents) per ordinary AR B 0,310
share - —4 3L 11,954 11,954
14 EARNINGS PER SHARE 14 BREF
(a) Basic (a) EX

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

ARRFHEARESRERNRES
BMTHERIATBIEE -

2022 2021
—=2=-= —E—F
(Restated)
(&%)
Profit from continuing operations RRGIRERE ARG

attributable to equity holders of the FHEICE E 1% A

Company (HK$000) (BT T 15,767 26,852
(Loss)/Profit from discontinued operation ~ Z/A BIAXHEHE A A JE(L

attributable to equity holders of the BRI EET

Company (HK$'000) (E538),/ & ) (B # T 7T) (1,241) 442

14,526 27,294
Weighted average number of ordinary T AR e T AR g (FAR)

shares (thousand) 3,984,640 3,984,640
From continuing operations attributable 2R B AN A 7] & @A B A E(H 15

to the ordinary equity holders of the RBAE 275 (L)

Company (HK cents) 0.40 0.67
From discontinued operation (HK cents) 2R E B & IE4&E & %5 GBIl (0.03) 0.01
Total basic earnings per share attributable N2 &)@ AT H AL Z

to the ordinary equity holders of the R A @58 (Bl

Company (HK cents) 0.37 0.68
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBEENE
14 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 14 BRER @)
(b) Diluted (b) #8

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to
assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. No
diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 December
2022 and 2021 as there was no dilutive potential shares
during the year.

BRESERF VA BABEITEIN
AR INE B - AR R EIRFT
BEEETBERMAE - ANSF
NI B EERG  HEBEEZT
ZZERZIZE—F+ZA=F—
ALFETESRESRT -

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 Y% BERRZRE
Furniture,
Leasehold Motor fitting and
Buildings  improvements Vehicles equipment Total
HE KA KB
BF MERE "E E @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BT

BT AETT BB

At 1 January 2021 R=B--F-H—-H
Cost A 22,720 860 2,050 5,130 30,760
Accumulated depreciation ZihE (1,552) (580) (1,844) (4,413) (8,389)
Net book amount REFE 21,168 280 206 717 22,371
Year ended 31 December 2021 HE-E--f54+ZA
=t+-HILEE
Opening net book amount FNEEFE 21,168 280 206 717 22,371
Exchange difference ERERE 77 = = 79 156
Transfer to investment properties BREZRENE
(Note 17) (HizE17) (20,874) = = = (20,874)
Addition RE = 1,028 = 151 1,179
Depreciation charge HEER 371) (301) (206) (437) (1,315)
Disposal HE - - - (1 (1
Closing net book amount EXREEFE = 1,007 = 509 1,516
At 31 December 2021 RZE--%4+ZR
=+-H
Cost B = 1,889 2,060 5,317 9,266
Accumulated depreciation ZEtinE = (882) (2,060) (4,808) (7,750)
Net book amount REFE = 1,007 = 509 1,516

2025 EHRE BEREXSRBRBEEEERATF

221



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRENE

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 15 Y% - BMERREE@®

Furniture,
Leasehold Motor fitting and
Buildings improvements Vehicles equipment Total
HE BRE - #£8
BF NEEE RE e @t
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000

BETR ERTT BETR ERTT BETR

At 1 January 2022 R-ZB--f-f-H
Cost Z%N - 1,889 2,060 5,317 9,266
Accumulated depreciation ZEE - (882) (2,060) (4,808) (7,750)
Net book amount REFE - 1,007 - 509 1,516
Year ended 31 December 2022 BE-Z-—F+=AH
=t-BREE
Opening net book amount FREFE - 1,007 - 509 1,516
Exchange difference B ERE - (72) - 40 (32)
Addition NE - - - 69 69
Depreciation charge WEEH - (215) - (333) (548)
Disposal & - - - (51) (51)
Closing net book amount FRERFE - 720 - 234 954
At 31 December 2022 R-EB-_—_5+_-H
Sr=[z
Cost KA - 1,801 2,025 3,892 7,718
Accumulated depreciation ZEHE - (1,081) (2,025) (3,658) (6,764)
Net book amount REFE - 720 - 234 954
At 31 December 2021, all of the Group’s buildings are located in R_ZE=——F+=-A=+—H A%£H
Hong Kong and Mainland China with the remaining lease terms of FrEEFHNREE LT RANL - T
40 and 30 years. FAHR A405F 2307 -
Depreciation expense of HK$548,000 (2021: HK$1,315,000) was B BH548,000 (=T ——%F ¢
charged in administrative expenses. 75 11,315,00070) EFF AT A ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16 LEASES
(a) Amounts recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position
The consolidated statement of financial position shows the
following amounts relating to leases:

REMBEENE

HE

RERE BB RER 2
T8

ARA ARSI BA T EHE R
B2 &8

2022 2021
—E-_C —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T

Right-of-use assets ERAEEE
Office premises WAE 8,213 16,807

Lease liabilities HEAE

Current portion TENER 2,315 3,618
Non-current portion JEmBNE S 6,876 13,686
9,191 17,304

Additions to right-of-use assets during the year were
HK$1,274,000. (2021: HK$17,730,000)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the land use right
being part of the commercial building property amounted
to HK$37,155,000 was transferred to investment properties
(Note 17).

FRENFEFAEEEABE
1,274,000 (=2 = —4F : B
17,730,0007T) ©

BE-T—_—F+t-A=t+—ALt
FE - BOEEEFTMEN L ME
FAREB 37,155,000t D E@EE
wEMEMET) °

2025 EHRE BEREXSRBRBEEEERATF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE WS M
16 LEASES (Continued) 16 HE @
(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated (b) REFEE2HWBRRERZ
statement of comprehensive income o
The consolidated statement of comprehensive income shows FAETERERIEATEBSE
the following amounts relating to leases: e
2022 2021
-2 —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Depreciation charge of right-of-use ERAEEENEER
assets
Office premises WRE 3,823 2,754
Land use right T s fE AR - 1,045
3,823 3,799
Gain on early termination of lease RERUEHEZEE 2 e
arrangement 135 -
Interest on lease liabilities (included in HEBENE
finance cost) GtABEKAR) 580 224
Expenses relating to short-term leases EEHERERE
(included in administrative expenses) GFFATTBAR) 415 602

(9)

The total cash outflow for leases during the year ended 31
December 2022 was HK$3,744,000 (2021: HK$2,567,000).

The Group’s leasing activities and how these
are accounted for

The Company leases various properties in HK and Mainland
China. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods of
1 year to 5 years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions.

Capital Industrial Financial Services Group Limited Annual Report 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBREWE
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17 REWZ
2022 2021
—ZE_— —E-—4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
At fair value BARE
At 1 January R—HA—H 144,498 23,700
Transfer from property, plant and B - WEREEEA
equipment (Note 15) (BF5E15) - 20,874
Transfer from right-of-use assets BEAEEEEAIE16)
(Note 16) - 37,155
Revaluation upon transfer from BYE - BB REEAR
property, plant and equipment and FRAEEEEARER
right-of-use assets - 56,353
Changes in fair value recognised in RIEBRRBERZANBED
profit or loss (2,471) 5,244
Exchange differences E X =% (8,825) 1,172
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8H 133,202 144,498

Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of

RREMERGAZTEARBRERZ S

comprehensive income for investment properties: ¥
2022 2021
—Eg-= T —F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Continuing operations BEKEER
Rental income HeHBA 4,535 1,445
Direct operating expenses from properties EEHESWAME T BEEKE
that generated rental income DN (160) (115)
As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no unprovided RZE-—_F+=-A=+—H ' &A&5H

contractual obligations for future repairs and maintenance (2021:

nil).

WEFBARREERREZRABHED
EBCTE—F | -

2025 EHRE BEREXSRBRBEEEERATF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRENE

17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17
Fair value hierarchy
The following table analyses the investment properties carried at
fair value, by valuation method.

B E Y @)
DNRERE

TREREETEN TR

BIRAE

Significant unobservable
inputs (Level 3)
ERBELZBEBABEB(E=R)

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Recurring fair value measurements BEURAREHNZ
Residential property units located in R BN EE
Hong Kong 32,900 38,400
Commercial property units located in R B A E B
Mainland China 100,302 106,098
133,202 144,498

There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3 during the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBREWE
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17 REWZE @
Fair value measurements using significant ERAERELBERGABB 2R
unobservable inputs (Level 3) B2 (E=4)
Commercial
Residential property units
property units located in
located in Mainland
Hong Kong China Total
NREBN NRPERHE
EEYEEN BEYWESEN st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT B¥T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE_-—ZE=-—%+=H
=t+—HLFE
Opening balance at 1 January 2021 RZZBEZ—F—H—HH
FOIERR 23,700 - 23,700
Transfer from property, plant and Bz - HEREEEA
equipment (Note 15) (FtzE15) 14,363 6,511 20,874
Transfer from right-of-use assets BEAREEEA
(Note 16) (H45E16) - 37,155 37,155
Revaluation upon transfer from property, B#1% * = RREA X
plant and equipment and right-of-use FRESEE AREM
assets 37 56,316 56,353
Changes in fair value recognised in the ~ RERAEZERZRERZ
consolidated statement of NREE
comprehensive income 300 4,944 5,244
Exchange differences &R =% = 1,172 1,172
Closing balance at 31 December 2021 R-ZE-_—%+=A
=T —BIZFERER 38,400 106,098 144,498
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZE= —fF+=A4
_'I' =| JJ:fﬁE
Opening balance at 1 January 2022 RZZEZ—F—A—HK
F#E 38,400 106,098 144,498
Changes in fair value recognised in the ~ R4&REZE Eﬂﬁlﬁ?\%ﬁﬁ R
consolidated statement of RREEE
comprehensive income (5,500) 3,029 (2,471)
Exchange differences fEH =58 - (8,825) (8,825)
Closing balance at 31 December 2022 RIZEZZF+=H
=t —HZERER 32,900 100,302 133,202
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRENTE
17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Transfer from property, plant and equipment to
investment properties

During the year ended 31 December 2021, Group’s own
occupied properties were transferred to investment properties.
Market comparable approach has been adopted for valuing the
abovementioned properties. One of the key inputs used in valuing
the properties were the price per square feet or price per square
meter, which are HK$23,723 per square feet and HK$63,496 per
square meter, respectively.

Valuation processes of the Group

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties at 31
December 2022 and 2021 have been arrived at on the basis
of a valuation carried out on those dates by Greater China
Appraisal Limited, an independent qualified professional valuer
not connected with the Group. Greater China Appraisal Limited
is a registered firm of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, and
has appropriate qualifications and experience. The valuation was
arrived at by reference to market evidence of transaction prices for
similar properties in the same location and conditions and where
appropriate by capitalisation of rental income from properties.

Market comparable approach has been adopted for valuing the
Group's residential and commercial property units. One of the
key inputs used in valuing the Group’s residential and commercial
property units was the price per square feet, which ranged from
HK$14,700 to HK$20,400 per square feet (2021: HK$17,014 to
HK$23,921 per square feet) and HK$54,400 per square meter
(2021: HK$65,011 per square meter) for residential and commercial
property units respectively. An increase in the price per square feet
used would result in an increase in fair value measurement of the
residential property units, and vice versa.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
Valuation processes of the Group (Continued)

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during the year.

REMBEENE

17 REWE @)
AEBZEHERF @
RER « BRI F o

The following table analyses the level 3 investment properties TREGBERMOTEARBARZSE
carried at fair value, by valuation techniques. —RIEEME -
Relationship of
Fair value at Valuation Unobservable Range of unobservable inputs to
Property 31 December technique(s) inputs unobservable inputs  fair value
R+=A=+-AR BELERBRANE
nE ZRRE EER BEBEEGANE SEEZRABBEE HANEZRER
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E-C-F —E-— —E-C-F —E-—
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ HK$
BRI  A%TT BET BT

Residential property units 32,900 38,400  Market comparable Market unitsales ~ 14,700to  17,014to  The higher the unit selling
located in Hong Kong approach price 20,400 23,921 price, the higher the fair

value

UREBOEENZENL 32,900 38400 THLBE M5 EER 147002 170142 EBUEEST AnfE

20,400 B9 &

Commercial property units 100,302 106,098  Market comparable Market unit sales 54,400 65,011 The higher the unit selling
located in Mainland approach price price, the higher the fair
China value

fir e B R A 5 100302 106098 THLEE s B &R 54,400 65011 ENEEHS - ARfE
S =y

2025 EHRE BEREXSRBRBEEEERATF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRENTE

18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

18 BILEE

Supply chain
financing
Goodwill platform
(Note (a)) (Note (b)) Total
BE MHEERETS
(M () (M= (b)) et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
BETIT BT BT
At 1 January 2021 R=-—ZB=-—%—-H—H
Cost AR 60,032 12,738 72,770
Accumulated amortisation BT - (4,406) (4,406)
Net book value R A 60,032 8,332 68,364
Year ended 31 December 2021 HE—_ZE—-—F%
+-A=+—HLEEE
Opening net book amount FURREEE 60,032 8,332 68,364
Addition NE - 34 34
Amortisation charge BIHEBR = (2,927) (2,927)
Exchange difference fEHZ5 1,465 171 1,636
Closing net book value FAREEFE 61,497 5,610 67,107
At 31 December 2021 RZE-—F
+=A=+—H
Cost AR 61,497 13,083 74,580
Accumulated amortisation B - (7,473) (7,473)
Net book value AR FHE 61,497 5,610 67,107
Year ended 31 December 2022 BE-—g——
+TZA=+—HLEE
Opening net book amount FYIREFE 61,497 5,610 67,107
Addition NE - 6,133 6,133
Amortisation charge BB - (1,351) (1,351)
Impairment VENIE] (945) - (945)
Exchange difference [ = (5.009) (910) (5,919)
Closing net book value FREEMEFE 55,543 9,482 65,025
At 31 December 2022 R=2==
+=—A=+—H
Cost AR 55,543 17,640 73,183
Accumulated amortisation Rty - (8,158) (8,158)
Net book value BRESHE 55,543 9,482 65,025

Amortisation expense of HK$1,351,000 (2021: HK$2,927,000) was

charged in administrative expenses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBREWE
18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 18 EEEE @
(a) Goodwill (a) BE
Goodwill is tested for impairment on an annual basis or when HEeEFHNLAREEBER
there are indications the carrying amount may be impaired. ERER R EE R ERR - 5t
For the purpose of impairment testing, the Group allocates BEARMES  AEEREARED
its goodwill to the relevant CGUs or group of CGUs, and IEEBAEReEESUIRSEE
compares the recoverable amounts of these CGUs or group BB WHZFHReELEM
of CGUs to their respective carrying amounts. A summary of SRS EABMMARR KBS
goodwill allocation for each group of CGUs of the Group is HEXAMNBREEETLHER - &~E
as follows: EEARReEESMNEESER
MEMT :
Assets
Sale and management
leaseback and Supply Chain
arrangements consultancy  management
services services business
segment segment segment
E#EA BEEEER fHpEsE
THERBIB EAREIH  EEREES
South China Shouhua Beijing Jingxi
Leasing Fangtai Supply Chain Total
EAHEE BHEFR LERTEEHER wst
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
BETT BETIT BEFIT ABETT
At 1 January 2021 R-B=—F
—HA—H 52,304 965 6,763 60,032
Exchange difference & =% 1,276 24 165 1,465
At 31 December 2021 R=-ZF=-—f
+=A=+-—H 53,580 989 6,928 61,497
Impairment EE = (945) = (945)
Exchange difference PE 5 =58 (4,397) (44) (568) (5,009)
At 31 December 2022 R=-ZB=-—F
+=A=+—-8 49,183 - 6,360 55,543
20225 EHE EEEEXSREBREEEERAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRENTE
18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

(a) Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill impairment assessment
The recoverable amount is calculated based on the higher of
value-in-use calculation or fair value less costs of disposal.

South China Leasing

The recoverable amount of South China Leasing is
determined based on value-in-use calculations. The value-
in-use calculations used cash flow projection based on
financial budgets prepared by management covering a five-
year period. The interest rate spread in the value-in-use
calculations is 2% (2021: 2%). The discount rate used of
approximately 11% (2021: 11%) is pre-tax and reflects the
specific risks related to the relevant business.

Any reasonably possible change in any of these key
assumptions would not result in an impairment of the
goodwill.

Shouhua Fangtai

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the management
determined to cease the operation of Shouhua Fangtai. The
Group recognised impairment loss of goodwill for the “assets
management and consultancy services” CGU amounted to
HK$945,000 for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Beijing Jingxi Supply Chain

The recoverable amount of Beijing Jingxi Supply Chain is
determined based on discounted cash flows calculations.
This calculation uses cash flow projections based on five-
year financial budgets, with reference to past performance
and expectations for market development, approved by
management. The annual revenue growth rate during the
projection period is 23% (2021: 3%) whereas the cash
flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated with
an estimated terminal growth rate of 1% (2021: 1%). The
discount rate used of approximately 17.5% (2021: 17.5%) is
pre-tax and reflects the specific risks related to the relevant
business.

Any reasonably possible change in any of these key
assumptions would not result in an impairment of the
goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRENE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 18 BEREE @
(b) HEEBMEFS
HERREFS

(b) Supply chain financing platform
The Supply chain financing platform is a software platform to
support the supply chain management business of the Group.

As at 31 December 2022, the directors are not aware of any
events or changes in circumstances which would indicate
that the carrying amount of the intangible assets may not be
recoverable.

INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE 19 R—REH

Set out below is the associate of the Group as at 31 December
2022. The entity listed below has share capital consisting solely of

of incorporation or registration is also their principal place of
business, and the proportion of ownership interest is the same as

R—ERETE -

XFASENHEREIER o

R-F-_—&+-A= —I— B E

ETAE

SEMEHHBE

RER

Eﬂﬁ%éﬁ&ﬁ’]ﬂ%@ﬁfﬁ—fﬁﬁﬁ/ﬂﬁ

IE] o

B 20

B2

NTHINAEBER_E_—F+=A=
T—BZEERR - THEERAEE
ordinary shares, which are held directly by the Group. The country BERRAER  BAEEEERS -
MR ELRRTBEFEEE M
B ARSI ORI ERLLD

the proportion of voting rights held. The associate is accounted for R - ZEE R AR RERENGEAR
using the equity method in these consolidated financial statements. BmE AR -
Place of
business/
Nature of Principal country of Effective % of
Name of entity relationship  activities incorporation ownership interest Carrying amount
BEBY
EResH BAENME  IEXEED ERRIER FEREREREAL fREE
2022 2021 2022 2021
B C—Z--% 8- _—T--F
% % HK$'000 HK$'000
ik BETT
REREREERAA Associate Provision of ~ The PRC 41.41% 41.41% 83,951 92,930
(Beijing West Business factoring
Factoring Company services in
Limited*) ("Beijing West PRC

Business Factoring”)
REBEREERAF Bena) R B R A i
(TREREERE]) RE RS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BEMBEREME
19 INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 19 R—EBE QTR @
2022 2021
—Eg-= T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Cost of investment in an associate: R—EBEQATZRERK
As at 31 December W+ZA=+—8 92,930 91,362
Share of operating profits FEAE G5 T 523 2,328
Share of other comprehensive income R H 2 E WS (7.573) 2,236
Dividend received B U B (1,929) (2,996)
Interests in an associate R—EBE AT 2ER 83,951 92,930
Goodwill e
As at 31 December 2022, included in the cost of investment in R-E-_—_F+-_A=+—H "  BNEA
Beijing West Business Factoring Company Limited, an associate of BEREERAG(KAEE 2B ERF])
the Group, is goodwill of approximately HK$24,212,000 (2021: ZIRERAERBEFARBEENDY
HK$26,376,000) arising from the acquisition during the year. BAAB24,212,000L (ZE=—F + &

#26,376,0007T) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)
Summarised financial information of the material
associate

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s material
associate is set out below.

19

BAMBWEME
R—EEE QT 2R @
FTERENTNTEEREE

BN AL B B A QRN EER T
DHIFWT ©

Beijing West Business Factoring REBERE
2022 2021
—E-_F T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Current assets mBEE 844,818 926,280
Non-current assets IEMBNEE 240 12,423
Current liabilities mEAE (700,795) (777,982)
Net asset BEFE 144,263 160,721
Revenue Wz 246,034 212,492
Expenses, including income tax X (B IEFTSH) (244,770) (206,869)
Profit for the year FEHm A 1,264 5,623
Profit for the year contributed to the owner ~RFAFEREHF AEEFEE R
of Beijing West Business Factoring 1,264 5,623

The information above reflects the amounts represented in the
financial statements of Beijing West Business Factoring (and not
the Group’s share of those amounts) adjusted for differences in
accounting policies between the Group and the associate.

Movements of interests in Beijing West Business Factoring are as
follows:

3R R R R 7 7 AR I 08 T 9
WS B HFAREEESE) - SHA
5 S ) A0 R AR 2 R AT
A%

RERAREREZ R EHINT

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—4F

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T PEHET T
Interests in an associate R—EHE AR 2R
At 1 January n—A—H 92,930 91,362
Share of results JE(R¥4E 523 2,328
Dividend received B AR B (1,929) (2,996)
Exchange differences EHZERE (7,573) 2,236
At 31 December W+ZA=+—8 83,951 92,930
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRENE

19 INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 19
Summarised financial information of the material

associate (Continued)

Beijing West Business Factoring (Continued)
Reconciliation of the summarised financial information presented
to the carrying amount of its interests in Beijing West Business

Factoring is as follows:

R—EEE QT 2R @
FERENTNHEERBE @

RABERE ()

BT 258 5 AR B R R A A R R
2RI ST

2022 2021

—E-—F —E-—F

HKS$’'000 HK$'000

BT T BT

Summarised financial information BBERBE

Opening net assets on 1 January R—A—BZEYEEFE 160,721 158,450
Post-acquisition profit for the period BN B 12 s T 1,264 5,623
Dividend paid for the period HRE MRS (4,661) (7,236)
Exchange differences MEHZR (13,061) 3,884
Closing net assets FREETFE 144,263 160,721
Group's share in % REERGEES T 41.41% 41.41%
Interests in the associate REE RG2S 59,739 66,554
Goodwill B 24,212 26,376
Carrying amount as at 31 December RTZA=+—BZKEE 83,951 92,930
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BEMBEREME
20 RECEIVABLES UNDER SALE AND LEASEBACK 20 EREELTHET ZEWRE
ARRANGEMENTS

2022 2021

—E-= —E-—F

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T PR T

Current assets mENE E 756,885 1,030,623

Non-current assets IERBNEE 333,229 319,749

1,090,114 1,350,372

At 31 December, the Group's receivables under sale and leaseback R+t-A=1+—8 AEEEZROEAL
arrangements were repayable as follows: HEIE T 2 FEYCRIEEE T ¢

2022 2021

—E-— —E-—%F

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT

Within one year —&FR 756,885 1,030,623

Between 1 and 2 years —EMWF 72,315 296,499

Between 2 and 3 years ME=4F 260,914 23,250

1,090,114 1,350,372

As at 31 December 2022, the Group receivables under sale and RZEBZZF+ZA=+—H ' &x5H

leaseback arrangements were not yet overdue (2021: same). EE LT HEIA T 2 YR & K B 8

ZEZF AR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRENE

20 RECEIVABLES UNDER SALE AND LEASEBACK

20 EREEZHE N 2 EWFIE

ARRANGEMENTS (Continued) (4&)
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T PR T
Analysed as: DT
Current receivables under sale and leaseback &1 170 Z2 HE T8 T & Y7 BH F0IE
arrangements (receivable within (A1 =18 A R E)
12 months) 772,246 1,054,994
Non-current receivables under sale and EROHALHIE T ERIERE
leaseback arrangements (receivable after RIE (=18 A & s
12 months) 339,516 321,135
1,111,762 1,376,129
Provision of impairment loss allowance BEBEEE (21,648) (25,757)
1,090,114 1,350,372
Fixed-rate receivables under sale and EREHALHEE T RTS8 5B
leaseback arrangements 840,390 702,706
Variable-rate receivables under sale and EREIHALHEE T EYZE S TE
leaseback arrangements 249,724 647,666
1,090,114 1,350,372

The interest rates of the variable-rate receivables under sales and
leaseback arrangement represent prevailing People’s Bank of China
Renminbi Lending Rate (“PBC rate”) or Offshore Chinese Renminbi
Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“CNH HIBOR") as at 31
December 2022 and 2021, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20 RECEIVABLES UNDER SALE AND LEASEBACK

ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)

Interest rates per annum of the above receivables under sale and
leaseback arrangements for the year are as follows:

20

REMBEENE

EREBRZHE N 2 EERRE
()

RAFE - Ll EREAZHE T RK
HREZFHEMT :

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT

Fixed-rate receivables JEULE B FkIE

Variable-rate receivables JEWZ B FkIE

5.0% to 12.0%
5.0EZ12.0E
5.5% to 5.5%

5.5E %552

5.0% to 12.0%
5.0E2%12.02
5.5% t06.7%

5.5E£6.7E

Interest rate of variable-rate receivables is reset when there is a
change of the prevailing PBC rate or CNH HIBOR.

As at 31 December 2022, carrying value of the receivables under
sale and leaseback arrangements of HK$73,830,000 (2021:
HK$243,289,000) have been pledged against specific secured bank
borrowings granted to the Group (Note 27). The pledges will be
released upon the settlement of secured bank borrowings.

FEUCTE B RANFERRITARRITE
RHELFBRITAZARKE TR SR

BRIEER -

RZB-_—_HF+-A=+—8 - &1
EIAAZHEETERZIENERE@ES
#73,830,0000 (=& = —4F : B
243,289,0007T) BB FIRITIERK T
AEEMFETEEBRITERZER
(MF5E27) - | R IRITIE KB E R
|3§ °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRENE

20 RECEIVABLES UNDER SALE AND LEASEBACK 20
ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)
(i) Movement in provision of impairment loss

EREERZHE N 2 BKFRIE

EREEZHERT BURFIR

allowance for receivables under sale and BEEBEREES
leaseback arrangements
HK$'000
BT T
At 1 January 2021 RZZE-_—F—A—H 22,432
Provision for the year F ISR 2,751
Exchange differences X =% 574
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 RZBEZ—F+ZA=+—HEK
—E-—F#—HF—H 25,757
Provision for the year FEEE 16,959
Write-off provision of bad debt 152 BR B A A 5 (19,036)
Exchange differences PE 5 =% (2,032)
At 31 December 2022 N-—ZE-——_#+=-HA=+—H 21,648

The provision for receivables under sale and leaseback
arrangements amounted to HK$21,648,000 (2021:
HK$25,757,000). As at 31 December 2021, out of the
$25,757,000, HK$19,925,000 is related to credit-impaired
receivables under sale and leaseback arrangements and those
borrowers were either under severe financial difficulties,
placed in liquidation or in legal proceedings (Note 3).

Capital Industrial Financial Services Group Limited Annual Report 2022

EREMETHEET ERRERE
#ABE21,648,000(ZFE =
— % : ##25,757,0007L) ° A
2 —4F+zZA=+—8"
725,757,000 0 2 » B
19,925,000 L EAZ £ = EREM &
BEOATHEBETEKRKEBEER -
MERERAZEREN KR
#OETBEBRKNESEEEFD
(PF5E3) ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20 RECEIVABLES UNDER SALE AND LEASEBACK
ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)
(ii) Security deposits received

Security deposits of HK$1,399,000 (2021: HK$6,098,000)
have been received by the Group to secure the receivables
under sale and leaseback arrangements and classified into
current liabilities and non-current liabilities based on the final
lease instalment due date stipulated in the sale and leaseback
agreements.

REMBEENE

20 EREEZHEN 2 ERKIE

(%)

(i)

ERRBEE
AEBEBWBRRIBTESBE
1,399,000 (=T =—4F : BK
6,098,0007T) * {EAEEZEIHL G
HTRBGIERNER - WIRESE
CWReI Az REAE D BHIE
A mBEREATBABRIE
mENBE -

2022 2021
—Eg-= —E-—%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Analysed as: PaR)iw=1E
Security deposits received BRRFR S
- due with one year - —HF N H 1,399 6,098
1,399 6,098
In addition to security deposits, the receivables under sale and BRTRERRIN %?Q@TET(TJFIE
leaseback arrangements are secured over the leased assets TERKKEBER-_Z k=

mainly real estate, machineries and build and transfer project
of a scenic belt as at 31 December 2022 and 2021.

The Group is not permitted to sell or repledge the collateral
of the receivables under sale and leaseback arrangements
in the absence of default by the lessee. Estimates of fair
value of collateral are made during the credit approval
process, determined using valuation techniques commonly
used for the corresponding assets. These estimates of
valuations are made at the inception of sale and leaseback,
and management would review it periodically. The Group
also takes into consideration the financial positions and
the guarantors of the relevant customers and the expected
timing, legal possession status and other uncertainties on
recognize the pledged assets in the impairment assessment.

——H+ZA=+—HHUHEE éf%
(FERFHWE « BERRELTE
R MERIAB)EREA

HABALEEL - AEETEH
EXNBEAZSEREBELAT
FEWRIRREIR G - WMEEFIB
2 EHEM AR EGTTEER
HEEETBNGEAMEE %
EFEEMGFIRERDERBEE
o WA EEETERERN - RRE
AR AERETEEREREP
BN RIERANRBEREER
WEEZTBEE ARG
REMEERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BEMBEREME
21 TRADE AND BILL RECEIVABLES AND 21 ERESZRIAEREREEUR
PREPAYMENT, DEPOSIT AND OTHER FENFHIE - RERHEMEUWE
RECEIVABLES b= |
2022 2021
—Eg-= T —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BEET I
Trade and bill receivables JEUNE 5Bk 7 N FE I = 1% 15,061 31,511
Provision for impairment loss allowance REBERE (28) (22)
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 15033 31489
Prepayments (Note (i) TEAS FRIE (B FE) 7,650 16,251
Other receivables (Note (ii)) H b Uk zkE (B R i) 28,718 205,714
Deposits e 1,340 1,448
Provision for impairment loss allowance BB R (336) (174)
52,405 254,728
Non-current FETRED 3,814 4,226
Current ED 48,591 250,502
52,405 254,728
Notes: 5T -

(i) As at 31 December 2022, prepayment of HK$3,615,000 (2021:
HK$7,000,000) was paid to the supplier in relation to the supply chain

management services.

(i) As at 31 December 2022, other receivables of HK$26,809,000 (2021:
HK$203,783,000) was receivable in relation to the purchase cost paid on
behalf of customers under supply chain management services in which

the Group was acting as an agent.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAMBWEME
21 TRADE AND BILL RECEIVABLES AND 21 FELI&,"i%EE IREWEEUR
PREPAYMENT, DEPOSIT AND OTHER FERRE - RERHEMEWRR
RECEIVABLES (continued) IH (48)

(a) BUREZRAREBURERE

(a) Trade and bill receivables

The credit terms of trade receivables are normally 30 to 90
days as at 31 December 2022. The maturity periods of bill
receivables are normally 6 to 12 months as at 31 December
2022. The aging analysis of trade receivables and bill
receivables is as follows:

RZBE-_—_F+=-A=+—H0 &
WESERFZEEHR K AE30E
90H - R—E-——F+=-_A=+
—H - BREERZ IR —MA
62128 A - EWE ZEREFZEI
ZRZREROTOT ¢

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T PRI

Within 3 months =@EAR 15,061 2,966
4-6 months Mz 58 A - 26,768
7-9 months ENEAR - 1,050
10-12 months +=+=1@A - 727
15,061 31,511

Due to the short-term nature of the trade and bill receivables,
their carrying amounts are considered to be the same as their

fair value.

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade and bill receivables

RN EWNE 2R MR BB
e EEREERRAEEAR

AR -

AEEREE SR REERERZ

are denominated in RMB.

REEAARBE-

(i) Movement in provision of trade and bill (i) EKREZRINREWEE
receivables BRESE
HK$'000
BT T
At 1 January 2021 RZZEZ—F—H—H -

FERE 22

Provision for the year

At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 RZBZ—F+-—A=+—8BK

—E-—#—F—H 22
Provision for the year FERE 7
Exchange differences MEH R (1
At 31 December 2022 R=B-_=—%+=-A=+—~H 28
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRENE

21 TRADE AND BILL RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENT, DEPOSIT AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

(b) Other receivables
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, other receivables are

secured, interest-free and repayable within one year from the
end of reporting period.

21

EWESEFREREEUR
FENRIE - Re R HMEWRR
13 ()

(b)

H fih U R IE
RZEZ_FER=FT=_—F+=H
=+—A  HEMERFEBEREK
2B RERRERRET —F
AEE ©

Analysed by denominated currency: REAHEEEDT -
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
HK$ g 452 74
RMB AR 27,926 205,466
28,378 205,540

(i) Movement in provision of other receivables

(i) HtEWREAREEE

HK$'000

BT

At 1 January 2021 WZE-_—4%—H—H =

Provision for the year FEEHE 172

Exchange differences MEH =R 2
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 RZEZ—F+=-A=+—HEK

—FE-_—_F—H—H 174

Provision for the year FERE 184

Exchange differences [E R =58 (22)

At 31 December 2022 R-B-_-%+-A=+—~H 336
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BEMBEREME
INVENTORIES 22 &
2022 2021
—EC-CF —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Finished goods RUAK o - 3,542

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the cost of inventories
recognised as expense and included in cost of goods sold amounted
to approximately HK$262,579,000 (2021: HK$1,778,325,000).

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 23
PROFIT OR LOSS

BB+ -A=1+—HILtEE "
SR BB262,579,000(ZF - —
& 1 B¥1,778,325,0007T) (I &R AR
WRAERY Wit AHERRAA °

ZERBERRRAAREEEZE
mEE

2022 2021
—Eg-= T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BETT
Listed equity securities measured at FVPL BRBRRERAREREZ
TR AR
- Hong Kong - B 2,809 4,339

The fair value of the listed equity securities is determined by
reference to the quoted market bid prices available and loss on
changes in fair value on the listed equities of HK$1,530,000
has been recognised in profit or loss during the year ended 31
December 2022 (2021: gain of HK$1,492,000).

Information about the Group’s exposure to price risk is provided
in Note 3.1. For information about the methods and assumptions
used in determining fair value refer to Note 3.3.

LERAFBLHENARBHIRESFHT
BEABREET  BEREHZE—-FT
T+ A=+ HILFENER
B EmBR AR R BEEBEREIES
#1,530,0007C(Z T = — 4 : W5/E
1,492,0007T) °

AEEEERESRRNBEENER

MEE3.1 - FREERAAERMAERZS
ERBRRER - F2HME33 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRENE

24 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

24 BEeRkBREEEEARZRS

RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS RITER
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T ST T
Cash at banks and in hand RITEREES 322,904 387,095
Restricted bank deposits 2R HIERITFER 75,817 =
398,721 387,095

Analysed by denominated currency: RETEEB ST -

HK$ s 1,559 92,778
RMB N 397,123 291,912
usD ETT 39 2,405
398,721 387,095

The Group's deposits carry interest rate at prevailing bank deposit
rates ranging from 0.01% to 2.10% (2021: 0.01% to 2.88%) per
annum. The conversion of the RMB-denominated balances into
foreign currencies and the remittance of funds out of the Mainland
China is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange
control promulgated by the Government of the PRC.

Restricted bank deposits included bank balances pledged as security

for issuance of bills payable of approximately HK$75,817,000 and
denominated in Renminbi as at 31 December 2022 (2021: nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(i) The aging analysis of the bills payables primarily based on invoice date

was as follows:

BEMBEREME
25 BILLS PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND 25 ENEE - HttENRERE

ACCRUALS TEH
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T PR T
Bills payables (Note (i)) ERNEZEA(NETD) 84,974 =
Accrued salaries and bonuses FEETF & RIEAL 9,511 16,624
Accrued legal and professional fees EEEEREEER 3,255 2,431
Other tax payables HAith B IR 11,535 10,956
Interest payables FERTFE 23 539
Receipt in advance from customers (Note (ii)) 84t W ENE P 2 78 (B 7)) 15 173
Others (Note (jii)) oA (B 5 Gii)) 44,302 37,779
68,641 68,502
153,615 68,502

Notes: st

() ENREIZEREERZAHRGHIRED

MEWT :

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+-—H
2022 2021
—EB-CF —E-—4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Within 30 days 308 84,653 -
31 to 90 days 31HZE90R 321 -
84,974 =

(ii) The balance represents receipt in advance from customers under supply
chain management services in which the Group was acting as an agent.

(i)  As at 31 December 2022, included in others HK$3,295,000 (2021:
HK$25,896,000) was payable in relation to the purchase cost payable to
suppliers under supply chain management services in which the Group

was acting as an agent.

iy FEESRA/FEREEREZHEREE
BRAGIA T IR WERE P 2 08 -

(i) M-ZTE-_—_F+-A=+—H " FAH
fth Y %5 3,295,000L (ZE=—F : B
25,896,0007T) BB MASERETREZ
SR E 1P RIS TE T A B 2 SRIE AR

R ENFRIE »
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26 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRENE

26 RENEszEe@MIA

The Group holds the following financial instruments: AEEREAT EMIE -
2022 2021
—E-C —E-—4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Financial assets cREE
Financial assets at amortised cost R B ERMEE
— Receivables under sale and leaseback - EREELHIET 2 EURKRIE
arrangements 1,090,114 1,350,372
— Receivable under credit financing - EERBELTHET 2 BIKRIE
arrangement 168,453 -
— Trade and bill receivables - JEE SRR ERER 15,033 31,489
— Other receivables and deposits - Hi R IB RIES 29,722 206,988
— Restricted bank deposits - ZRHIRITER 75,817 =
- Cash and cash equivalents -RekBReEBEIEER 322,904 387,095
Financial assets at fair value through profit or EBIBRFR AL EREZ
loss TREE 2,809 4,339
1,704,852 1,980,283
Financial liabilities =i
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REEKAFTEZ er A
- Bills payable - BRERE 84,974 =
— Other payables - HAth fEAT FRIE 47,580 40,749
~ Secured bank borrowings - BIEIFRITER 13,639 290,922
~ Loan from a related party - —BEAEATHENR 30,643 =
— Security deposits received - BRER S 1,399 6,098
— Lease liabilities -HEaE 9,191 17,304
187,426 355,073
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREME
27 SECURED BANK BORROWINGS 27 CEMBRITER
2022 2021
—Eg-= T
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Non-current portion FERNERER
Secured bank borrowings EEBIRITE K - 94,319
Current portion B ERE %
Secured bank borrowings EIEFREITER 13,639 196,603
13,639 290,922
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group's secured bank R_E-_—FR T —F+_-_A=+
borrowings were repayable in accordance with scheduled —B - AEEAKRGTEERAHERY
repayment dates as follows: EHERRITERAT -
2022 2021
—EB-F —E-—%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Carrying amount repayable: AEEREE
Within 1 year —5R 11,200 111,288
Between 1 and 2 years —EWE - 94,319
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 11,200 7 205607
Carrying amount of secured bank borrowings & 781% 2k EZIERZ
that contain a repayable on demand EHERRITEFRAE
clause (shown under current liabilities) but GIRRBaEET)
repayable: BEER :
Within 1 year —FR 2,439 82,885
Between 1 and 2 years —EWF - 2,430
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 2439 . 8315
13,639 290,922
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BABIEREMS
27 SECURED BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 27 SIEHBITER@E

250

At 31 December 2022, the borrowing of HK$2,439,000 (2021:
HK$85,315,000) and HK$11,200,000 (2021: HK$205,607,000)
were denominated in HK$ and RMB respectively.

For the secured bank borrowings pledged by certain assets are
disclosed in Note 31.

The ranges of effective interest rates on the Group’s secured bank
borrowings are as follows:

RZEBEZZF+ZA=+—80 " &
#2,439,000 (=2 =—F : B
85,315,0007T) & ¥ 11,200,0007T(=
T~ —4 : B#205,607,0007T) Z B
DRIAEE R AREETE ©

DA T B I A0 B AR AR 1T 18 3R B
H31HE -

AEEDEPRITERER MRS E a0
T

2022 2021

—E-—F —E-—F

@ﬂ
) E%fﬁﬁﬂifﬂﬁfk

Effective interest rate:
Variable-rate secured bank borrowings

‘-N q /m}

4.75% t05.77% 1.19% to 5.00%
475EZE5.77E 1.19E%5.00E

The interest rates for the Group’s secured bank borrowings vary
from different subsidiaries. The interest rates vary from Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR") plus 1% and variable Loan Prime
rate ("LPR") plus a percentage spread of 1.15% (2021: Hong Kong
banks’ prime rate minus 2.75%, HIBOR plus 1% to 2.4% and
variable LPR plus a percentage spread of 1.15%). Secured bank
borrowings of HK$2,439,000 (2021: HK$85,315,000) are exposed
to the fluctuations of HIBOR and Hong Kong banks’ prime rate
while the remaining HK$11,200,000 (2021: HK$205,607,000) are
exposed to the fluctuation of PBC rate. The interest is repricing
every month for secured bank borrowings of HK$2,439,000 (2021:
HK$5,315,000), and repricing every quarter for secured bank
borrowings of HK$11,200,000 (2021: HK$285,607,000). The
proceeds were used as funding for sale and leaseback and general
working capital for the Group for the years ended 31 December
2022 and 2021.
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¥RB(BARTRAEREDINER

FEERMERENR(ERTISRE
K] EF1ISB(ZE-—F : FF
RITHREEFERF2.75F - FBETH
E¥REMEBEZE2ARR Y BHERT IS
MEFEK EF115EF) - BIEFRITE
FEEE2,439 ooo%(:%——i DB
85,315,00070) BA S B B IRITR ZER
E&E%&Eﬁ?%%ﬂh&@iﬂM ;
Mmea T~ 2E% 11,200,000 (= —
£ 1 B #205,607,0007T) BIZEFAS AR
MERF R EE B - BEBRITE
HAEHE2,439,000L (2T = —4F : B
5,315,0007T) 2 FI. 8 & A E%ﬁi{ﬁﬁ’ﬁa
EARERITE B 11,200,000 (ZE =
—4F @ E¥285,607,0007T) 2 F B BIF
TEHTE - HE_TZE_—_FR_T—
—F+-A=+—HLtFE  F35%E

EREAEEEREEHEES N —REE
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28

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SECURED BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 27

During the year ended 31 December 2022, secured bank
borrowings of HK$136,857,000 was early repaid (2021: HK$nil).

For assets pledged as security for bank borrowing, please refer to
Note 31.

DEFERRED INCOME TAX 28
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement

of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities

have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax
balances for financial reporting purposes:

REMBEENE

2K R 1T B ™K@
BHE-_ET-—F+-_A=+—HI1t&E
B RPEZECHEBETERABE
136,857,000 (Z B =-—4F : BE=E
JT) °

BRSRITEREREENFSE  F2
BIMIEE31 -

IEFE PS8

BREEMBHRRKRAZY - HTRIE
MEEERAED TAEKHE - THRE
ERBESREVBE2HRENTME 22
e

2022 2021

—E-= —E-—F

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T PRI

Deferred tax assets RIEFIAE E 2,384 2,661
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEAE (20,619) (10,850)
(18,235) (8,189)
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28 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)
The following are the major deferred tax assets/(liabilities)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRENE

28 EEMREH @
NWTAEHRAZTBELHBLE (A

recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior BUNRERTNFERBAFE ZEE :
years:
Provision of  Withholding
loss allowance tax on
for receivables  undistributed
undersaleand  profits of the
leaseback Mainland China Revaluation
arrangements subsidiaries of property Tax loss Total
RER E R
ERZH# WEAR
BT ZEWR KRR
BERRA BB NEER HERS b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETTT
Movements 29
At 1 January 2021 R=Z--%-F-H 13,869 (1,266) (10,204) - 2,399
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss B A/ (H1) 687 (754) 985 2,630 3,548
Charged to other comprehensive REFa2ElERNR
income - - (14,079) - (14,079)
Exchange difference EREE 346 (39) (395) 31 (57)
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January R-ZE=-%
2022 TZA=1t-AkK
“2--%-f-H 14,902 (2,059) (23,693) 2,661 (8,189)
Charged to profit or loss RERR (8,605) (1,731) (757) (59) (11,152)
Exchange difference EHEE (885) 236 1,973 (218) 1,106
At 31 December 2022 R=B==%
tZA=1-A 5,412 (3,554) (22,477) 2,384 (18,235)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has the following
unutilised tax losses available for offsetting against future taxable
profits for which no deferred tax asset is recognised:

REMBEENE

28 EEMREH @

RBEMR - AEBANL TR AHRE
BRI ERRERTEN - B &
IEBERECHEEE :

2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT

Tax losses expiring: RUATEIM R 2 BB &1 -
Within 5 years AER 7,235 7,345
Without expiry date EREE 520,314 475,173
527,549 482,518

No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the above
tax losses due to unpredictability of future profit streams.

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends
declared in respect of profits earned by the Group's subsidiaries
in Mainland China from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred
taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary difference attributable to the
retained earnings earned by the subsidiaries in Mainland China
amounting to HK$112,950,000 as at 31 December 2022 (2021:
HK$83,000,000) as the Group controls the dividend policy of these
PRC subsidiaries and it is probable that these temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

EEEM@%?HE?EU*)K?ET‘JXEF B 4
iR EEERRERIAEE

RERECEMESHE BZTTN\F
—H B stARSEERF A2 W

RNAFTHREVZFER 2R EBHRTE
?DTR RZEBE-_—_F+-_A=+— Ei
ARAANEBEHZEPE RN BA
MIREEER B SERE8EAa 2
A RSB - M ER RS MR
PP E AN E QTR RE R
FE(RE RS Z 5B 112,950,000 (=&
——% : B¥83,000,0007T) fEHEE
TR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHREWE
29 DISCONTINUED OPERATION 29 ERIEKEHEK
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the management BT -_—_H#+-_A=+—HItHF
decided to cease the operation of the assets management and E R BEBATRIKENEREES
consultancy services of the Group. Consequently, the operating IBRZBARE 5B BETIERGZH
segment of assets management and consultancy services is RIS LD B TR A D R IE KB ERE -
reported as a discontinued operation. Financial information relating ATHABDRIMSSEBENTESR
to the discontinued operation is set out below. ¥l o
2022 2021
—E-C —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T

Revenue Weas - 2,409
Gross profit EH - 2,409
Other income E A 635 167
Expenses X (1,876) (2,134)
(Loss)/profit before income tax A BT AT(EB), R (1,241) 442
Income tax expense ABFBHX - -
(Loss)/profit from discontinued operation ERIEEEER(ER), HEF (1,241) 442
Other comprehensive (loss)/income Hih2m(E8) M=
Currency transaction differences X =% (3,704) 1,042
Total comprehensive (loss)/income from BEARIEEEEB (EB) =125

discontinued operation (4,945) 1,484
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating #&&/E#FT15/(FTA) IR & F5

activities 16,269 (15,513)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash ReMRESEBREMN,CR)

equivalents FER 16,269 (15,513)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBREWE
30 SHARE CAPITAL 30 BRA&
Number of
shares Amount
RHEE -]
HK$'000
BT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SREESE0.01T 2 LB
Authorised: ETE
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021 RZZE-_—F—H—H"
and 31 December 2022 T —%+ZRA=+—H
;MZE-_—_F+-A=+—H 10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BEEIREHR
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021 RZZ_—5—H—H"
and 31 December 2022 —E-—%+-A=+—H
—ZEF+-A=+—H 3,984,639,703 39,846
31 ASSETS PLEDGED AS SECURITY 31 HAEE
The carrying amount of assets pledged as security for non-current ETHIFERIERBEENEKTRM A
assets are: EREER
2022 2021
—E=-= T —%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Investment properties (Note (a)) B W% (5 (a)) 32,900 38,400
Receivables under sale and leaseback S EALHIE T 2 BUGKIE
arrangements (Note (b)) (B EE (b)) 73,830 243,289
106,730 281,689
Notes: S
(@  The Group's investment properties with an aggregate carrying value of (@) BEEA{EHB%32,900,0000(=FE=—
HK$32,900,000 (2021: HK$38,400,000 were pledged to banks to secure £ : $138,400,0007T) 2 A& B IR E
for bank borrowings with outstanding amount of HK$2,439,000 (2021: YD TET  EAREBRTE
HK$5,315,000). HB#2,439,0007T (=T = —F : B

5,315,0007T) Z #E3F »

(b) The Group's receivables under sale and leaseback arrangements with a (b) BRE{E#1673,830,000 (= F = —4 :
carrying value of HK$73,830,000 (2021: HK$243,289,000) were pledged VE5#6243,289,000T) 2 A B E . B
to banks to secure for bank borrowings with outstanding amount of ZHIET 2 BWFIERER TIRT - 1ER
HK$11,200,000 (2021: HK$205,607,000). KEZBITHE B 11,200,000T(=F

——% : %¥205,607,0007T) Z K o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREWE
32 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 32 RERERERMTE
CASH FLOWS
(a) Cash generated from operations (a) BEFREBEHRE
2022 2021
—ZE_-C —E-—HF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt aE BT T BT T
Cash flows from operating RETHMBRERN
activities
Profit from continuing operations R BB E TR AT
before income tax expense 1574 58 2 B s A 49,656 49,622
(Loss)/profit from discontinued KA B KL EEFHBR
operation before income tax FTiS i A (&18),/
expense il (1,241) 442
Profit before income tax including B#ET KR ILEEEBENKR
discontinued operation Fr8 R anE R 48,415 50,064
Adjustment for: FAEE
Changes in fair value of equity FRBREEARE
instruments at fair value through RIBZIEETE Y
profit or loss N EES 1,530 (1,492)
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BEKK 15
equipment e 548 1,315
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEETE 16 4,006 3,799
Amortisation of intangibles assets B ERE 18 1,351 2,927
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEWE - BERH 7
and equipment and intangible BUAREREEY
asset [E518 51 1
Gain on disposal of right-of-use HEfAREERT 7
assets (135) -
Gain on disposal of debt HEFEBEMEE
instruments at FVOCI WS AR BEERE
ZEBIAZ G - 12
Provision for impairment of JFE Uk SR I8 ol (B B A R =R
receivables, net 17,150 2,927
Impairment loss on goodwill EEEERE 945 -
Changes in fair values of investment  #&&EWEZ AL E
properties 2 2,471 (5,244)
Finance costs & Bk AR 11 9,407 12,971
Interest income FEBA (9,591) (3,821)
Share of profit of an associate FEAE — A B & R R (523) (2,328)
Exchange loss/(gain), net 0 3 E518, (Wa) F1E 172 (1,214)
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32 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRENE

(a) Cash generated from operations (Continued)

32

HERERERMT @

() REMB(FA)RE ()

2022 2021
—E-CF T
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
{hr=s BET T BT IT
Operating cash flows before LEESEHRLE
movements in working capital RERE 75,797 59,917
Changes in working capital: LEESEE
Trade and bill receivables JE U B 5 BR TR K U ZE 14,431 4,592
Receivables under sale and leaseback €14 1A 22 HE1E | FEUR
arrangements IR 136,556 60,291
Inventories FE 3,384 (2,393)
Prepayments, deposits and other TEFIE - e REAM
receivables FEW T 174,301 (62,025)
Bills payable IS 82,317 =
Other payables and accruals H b B~ 5008 N fEET
g8 5,913 9,117
Contract liabilities BHEE (9,647) 10,115
Security deposit BERREZ S (4,370) (6,029)
Receivable under credit financing EERMELTHE T 2 EHK
arrangement FA (175,322) =
Cash generated from operations LGRS 303,360 73,585
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRENE

32 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(a) Cash generated from operations (Continued)
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from

32 FEBRERERM T @
(a) REMBEI @

EGAREREBRT  HEWE -

disposal of property, plant and equipment comprise: B R 2 TS RUB RS
2022 2021
-2 —E-—4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Net book amount BREFE
Property, plant and equipment (Note 15)  #1% - &= L& (Ff:E15) 51 1
Loss on disposals of property, plantand ~ HE¥Z - BE M REA KR
equipment and intangible asset (Note 7) & & EE 2 B 1EF 78 (M52 7) (51) (1
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEWE - BEMZEZ
and equipment P8R8 - -
Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) REFHELEZABEH

(b)
activities
This section sets out an analysis of net cash and the
movements in net cash for the years ended 31 December
2022 and 2021 presented.

KEHIFIRBE T —FN—
E-—F+-_A=+—HIFER
EFBRIRSFREEFH 2/ -

2022 2021
—E-—F T —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BET T
Cash and cash equivalents RehReFEIER 322,904 387,095
Restricted bank deposits 2R B IRITER (75,817) =
Borrowings B (13,639) (290,922)
Loan from a related party —ZBREATER (30,643) -
Lease liabilities HEaE (9,191) (17,304)
Net cash 193,614 78,869

Capital Industrial Financial Services Group Limited Annual Report 2022



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRENE

32 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing

activities (Continued)

32

HERERERMT @

(b) MEEBHELE2EEEH@W

Other assets Liabilities from financing activities
HiEE METHELEE
Cash and cash Restricted Loan froma
equivalents bank deposits related party  Borrowings Lease Total
BeREE ZRH -£BE
ZEER RITER ATEH EE S HE fit
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETTT BETT BETT
Net cash as at 1 January 2021 RZB=—%—f—H
LReFE 318,818 = = (290,303) (1,917) 26,598
Cash flows Renre 70,949 - - 6,708 (2,567) 75,090
Foreign exchange adjustments HNEFE (2,672) = = (7,327) = (9,999)
Other charge HHER = - = = (12,820) (12,820)
Net cash as at 31 December 2021 M-Z-—4%+=FK
S+-RZRLFE 387,095 = = (290,922) (17,304) 78,869
Cash flows Beng (49,685) 78,579 (29,724 272,245 3,329 274,744
Foreign exchange adjustments SNERZE (14,506) (2,762) (919) 5,038 817 (12,332)
Other charge HEmER = = = = 3,967 3,967
Net cash as at 31 December 2022 R=Z==%+=#
St-BReRE 322,904 75,817 (30,643) (13,639) (9,191) 345,248
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE WS M

33 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE 33 BEALHRE
The Controlling Shareholder of the Company defined under BB LEMHRAUZEE - ARF 2 ERR
the Listing Rules is Shougang Holding which is a wholly-owned RAEBMZER  malZERAAEHE
subsidiary of Shougang Group Co., Ltd., a state-owned enterprise B AR A (B BB b B 5 62 B
under the direct supervision of the State Council of the PRC. BRREETZ2E2EMRBAR - At - K
Accordingly, the Company and the Group are controlled by ARARAEEXEHERBRAG LA
Shougang Group Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries (collectively referred MEAR (R AIEMERE S - &
as “Shougang Group”). The transactions and those balances with EEESS S BN swile =i
Shougang Group and other PRC government-related financial EITZRGREBEBOT -

institutions are disclosed below:

(a) Key management personnel compensation () EEEEAESHMH

Key management personnel includes directors (executive, FEERBABBRBEES(MTE

non-executive and external directors) and the senior F IR TESRIINSES)RAK

management of the Group. The compensation paid or SBESREREAR - BHEEBRBE

payable to key management for employee services is shown NN EEERABSHMA T
below: N

2022 2021

—=2=-= —E-—%F

HK$°000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Wages, salaries and other benefit IT&  HehEMETR 6,433 9,634

Retirement benefit scheme contribution  3RVRIBFIET I 48 50

Total employee benefit expenses EERFFXEE 6,481 9,684
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREME
33 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE (continued) 33 BEEATEE@
(b) Transactions with related parties (b) EHEFEALZRS

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+t—HLEFE

2022 2021
—E=-= —E %
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Revenue under sale and leaseback EREMERBET 2K
arrangements (Note (ii)) {GELD)]
Subsidiaries of Shougang Group EE S i ny=YNG 23,005 38,536
Associate of Shougang Holding B HxZH’éﬁ%’D\ 1,080 800
24,085 39,336
Entrusted loan payment interest ZEERRER 2 WA (HEE()
income (Note (ii))
Subsidiary of Shougang Group BiEE 2 HEAR 153 =
Interest expense FEEMA
Subsidiaries of Shougang Group Bl E 2 B AR 164 =
Consultancy services income (Note (i)) 353 BRFEUR A (B 3E(i))
Associate of Shougang Holding EE b vl N - 2,191
Management fee expenses (Note (i) B & B X ()
Shougang Holding 2 AR 1,680 2,880
Subsidiaries of Shougang Group EE S ny=YNG 7 =
Lease payments (Note (i)) HE S (FEEG))
Subsidiary of Shougang Holding BiER B A 1,955 2,346
Technical support services (Note (i)  F i X BRI & A (M EE())
Subsidiary of Shougang Group BilEE 2 HE AT 1,414 647
Purchase of steel products (Note (iii)) 1% = & & = & (Fff =X (iii))
Subsidiaries of Shougang Group EEESE =N 256,518 =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRENE

33 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE (continued)
(b) Transactions with related parties

Notes:

(0

(ii)

(iii)

The transactions were carried out in accordance with the relevant
lease and other agreements.

The transactions were carried out in accordance with relevant sale
and leaseback and loan agreements summarised as below:

M

Pursuant to the sale and leaseback agreement, South
China Leasing provided sale and leaseback amounting to
RMB20,000,000 to Tengzhou Eastern Steel Cord Co. Ltd,
an associate of Shougang Holding, for a term of 18 months
commenced from June 2021.

The Company entered into the master facility agreement
with Shougang Group Co., Ltd., pursuant to which the
Company has conditionally agreed to provide or procure
its subsidiaries to provide the uncommitted facilities to
Shougang Group Co., Ltd. and/or its subsidiaries in an
aggregate principal amount of up to RMB2,000,000,000
for a term of 3 years commenced from August 2021.

The transactions were carried out in accordance with relevant
master purchase agreement with Beijing Shougang Co., Ltd.
for an annual cap of RMB1,000,000,000 for a term of 3 years
commenced from August 2021.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBREWE
33 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE (continued) 33 BAEALTHE®@
(c) Balance with related parties () EERE AL z#gR

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—RHLEE
2022 2021
—E=-= —E %
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T

Receivable under credit financing FERMEZRHRT 2ERMIE
arrangement (Note (i) (B =E())

Subsidiary of Shougang Holding BT 2 M E A A 168,453 =

Loans from related party (Note (ii)) —BEE AT HNE R (H )

Subsidiary of Shougang Holding BT A A (30,643) =

Notes: B &E -

(i) The receivable under credit financing arrangement is unsecured, U] %%%ﬁ‘iﬁfﬁFETZ%”ﬁ?ﬂ%ﬁﬁ
interest bearing ranging at 5% per annum, and repayable on #ﬁ : ;ﬁ%ﬁ?iﬂ$5%&2§?§g
demand. SRIEHE -

iy —HEAEALHNERREER .

(i) The Loan from a related party is unsecured, interest bearing §+,%\ﬂ%1%\J$4,1%&2§T£§j?1§

ranging at 4.1% and repayable on demand. & o
. .. =1 -5 k(B =
(d) Outstanding balance arising from sale and (d) SEREEXRBEEHREE

leaseback business

Included in receivables under sale and leaseback
arrangements of the Group as disclosed in Note 20, there
are receivables under sale and leaseback arrangements from
subsidiaries of Shougang Group with total carrying amount
of HK$346,970,000 (2021: HK$568,252,000) as at 31

December 2022.

=33
R-ZE-_—_F+=-A=+—8"-
RE 20T BEENAEEE R
EAZHE NERFERERE
BEMEBHBARNEREHEL
BB TERFEREAEABE
346,970,000 (= = —4 : B
568,252,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRENE

33 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE (continued)

(e)

(f)

Investment in related companies

At 31 December 2022, the Group’s financial assets at
FVPL included listed securities of 12,370,000 shares
(2021: 12,370,000 shares) of Shougang Century Holdings
Limited (“Shougang Cent”, formerly known as Shougang
Concord Century Holdings Limited) with carrying amount of
HK$2,721,000 (2021: HK$4,268,000), and 46,000 shares
(2021: 46,000 shares) of Shoucheng Holdings Limited
(“Shoucheng”) with carrying amount of HK$87,400 (2021:
HK$71,000). Shougang Cent and Shoucheng are associates
of Shougang Holding.

Transaction and balance with other PRC
government-related entities

Apart from the transactions and balances with the Shougang
Group as disclosed in Note 33(b), 33(c) and 33(d), and the
investments in related companies as disclosed in Note 33(e),
the Group has entered into various transactions in its ordinary
course of business including deposit placements, borrowings
and other general banking facilities, with certain banks and
financial institutions which are government-related entities.
As at 31 December 2022, 100% and 0% (2021: 100%
and 98%), respectively, of bank balances and secured bank
borrowings are held with these government-related financial
institutions.
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33 BEEALTEE@®

(e)

(f)

REEQATRZERE
RZEBE-_—_F+=-_A=+—8"
AEFEZBEZREAAEERRE
ZERMEERELMBESFEER
FREFRAE([HERE] -
ABEREEEBARAR)Z
12,370,000 H (= =—F :
12,370,0000% i 17) BRI (B A& 1
2,721,000 (ZFE = —4F : B
4,268,0007T) K E IR IZER AR A A
(&2 ) 2 46,000/ (%5 (==
——% : 46,0000 %) IREE A
T 400 (T = —4F ¢ B
71,00070) - BERE R ERZR
BEMERZEE QT -

REMPBERFEEER 2
BB EE33(b) ~ 33(c) & 33(d) AT
FHEEMNER R P RS K
A3BE)MEENBEARZIKE
Gh s REERHERABESKBIEPE
BRSHEBEER A TRITR SR
BRIV ZIBR5  BEFER &
REEAM—BIRITRE - RZT=
—E+-A=Z+—8 BIEER
AR IRITE R Bt S BAFHA
HERmKERZE100%M0%(ZF
~—% 1 100%}&98%) °



34 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)
REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING

RULES)

The remuneration of every director and the chief executive for the

year ended 31 December 2022 is set out below:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBEENE

34 EEFEANRER(FEQ ARG
(56622%F)5£3831% - D EI(IHE
BEEFNRER)RH(5622GE)
REBLEHRAFMEENEE)

Hr—-—ZT——

Ft-A=+—"BLLEE

BEENRRSITRABZFH M 0

T
Salaries  Contributions
and other  to retirement
Fees benefits benefit scheme  Total 2022
Hek BIKER st
ik HiEF rEfR —B--—-F%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BETT BETT BET T
2022 —E-CE
Executive directors of KATHTES
the Company
Xu Liang (Note (i) & 2 PHEG) - 2,005 12 2,017
Tian Gang m ol - 1,635 18 1,653
Sun Yajie (Note (ii) BB (K EEG) - - - -
Liang Hengyi (Note (iii)) R E (M) - 1,515 18 1,533
Non-executive directors of KAREHTES
the Company
Huang Donglin BAM 256 - - 256
Zhang Jianxun (Note (iv)) o2 B (BT (v) - - - -
Qiao Yufei (Note (v)) BWIEWETEEW) - - - -
Independent Non-executive FATBIFYTES
directors of the Company
Tam King Ching, Kenny B IE 256 - - 256
Zhang Xingyu REE 254 - - 254
Ng Man Fung, Walter Xz 256 - - 256
On Danita LR 256 - - 256
Total emoluments [ R 1,278 5,155 48 6,481
Notes: BT

(i) Xu Liang resigned on 5 August 2022.

(ii) Sun Yajie was appointed on 5 August 2022. Under the engagement

letter, Ms. Sun will not receive any emolument.

(i) Liang Hengyi appointed on 25 March 2022.

(iv)  Zhang Jianxun resigned on 28 December 2022.

(v) Qiao Yufei was appointed on 28 December 2022. Under the engagement

letter, Ms. Qiao will not receive any emolument.

(i) BER-ZE-__FNARBEBEET-
iy BORARZZE__FNARABHEZE-R

BRBEE Rt TeREUTAEE -
(iif) ?’%1%%)‘5@:%‘{::&5)% “t+HHEEZ

(v) REBR-ZE-_Z—_F+-_A=+/\B&

o

(v) BRINRZZ_=F+-A=+/\BEZ
gomﬁéﬁz'éﬁiK@%mﬁﬁM
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRENE

34 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)
REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES) (Continued)

The remuneration of every director and the chief executive for the

34 EEERRER(TE QTR
(5£622%) %383f% - N E (KE
EERZER) R BI(5£622GE)
RE & LR R AT R E K i )

(%)

BE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—RIEE

year ended 31 December 2021 is set out below:

BEEERERITHRAER ZHBERF 40
T @

Salaries Contributions
and other to retirement
Fees benefits  benefit scheme Total 2022
ek RRAEF @t
ik HAb@H| e T oTHF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT BT BT
2021 —B-—fF
Executive directors of KARYITES
the Company
Xu Liang ® 2 - 3,360 18 3,378
Tian Gang (Note (i)) EECEZO) - 17,111 15 1,126
Su Guifeng (Note (ii) BRAE S8 (I RE()) = 672 3 675
Li Jing (Note (jii)) Z  F (B - - - -
Non-executive directors of  AQFFHITES
the Company
Huang Donglin BAM 247 = = 247
Zhang Jianxun (Note (iv)) o 2 B (Pft 5 (iv)) - - - -
You Wenli (Note (v)) w7 S (B RE(v)) - - - -
Independent Non-executive ZAATBIFHTES
directors of the Company
Tam King Ching, Kenny i 264 - = 264
Zhang Xingyu RES 264 = = 264
Ng Man Fung, Walter 1R 3z (BH=E (vi))
(Note (vi)) 204 - - 204
On Danita (Note (vii)) Z B AR (BT 5E (vi) 204 = = 204
Wan Siu Wah, Wilson B IKEE (B R (viii)
(Note (viii)) 7 - = 7
Total emoluments AL 1,190 5,143 36 6,369
Notes: M5t

(i) Tian Gang was appointed on 24 March 2021.

(i) Su Guifeng resigned on 19 March 2021.

(i) Li Jing resigned on 24 March 2021.

(iv)  Zhang Jingxun was appointed on 24 March 2021. Under the engagement
letter, Mr. Zhang will not receive any emolument.

(v) You Wenli resigned on 24 March 2021.

(vi) Ng Man Fung, Walter was appointed on 19 March 2021.

(vii)  On Danita was appointed on 19 March 2021.

(viii) ~ Wan Siu Wah, Wilson passed away on 8 January 2021.
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(i) HRIR-—Z=_—F=A-+HBEZF-
(i) HBHHEER-_T-_—F=A+NBEE-
(i) FHER-_T-_—F=A-+MBEHT-
vy FRBR-_T-_—F-A-1+HAEZ

% RBERIEE - REED G UEE B
v HXER-_ZE-—F=A-TWHEHTE -
vy MXER-T-_—F=-A+NAEEF-
(i) ZTRHER-Z_—F=AT+NBEZE-
(i) BRER-T=—F— A\ BBt -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRENE

35 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF 35 AQFBEENBATZFHE

THE COMPANY
Details of principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2022 and 2021 are RZE-_—FR-_TE-_—F+ A=+

as follows:

Place of incorporation

or establishment/

Issued and
fully paid share
capital/register and

—RAZTEMBARFEAT :

Proportion of ownership

Name of subsidiary operation paid-up capital interest held by the Company Principal activities
SMRIRARL ERTRBERE/ LNGIiESs 2oL
WEARER BEwH R EARA 2 thl TEXHK
(Note (i) 2022 2021
(MG =—B==F —FT-—-F
Direct subsidiaries
=30 P
Gold Cosmos Development Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
TEERERATF BE 75#10,0007C REZR
Grand Cheers Property Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Investment holding
EEEEARNA B BT REER
Jeckman Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands Us$100 100% 100%  Investment holding
("BVI")
RBRUES 10057 RERK
(RBRLEHE])
SCG Investment (BVI) Limited BVI HK$100,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
RBRAES 7#100,0007C REER
Indirect subsidiaries
BEHELF
Grand Park Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment
KRREBARDAE BE BET NERE
Long Cosmos Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Provision of
administrative and
management services
RFREBRAT BE BT RETHRRER RS
Lyre Terrace Management Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100% 100%  Property investment
ERERARNAA B 751,000,000 NERE
On Hing Investment Company, Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 100% 100%  Property investment
(ordinary)  (Note (iv)) (Note (iv)) and investment
HK$2,000,000 holding
(non-voting deferred)
ZEPZER A BE BE1.000  (HiE(GY) (M)  ERRERREER
(BB
#12,000,0007T
(ERZRETR)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRENE

35 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF 35 AAREEME QT ZF1E@
THE COMPANY (Continued)

Issued and
Place of incorporation fully paid share
or establishment/ capital/register and  Proportion of ownership
Name of subsidiary operation paid-up capital interest held by the Company Principal activities
EMBIRAL, ERTRBERE LNGiEss 2oL
WELRERE REwH TR EARA T il TEXHK
(Note (i) 2022 2021

(MEEG) =T==f& —ZT-—F

Indirect subsidiaries (Continued)

MR A R ()
SCG Capital Corporation Limited Hong Kong HK$20 100% 100%  Investment holding
BEREOARERRAR B 207 REER
SCG Finance Corporation Limited Hong Kong HK$20 100% 100%  Provision of financial
services
BEREUFHBEERAR Bt 20T RESRRE
South China International Leasing Co., The PRC (Note (ii)) US$162,000,000 75% 75%  Provision of sale and
Ltd. (“South China Leasing”) (Registered capital) leaseback services
HABERHEERAR(EAMEE) B M) 162,000,000% 1T REUEREARS
Gailiey
Tin Fung Investment Company, Hong Kong HK$975,000 0% 100%  Inactive
Limited (ordinary) (Note (v)) (Note (v))
HK$210,000
(non-voting deferred)
REEXERAT Bk 7B 1£975,0007T (GEI)] (MizFv) EE2%
(B
#%210,0007T
(ERZERTR)
Ecko Investment Company Limited*  The PRC (Note (iii)) HK$261,700,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
(Registered capital)
HEREREZAGRERDT  hE (i) 7E%5261,700,0007T RARY
Gailiwy)
*  For identification purpose only * ([BHPIFS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)

Issued and
fully paid share
capital/register and

Place of incorporation
or establishment/

REMBEENE

35 XRBEEMBLQTZFHE @

Proportion of ownership

Name of subsidiary operation paid-up capital interest held by the Company Principal activities
HMRLBHEL, BRTRAZRES RARFBRERE
MELRER mEH FMEESRAR L pddl] TEER
(Note (i) 2022 2021
(W& === =—Z-—-F%
Beijing Shouhua Fangtai Investment  The PRC (Note (iii)) RMB70,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of corporate
Management Co., Ltd.* (Registered capital) (Note(vi)) financial advisory
services
IREEFRREERERAT o B st (B3 Gif) AR#70,000,0007C (PrEEei)  RECERERRS
Gaiiiey PR
Beijing Jingxi Supply Chain The PRC (Note (iii)) RMB60,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of supply
Management Co., Ltd.* (“Jingxi chain management
Supply Chain”) services
IRRAREEEEERAH R 30 9 B 2 Gi) AR #60,000,00070 REMEREEIERE
(TPt
Notes: Mt

(i) All issued share capital are ordinary shares unless otherwise stated.

(ii) This entity is sino-foreign equity joint venture.
(i) These entities are limited liability enterprises.
(iv)  Interest only refer to ordinary shares which are voting shares.

(v) Interests only refer to ordinary shares which are voting shares. The
company was deregistered during the year ended 31 December 2022.

(vi)  During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with Fangyuan Financial (Hong Kong) Limited,
a non-controlling shareholder of Beijing Shouhua Fangtau Investment
Management Co., Ltd, to acquire the remaining 13.29% equity interest
with the consideration of HK$302,000. After the acquisition, the Group
own 100% equity interest on Beijing Shouhua Fangtau Investment
Management Co., Ltd.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the
opinion of the Directors, principally affect the results or assets and
liabilities of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would,
in the opinion of Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

*  For identification purpose only

(ii)
(iii)

BIESBHRA  BAMBERTRASS

ZEBRTIIAERE-
ZEEBR/EREMERF -

(iv) 1ERBIRZRZ L@ D MRS -

(v) IEREREHZLTBEBRBRMDAER - ZA
AERBE_T__F+=-A=+—H1t
FREBBEM -

(viy BHEZZE-—F+-A=1+—HLFE"

AEEELFREESFREEERERAF
ZIEEBRR R S BB (EB) BRA AR
VEEWE - KB T 13.29% /4 -
KRB AHE302,0007T - RIER A%
ERALtREESZREATEGRAA
100% A% #E ©

FREFINESRRUREE 2 EEK
EEMNBBEIZREZAKENBL
Bl - EER AN E B QB FIEH
STRIBENITE -

A7 4F [ 468 SR I N 4 P ] By o I 488 Y
BRRFAEAERES

* EHRBIFEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRENE

35 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF

THE COMPANY (Continued)
Details of non-wholly-owned subsidiary that has

material non-controlling interests
The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Group that has material non-controlling interests:

Proportion of ownership
interests and voting rights
held by non-controlling

Place of
establishment  Principal

35

AR EFEMEB LT ZF B @

BREEAFEZERERZFZEWES

AFHE
TREJNFEEERFERERZAEE
F2EMBRR G :

Profit for the year

allocated to non- Accumulated non-

Name of subsidiary  and operation activities interests controlling interests controlling interests
B R FERERFSREE PREFERES
WEARER EELH TEEK BERREE L ZFERR EtFERES
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
—E--f -—T-—F ZE--f ~—T-—F —BE--f —_T-—F
% %  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
BETRT A%t B%Tn  BEETn
South China Leasing The PRC Provision of sale 25 25 17,71 15,199 338,308 352,722
HAHE th and leaseback
services
REERDHE
ZH IR
338,308 352,722

South China Leasing is the private company established in Mainland
China and provides sale and leaseback services in Mainland China.

The Group has indirect ownership interest of 75% (2021: 75%)
in South China Leasing at 31 December 2022, which is held by
wholly owned subsidiaries of the Group. The remaining 25% non-
controlling is held by Shougang Holding.

Beijing Jingxi Supply Chain is the private company established in
Mainland China and provides consultancy services in Mainland
China.

The Directors conclude that the Group has a sufficiently dominant
voting interest to direct the relevant activities of both subsidiaries
on the basis of the Group’s absolute size of equity interest and the
relative size of the interest owned by the other equity owners.

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
subsidiary that has material non-controlling interests is set out
below. The summarised financial information below represents
amounts before intragroup eliminations.
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MAOEERNFBEAMKL ZILAR
A KRB AR E R AR

AEBRZZE_ZF+A=+—8BR
HAEEHEBTS%(ZE-—F : 75%)
MERaEED mEAREREAEE
ZHEEBEWBRAREA - 8 T25%3E%
PERERS e S AR i o

b 7R £ e 58 2 1 AP B I M AR S22 A
AR KRB AR AR

BExEwmR ERAREZEHBE
REREMRERAE AES 2B #a
BE AEERBRHTEHRERE
AIESIMEMB AR 2 BRHES -

ERBREANFERER 2 AEEH B
REMBERBEHIN AT - Tt
ZHBEMEEEARBEEHERN 2
B o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRENE

35 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)
Details of non-wholly-owned subsidiary that has

35 ARBFEMB AT ZHEB @

BREAFERESRZIZEWS

material non-controlling interests (Continued) YNCIE=2(C )
South China Leasing mAHEE
Summarised balance sheet EEEBEXREBE
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Current assets mBEE 937,782 1,210,825
Current liabilities mEaE (76,812) (218,894)
Currentnetassets rEBEERE 860,970 991,931
Non-current assets IERBNEE 526,535 531,552
Non-current liabilities EmEatE (34,274) (112,595)
Non-current netassets FrBEEFE 492261 418,957
Net assets BEFE 1,353,231 1,410,888
Accumulated NCI Bt FERERS 338,308 352,722

2025 EHRE BEREXSRBRBEEEERATF

271



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRENE

35 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF

THE COMPANY (Continued)

Details of non-wholly-owned subsidiary that has

35

AABETEMB AR Z2FFw@

BREAFERESRZIZEWS

material non-controlling interests (Continued) YNCIE=2(C )
South China Leasing (Continued) AAHE (&)
Summarised statement of comprehensive income ZHEHKEREE
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Revenue Wz 94,041 91,816
Profit for the period FRER 70,844 60,656
Other comprehensive (loss)/income HEhem(EE), W (127,420) 75,372
Total comprehensive (loss)/income 2ME(ER), WA (56,576) 136,028
Total comprehensive (loss)/income allocated 7 it &= JE#E ficAE 26 2
to NCI 2 (B8R, (14,144) 34,007
Summarised cash flow ReEREME
2022 2021
—ZE_— —E-—%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Net cash generated from operating activities 48 & EEFT1SIR & /F5E 255,283 77,146
Net cash generated from investing activities & EBFT5IR & /F 50 1,423 742
Net cash used in financing activities BB EBFTAE SR8 (194,865) (658)
Net cash outflow RE M FRR 61,841 77,230
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36 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRENE

36 XA BBBRRERR

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY RiEEE K
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T PR T

Assets BE
Non-current assets FRBEE

Investments in subsidiaries, net (Note) N GIEINEIPES =9I b= 478,693 521,484

Amount due from subsidiaries, net (Note) U B B A B R F R (B ) 1,043,095 1,098,786
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 1521788 1,620,270
Current assets REEE

Prepayment, deposits and other receivables B 3RIE - & & R E A EW IR 193 193

Bank balances and cash RITEERES 106 102
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 299 0 2%
Total assets EEHAE 1,522,087 1,620,565
Liabilities =L
Current liabilities REBEE

Bank borrowing RITER - 80,000

Other payables and accruals H At < FRIE K B EH B 333 119

Loan from a related party —HBEEATHER 30,643 =
Total liabilities afEes® 30,976 80,119
Net current liabilites rBaEEE G0677) (79,824)
Net assets BEEFE 1,491,111 1,540,446
Capital and reserves AR #E

Share capital A&z 39,846 39,846

Reserves (G 1,451,265 1,500,600
Total equity RS 1,491,111 1,540,446
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRENE

36 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 36 AATRBMBEMRRARK
EEREHR@®

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

Note As at 31 December 2022, the amount due from a subsidiary with carrying
amount of HK$1,043,095,000 (2021: HK$1,098,786,000) is unsecured,
interest free and repayable on demand. In the opinion of the Directors,
the Company will not demand for repayment within one year from
the end of reporting period and the amount due from a subsidiary is
therefore considered as non-current. Interest-free advance is measured at
amortised cost and the related effective interest income of HK$9,059,000
(2021: HK$8,628,000), which is non-distributable, was recognised in
profit or loss for the current year and accumulated effective interest
income of approximately HK$157,696,000 (2021: HK$148,637,000),
which is non-distributable, was recognised in retained earnings.

RZZTE-_—F+=-—A=+—H " &
K—FEHBRARREE@mEEE
1,043,095,000c (=T =—4F : B¥
1,098,786,0007T) AEHKIF - LB KA
RENXEE -EBEERE  ARABITE
RRERHARE - FRBHEREX
E it R AR — BB A R KB AIER
&) o B EMFIRE KA EMMAEBRE
B B A B 9,059,000 (=T ——
F : #%8,628,0007T) BIFENKEE
RAFEBEZRARRAMBAERFE
W A4 #157,696,0000(—F = —
£ 1 #%148,637,0007T) A5k A
BRRE BT AR -

Movement in the Company’s reserves BATRHEEE
Contributed Share
Share surplus options  Exchange Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
RAEE BABHBREE BRERE B REBEM b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETTT BETTT BETT
At 1 January 2021 R=ZZ-—%£—-H—H 766,818 113,441 - 23,140 129,319 1,032,718
Exchange difference arising on BERRFIERESL
translation into presentation EHERE
currency - - - 12,406 - 12,406
Profit for the year EERN - - - = 455,476 455,476
At 31 December 2021 RZBZ-E+-A=+—-H 766818 113,441 - 35,546 584,795 1,500,600
Exchange difference arising on BEREIIEHESEY
translation into presentation BEXERE
currency - - - (42,790 - (42,790
Profit for the year FERF - = = = 5,409 5,409
Dividend paid BERRE - - - - (11,954) (11,954)
At 31 December 2022 RZBZZHE+ZA=+-B 766818 113,441 - (1.244) 578250 1,451,265
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
IFMBRE

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—-HLEE

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
“ET-N\F —ET-hF ZE-TF T —F ZBZCZHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
BETIT BRI B¥Tr  B%Tr  B¥Txn
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)
(B E5) (B E5) (E5) (#E3)
RESULTS £
Continuing operations HEKE
Revenue Wz 96,623 72,873 84,628 1,895,594 370,638
Cost of sales SHER AR (42,427) (19,305) (11,606) (1,792,903)  (283,806)
Gross profit EH 54,196 53,568 73,022 102,691 86,832
Other income H A A 15,614 20,028 11,088 5,831 9,696
Other gains, net Hofth oo 5 EE 2,824 1,094 13,734 77 36,310
Selling expenses HERX (418) (402) (1,420) (2,780) (3.317)
Administrative expenses THAX (58,342) (60,100) (60,889) (58,804) (53,480)
Changes in fair value of investment ~ REWE 2 N EE
properties 3,147 2,400 (1,000) 5,244 (2,471)
Changes in fair value of financial BRERREANER
assets at fair value through BIEMBEEZAR
profit or loss k=53 (641) 204 272 1,492 (1,530)
Reversal of/(provision) for impairment  JEUFIERIE
of receivables, net | (BE)FE 1,242 1,887 5,916 (2,927) (17,150)
Finance costs BE AR (5,823) (5,987) (1,676) (3,530) (4,812)
Share of (loss)/profit of associates JEIERE & AR
(&518) /& 7 (122,547) 2,614 1,258 2,328 523
Impairment loss on goodwill EESREN St = = = = (945)
(Provision)/reversal of impairment of ~ —EIB &N A] 2 #E %
provision on interests in an ZRERE
associate (&), #E 75,640 - - - -
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRETSEiRT(E518), %A (35,108) 15,306 40,305 49,622 49,656
Income tax expense g il (14,531) (14,830) (16,959) (7,571) (16,178)
(Loss)/profit from continuing FHBICE T
operation (&1#8), & A (49,639) 476 23,346 42,501 33,478
(Loss)/profit from discontinued (BBBRAD B E
operation (attributable to equity BEANB&LESE
holders of the Company) £t (450) 107 (5,152) 442 (1,241)
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRETISBIA(B518) @Rl (50,089) 583 18,194 42,493 32,237
(Loss)/profit is attributable to: AN AT
(B18),/ &7 -
Owners of the Company RRABFBA (58,882) (7,921) 5,980 27,294 14,526
Non-controlling interests IR 8,793 8,504 12,214 15,199 17,711
(50,089) 583 18,194 42,493 32,237

2025 EHRE BEREXSRBRBEEEERATF
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

TEHERE
For the year ended 31 December
BZE+-A=1+—-HLEE
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
“ET-N\F —E-hF —E-TF —T-—F ZB-CZF

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BEFT  BEFr  BETr  BETr BETx
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERERE
Total assets BEHLR 2,218,214 2,294,032 2,161,473 2,325,595 2,006,231
Total liabilities BfEResE (592,124)  (550,534)  (397,484)  (435,216)  (250,855)

1,626,090 1,743,498 1,763,989 1,890,379 1,755,376

Capital and reserves attributable to EAYNGIES YN T &N
owners of the Company K 1,339,688 1,355,149 1445637 1,537,657 1,417,068
Non-controlling interests R 286,402 388,349 318,352 352,722 338,308

1,626,090 1,743,498 1,763,989 1,890,379 1,755,376
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